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NEXT is a UK based retailer offering exciting, beautifully 
designed, excellent quality clothing, footwear, accessories and 
home products. NEXT distributes through three main channels: 
NEXT Retail, a chain of more than 500 stores in the UK and Eire; 
NEXT Directory, a home shopping catalogue and website with 
around 3 million active customers and international websites 
serving approximately 50 countries; and NEXT International, with 
almost 200 mainly franchised stores around the world.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report and Accounts contains “forward looking statements” which are all matters that are not historical facts, including anticipated financial and operational 
performance, business prospects and similar matters. These forward looking statements are identifiable by words such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “budget”, 
“estimate”, “expect”, “forecast”, “intend”, “plan”, “project” and similar expressions. These forward looking statements reflect NEXT’s current expectations concerning 
future events and actual results may differ materially from current expectations or historical results. Any such forward looking statements are subject to risks and 
uncertainties, including but not limited to those risks described in “Risks & Uncertainties” on pages 14 to 15; failure by NEXT to predict accurately customer fashion 
preferences; decline in the demand for merchandise offered by NEXT; competitive influences; changes in level of store traffic or consumer spending habits; effectiveness 
of NEXT’s brand awareness and marketing programmes; general economic conditions or a downturn in the retail industry; the inability of NEXT to successfully implement 
relocation or expansion of existing stores; insufficient consumer interest in NEXT Directory; acts of war or terrorism worldwide; work stoppages, slowdowns or strikes; 
and changes in financial or equity markets. These forward looking statements do not amount to any representation that they will be achieved as they involve risks and 
uncertainties and relate to events and depend upon circumstances which may or may not occur in the future and there can be no guarantee of future performance. 
Undue reliance should not be placed on forward looking statements which speak only as of the date of this document. NEXT does not undertake any obligation to 
update publicly or revise forward looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except to the extent legally required.
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The Year in Summary

“It was another record year 
for sales, profits, earnings per 
share and dividends”

3.30

2011

3.44

2012

543.4

2011

570.3

2012

221.9p

2011

255.4p

2012

+4.3%
Revenue (£bn)

Continuing business

+5.0%
Profit before tax (£m)

Continuing business
pre-exceptional gains

+15.1%
Earnings per share

Underlying

+15.4%
Dividends per share

Total for the year

78p

2011

90p

2012

■■ Sales up over 4% to £3,441m from ongoing business and 5% 
profit growth to £570m.

■■ Dividend for the year increases by 15% to 90p and remains 
covered 2.8 times.

■■ Cash proceeds from the sale of Ventura plus strong cash 
generation enabled £290m of capital returns through share 
buybacks.

■■ Secure long term financing through the issue of a new £325m 10 
year bond and new £300m 5 year bank facility.

Shareholder Highlights:
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Chairman’s Statement

The year to January 2012 finished well for NEXT. Underlying earnings per share before exceptional profits grew by 15% to 255.4p. 
An excellent result in a year when the UK economy, our largest market, has struggled for growth.

During the year we continued the rapid growth of our online business both in the UK and overseas through NEXT Directory, which 
now accounts for 32% of group sales and 44% of operating profits. We believe that part of this success is due to our NEXT 
Retail store network and the ability of the two businesses to work together and support each other. Accordingly, during the year 
we continued to invest in our stores, upgrading and expanding where opportunities presented themselves. In particular, we now 
have 43 Home stand-alone stores and will continue to grow the Home business, which will give us a more significant share of this 
market as the UK economy recovers.

Cash generation remains strong. We continued our programme of share buybacks, buying 12.5 million shares at an average cost 
of £23.21. During the year we returned £425 million to shareholders in share buybacks and dividends.

We are proposing to increase the full year dividend by 15% to 90p, in line with the increase in earnings per share. This means a 
higher increase in the final dividend. However, we propose to pay the final dividend one month later to coincide with the peak in 
our Summer trading cash flows.

We have renewed our medium term bank facilities, issued a new 10 year £325m bond and bought in £158 million of the existing 
bonds. This leaves the Group well financed for the future. 

The key ingredient of our success is the stability and effectiveness of our management teams across the Group. They have had a 
successful year and I would like to thank them for their contribution towards this performance. 

During 2011 our share price and dividend performance ranked NEXT as the second best performing FTSE100 company of the 
year. It is worth noting that over the last three years our earnings per share have grown at an annual compound rate of 18%. 

Next year will bring its own challenges, particularly as growth in the UK will remain sluggish. We continue to believe that we will 
deliver growth by investing in the Brand, improving our products and managing the business well.

John Barton 
Chairman
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Directors’ Report and Business Review

The Directors present their annual report and audited accounts for the financial year ended 28 January 2012.

Principal activities
NEXT is a UK based retailer offering exciting, beautifully designed, excellent quality clothing, footwear, accessories and home 
products. NEXT distributes through three main channels: NEXT Retail, a chain of more than 500 stores in the UK and Eire; NEXT 
Directory, a home shopping catalogue and website with around 3 million active customers and international websites serving 
approximately 50 countries; and NEXT International, with almost 200 mainly franchised stores around the world.

Other group businesses include:

■■ NEXT Sourcing, which designs, sources and buys NEXT branded products.

■■ Lipsy, which designs and sells its own branded younger women’s fashion products through retail, internet and wholesale 
channels.

A review of the Group’s businesses is set out in the Chief Executive’s Review and in the sections headed Business Strategies & 
Objectives, Key Performance Indicators, Risks & Uncertainties, Employees and Social & Environmental Matters.

Business strategies & objectives
The primary financial objective of the Group is the delivery of sustainable long term growth in earnings per share (“EPS”). As 
explained more fully in the Chief Executive’s Review, the outlook continues to be very challenging. However, the Board believes 
that there are opportunities for sales growth and further possible cost savings that should allow EPS to grow in the year ahead. 
In the longer term, the Board considers that growth in EPS is best achieved by continuation of the following strategies in NEXT’s 
operating businesses:

■■ Improving and developing NEXT product ranges, success in which is reflected in total sales and like for like sales performance.

■■ Profitably increasing NEXT Retail and Lipsy selling space. New store appraisals must meet demanding financial criteria before 
the investment is made and success is measured by monitoring achieved sales and profit contribution against appraised 
targets. 

■■ Increasing the number of NEXT Directory customers and their average spend, both in the UK and by growing international 
online sales.

■■ Managing gross and net margins by better product sourcing, continuous cost control and efficient management of stock levels 
and working capital.

■■ Maintaining the Group’s financial strength through an efficient balance sheet and secure financing structure.

■■ Purchasing and cancelling NEXT shares when it is earnings enhancing and in the interests of shareholders generally. 
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Directors’ Report and Business Review

The new space performed in line with our expectations: net branch profitability and the payback on net capital invested were 
comfortably within the 15% and 24 month hurdles maintained by the Company. The table below sets out forecasts which are 
based on sales since the date of opening.

 
Sales vs 

Target
forecast 

Profitability

forecast 
Payback 
(months)

Mainline 7.9% 22.4% 18.4
Home 1.3% 19.1% 23.4
Total 5.7% 21.4% 20.2

In August we opened a new large concept store in Shoreham which has proven extremely successful. The store consists of a 
Fashion and a Home shop, sitting side-by-side, on one stand-alone site with its own car park. The Home part of the shop carries 
an extended range which includes light DIY products and a small garden centre. We have identified 19 other sites around the UK 
where we would ideally like to open similar stores. However we expect progress to be slow as almost all of these sites require 
planning permission. We will open at least two more in the year ahead, one near Ipswich the other near Warrington.

We expect to open around a further 300,000 sq. feet in the year ahead and that sales from new space will contribute around 4% to 
retail sales during the year. This projection has reduced since September as a number of complex projects, many of which require 
planning permission, have slipped into the following year.

Home Stand-alone Stores
There is a question as to whether it is wise to be opening Home shops in a market which is so obviously having a difficult time. 
There are two reasons why we are confident to carry on opening stores in the current environment. The first is that they are 
extremely profitable and provide an efficient return on capital invested. The Home stand-alone portfolio makes a 21% net branch 
profit.

The second is that we do not believe that the current rate of decline in the home furnishings market will continue forever, though 
admittedly it may take a few years to recover. The graph below, which gives UK housing transactions over the last ten years, shows 
just how profound and unusual a change there has been in the housing market since the credit crisis began.

uK Housing Transactions
  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
1.8m

1.6m

1.4m

1.2m

1.0m

0.8m

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

UK Housing Transactions, Source HM Treasury Databank

Retail Stores in the internet age
There is a lot of speculation about the future of retail stores given the rapid growth of online trade generally. We remain convinced 
that there is a continued place for fashion retail stores and that increasingly customers will see stores and online as part of a single 
service. We continue to see more and more Directory customers using our shops to receive and return our products.
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The table below shows the percentage of Directory orders returned and collected in store compared to the same time six months 
ago.

Jan 2012 July 2011
Percentage of parcels collected through stores 20% 13%
Percentage of parcels returned through stores 59% 50%

Store Portfolio Profitability
Even though there is undoubtedly a future for retail stores, we remain mindful of the need to aggressively manage profitability in an 
environment where there is increasing divergence of performance between good and poor locations. We rarely take on leases of 
more than 10 years. All lease renewals are reviewed, and we continue to monitor underperforming stores with a view to disposing 
of them before they become loss making. This year we closed 14 underperforming stores which collectively traded 79,000 sq. feet 
and whose combined profitability was 7.9%.

The table below sets out the percentage of our turnover taken from mainline stores in different profitability bands; our portfolio of 
stores remains extremely profitable with very little space making less than 5% profit and 90% of our stores making more than 15% 
profit contribution.

Profitability 
of space

Percentage 
of turnover

>20% 73%
>15% 90%
>10% 97%
>5% 99%
>0% 99.7%

Profit and Margin analysis – Retail
Retail profitability remained flat as achieved gross margins moved forward offset by increases in occupancy and overhead costs. 
The table below details the margin movement in the major heads of costs.

net operating margin last year   14.8%
Increase in bought-in margin +0.3%  
Reduced markdown costs +0.4%  
increase in achieved gross margin   +0.7%
Decrease in store payroll   +0.3%
Increase in store occupancy costs   -0.4%
Increase in distribution & warehouse costs   -0.3%
Increase in central costs   -0.3%
net operating margin this year   14.8%

The Company’s decision to order stock earlier, and increase stock-holding throughout the year, meant that we were able to reduce 
the amount of air freight required to transport stock last minute. This increased our bought-in margin by 0.3%. Improved clearance 
rates in the End of Season Sale and reduced markdowns added a further 0.4% to achieved gross margin, although some of this 
gain has been offset by increased handling charges as noted below.

Productivity savings in the stores more than offset the cost of living increase in branch wage rates and additional Boxing Day 
premium pay. The net savings in wages added 0.3% to margin. 

Store occupancy costs increased as a percentage of sales, mainly because like for like sales declined. Underlying rent and rates 
increased by 1.8% and 4.7% respectively. Rent increases incurred in any one year are the result of five yearly rent reviews, so this 
number represents the compound annual growth over the last five years. We anticipate that rental inflation will fall further in the 
year ahead.

Distribution and warehousing costs rose due to wage rate inflation, additional costs incurred re-balancing stock between stores, 
and as a result of the growth in furniture sales requiring two-man Home deliveries.

Central costs included additional amounts for employee incentives, Carbon Tax and NEXT’s commercial arrangements for the 
2012 Olympics.
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Directors’ Report and Business Review

DiRECTORY
The NEXT Directory has had another very good year with sales growing 16.4% and profits up 18.3%.

Directory Sales
Directory sales were driven by a combination of growth in UK full price sales, additional End of Season markdown sales, the new 
“Offers” tab (which is the equivalent of an online version of our Retail Clearance stores) and international sales. The table below 
sets out the different components of growth:

Contribution 
to growth

UK Full Price Sales 8.4%
International Online 2.4%
UK Offers Tab 2.5%
Increased End of Season Sale 3.1%
Total Growth 16.4%

Directory stock for the Sale was up 26% on last year, whereas markdown stock across the brand was up only 10.7%. The 
disproportionate growth in Directory was mainly the result of transferring less surplus stock from Directory to Retail.

The “Offers” tab sells prior season stock that has already been written down to one third of cost in exactly the same way as our 
Clearance stores operate in Retail. These sales do not therefore adversely affect margin in the season they are sold because the 
obsolescence cost of the stock has already been taken in the previous season.

new Customers
Directory active customers increased by 9.6% to just under three million, only 3.4% of the growth in customers came from 
traditional credit customers and 6.2% from new cash-only customers. The table below sets out the growth in new customers by 
category of customer.

Jan  
2012

Jan 
2011

Contribution
to customer

growth
Credit customers 2,557 2,464 3.4%
Cash customers – UK 356 230
Cash customers – Overseas 82 37
Total cash customers 438 267 6.2%
Total active customers 2,995 2,731 9.6%

Although credit customers only grew by 3.4%, sales to credit customers grew by 12%, as existing customers increased their 
average annual spend.

improving Service
Whilst much of the growth in our internet business has come as a result of the underlying growth in the use of the internet generally, 
we believe that our service improvements have made a significant difference to sales. In particular, the fact that we now deliver next 
day as standard to customers who order any time up till 9pm at night. We intend to continue to improve our delivery services in the 
year ahead with the introduction of Sunday and evening deliveries (both of which will be charged at a premium rate).

The key to our ability to improve our service offer lies in the £236m of capital we have invested over the last ten years in new 
warehousing capacity and automation. This means that most stocked items can be cost effectively picked, packed, sorted and 
ready for despatch from our warehouses within 90 minutes of an order being taken.

Directory Overseas 
Directory continues to make good progress overseas with annual sales reaching £33m last year against only £10m the previous 
year. We now trade online in 48 countries overseas with sales being particularly strong in Germany, USA, Australia, Eire, Poland 
and Russia (the last of which only commenced trading in September last year). We are budgeting for international online sales of 
£50m in the year ahead, at a profitability of circa 20%.

We now trade in most of the major consumer markets, but there is still the opportunity to open in a further 15 new markets during 
2012, the most important of which are likely to be Middle Eastern countries in which we already have successful franchises. We 
anticipate a Chinese language site will be operational in mainland China during the year, though this has proven harder to get up 
and running than initially anticipated.

21127-04NEXTPLC.indd   8 10/04/2012   10:17:25



B
us

in
es

s 
re

p
or

ts
G

ov
er

na
nc

e
A

cc
ou

nt
s

N
ot

es
 t

o 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
A

d
d

iti
on

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n

9Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 28 January 2012

21127-04  05/04/2012 Proof 5

Profit and Margin analysis – Directory
Over the course of 2011, margins in NEXT Directory have improved by +0.4%, the reasons for which are detailed below.

net operating margin last year 23.7%
Increase in bought-in gross margin +0.6%
Reduction in markdown costs +0.2%
increase in achieved gross margin +0.8%
Improvement in bad debt +0.4%
Reduced service charge income -0.9%
Reduction in net service charge -0.5%
Increase in warehouse and distribution costs -0.7%
Decrease in marketing, other and central costs +0.8%
net operating margin this year 24.1%

The achieved gross margin increased by 0.8%. As in Retail, Directory bought-in gross margin increased as a result of lower air 
freight costs. In addition, higher margin clothing sales grew faster than Home sales, which were restrained by the opening of new 
stand-alone Retail Home stores. Markdown costs reduced, as improved clearance rates more than offset the 26% increase in 
stock for the Directory Sale.

We continued to see an improvement in bad debt rates, a trend which we have seen for over two years now. Bad debt rates are 
now the lowest we have ever known them. We believe that this is a result of the credit crunch, which reduced credit availability 
generally, thus reducing consumers’ ability to take on debt they could not afford. 

Overall service charge income increased in value but decreased as a percentage of sales. Service charge income grew by 8% 
whilst total sales were up 16%, so net margins were reduced by -0.9%. 

An increase in warehousing and distribution costs reduced margin by -0.7%. Most of this cost increase came from warehousing 
and was the result of additional labour used to improve stock distribution between Retail and Directory. It was this exercise that 
allowed us to improve the efficiency of our clearance online. In addition, staffing costs were inflated by the increased use of agency 
staff, the annual cost of living wage award and increased management cover. 

There were significant inflationary rises in the underlying costs of parcel distribution but these were offset by greater use of our 
stores for deliveries and returns, along with a reduction in free post and packaging promotions throughout the year.

Increases in central overheads, including the payment of higher staff incentives, were more than offset by marketing and call centre 
savings. These costs were reduced by increased use of the internet and a reduction in the number of customers requesting printed 
catalogues.

inTERnaTiOnal RETail
The majority of this business is conducted through our franchise partners. In total, they operate 164 NEXT stores in 30 countries. 
Reported partner sales increased by 9% in total and 5% on a like for like basis. Sales in our 26 wholly owned and joint venture 
overseas stores were only marginally up on last year. 

Revenue and income for our international business is set out below. The franchise income is the cost of goods sold to our partners 
plus either a royalty or mark-up.

£m  2012  2011
Franchise income 58.7  49.9
Owned and JV sales 17.6  17.4
Total revenue 76.3 67.3 +13.4%
Profit excluding write offs 8.3  7.0 +18.0%
% to revenue 10.9%  10.4%
Write offs (0.4)  (1.2)
Operating profit 7.9  5.8 +36.9%

We are forecasting that International Retail will make a profit of £8m in the year ahead.
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Directors’ Report and Business Review

nExT SOuRCinG
NEXT Sourcing is the largest single supplier to NEXT and has offices in China, India, Sri Lanka, Bangladesh and Turkey. Sales 
increased by 1.8% in Sterling terms and slightly more in local currencies. Profit, of £21m, was down on last year as the reduced 
commission rates implemented in 2010 took full effect. In addition NEXT Sourcing took a significant one off provision relating to 
faulty stock, most of which was identified before delivery.

£m 2012 2011
External sales 7.5 4.1
Internal sales 511.5 505.7
Total sales  519.0 509.8
Operating profit 21.1 26.7
Operating margin 4.10% 5.20%

We are forecasting NEXT Sourcing profits to recover to around £25m in the year ahead.

OTHER PROfiT anD lOSS MOvEMEnTS
ventura
In July we announced the sale of Ventura to The Capita Group plc for £65m. The proceeds were returned to shareholders through 
share buybacks and the effect of the transaction was neutral in terms of earnings per share. 

Ventura is shown as a discontinued business in these accounts and the profit of £40.6m is made up of:

■■ The £2.6m post-tax trading profit up to the date of sale,

■■ Plus the sale proceeds, 

■■ Less the net asset value and sale costs. 

lipsy
After a very difficult first half, the second half was somewhat better. The sales increase came through Lipsy stores and online, with 
use of the NEXT infrastructure being of significant benefit.

Lipsy now operates 49 stores, 17 are stand-alone and 32 are either separate stores carved out of a NEXT property or integral 
within a NEXT store and thereby leveraging staff, systems and services. We expect Lipsy to have 55 stores by the end of the year 
and the majority will be of the integral type.

Online sales increased by 70% to £9m and, whilst sales through the Lipsy site increased, the biggest growth came from a specific 
Lipsy tab on the NEXT Directory site. This brings Lipsy products to many more potential customers, along with the Directory 
customer service offer.

interest and Taxation
The underlying interest charge of £28m was as forecast and included costs relating to the issue of a new 10 year bond, redemption 
of £158m existing bonds and renewal of our medium term bank facility. Debt averaged £630m at an average rate of 4% on our 
mix of fixed and floating rate debt. For the year ahead we expect debt to average £600m and a similar interest charge of £28m.

Our tax rate would have reduced to 26.3% due to the reduction in corporation tax rates. However, we have resolved a significant 
prior year issue and this resulted in a further rate reduction to 25.1%. On the assumption that corporation tax rates continue to 
reduce as announced, we expect our tax rate to be 25% or less in each of the next two years.

BalanCE SHEET anD CaSH flOw
Cash flow
During the year the Group generated just over £200m of cash and a further £63m from the sale of Ventura. This cash generation 
was after capital expenditure, tax and dividends but before buybacks and additional ESOT cover.

Capital expenditure amounted to £126m and we are planning for £115m in the year ahead, we will continue to invest in profitable 
new stores and will spend less on warehouse developments. At the end of last year we significantly increased our stock-holding 
to improve availability, so throughout the year stock levels were significantly up. As this step change annualised stock levels came 
into line with last year and were just 1% up at the year end. Directory debtor balances rose £74m to £574m, up 15% and only 
slightly less than the growth in sales and was marginally ahead of our expectations.
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Directors’ Report and Business Review

Outlook for Sales
Our plan for the year ahead is similar to the approach taken last year. We anticipate that underlying retail sales will remain negative 
but that we can continue to move the top line forward (albeit modestly) through the addition of profitable new space and the 
continued development of the NEXT Directory. 

It is too early to give a full year forecast but our budget for the first half is for Brand sales to be up between 1% and 4%, with Retail 
sales between 0% and -3% and Directory between +9% and +12%. It is worth noting that the growth in the first quarter’s sales is 
likely to be lower than the second, as last year’s first quarter was boosted by an exceptionally warm Easter and the Royal Wedding. 
Last year growth in the first quarter was 5.2% but in the second only 1.3%.

Outlook for Margins and Costs
We anticipate that bought-in gross margin for the full year (the difference between the cost of the stock and its retail selling price 
before markdown) will be level with last year, with manufacturing costs and selling prices both remaining in line with last year. 
Stocks are being managed tightly and if sales are within our budgeted range we do not anticipate any significant change to 
markdown and obsolescence costs.

We estimate that annual inflation in our existing cost base (i.e. excluding the costs of new space) will be around £36m, driven 
mainly by wage inflation of 2.5% and underlying increases in rent and rates. However we believe that we can offset at least £28m 
of this increase with cost saving initiatives.

Outlook for Cash and Buybacks
We anticipate that the Company will generate £200m of surplus cash after allowing for capital investment, tax and dividends. We 
intend to use up to this amount to buy back shares and at a price of £28.00 that sum would buy around 4% of the shares in issue.

Scenarios for full Year Profit and Earnings per Share
Our budget for the Autumn Winter season has yet to be finalised. However, if sales for the full year fall within our range for the 
Spring Summer season and we buy back 4% of the Company’s shares, then the table below sets out the likely ranges for growth 
in sales, profits and EPS.

low 
Scenario

High 
Scenario

Total Brand Sales +1% +4%
Full Year Profit Before Tax £560m £610m
Full Year Profit Before Tax -2% +7%
EPS Growth +3% +12%

in Summary
NEXT has performed well in a difficult year, delivering good growth in sales and profits combined with exceptional advances 
in earnings per share and dividends. The year ahead looks no less challenging but the Group is well prepared and has further 
opportunities for growth. We remain strongly cash generative and have every chance of delivering another year of increased sales 
and earnings per share.

lord wolfson of aspley Guise 
Chief Executive    
22 March 2012
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key peRfoRmanCe indiCatoRs
KPIs of earnings per share, group cash flows and divisional revenues and profits are detailed in the Chief Executive’s Review and 
elsewhere in this Annual Report. Details of other key performance indicators used in the management of the business are provided 
below:

nExT Retail selling space 2012 2011 Annual change
Store numbers 536 525 +2.1%
Square feet 000’s 6,475 6,073 +6.6%

Selling space is defined as the trading floor area of a store, excluding stockroom, administration and other non-trading areas. 

      2012        2011
nExT Retail like for like sales no. stores lfl % No. stores LFL %
Total like for like 512 -6.3% 505 -4.7%
Underlying 432 -5.7% 449 -4.0%

NEXT defines like for like stores as those that have traded for at least one full year and have not benefited from significant capital expenditure. Sales from these stores 
for the current year are then compared with the same period in the previous year to calculate like for like sales figures. Underlying like for like sales applies the same 
calculation to only those stores which were unaffected by new store openings.

nExT Retail operating margin 2012 2011
Net operating margin last year 14.8% 14.2%
Increase in achieved gross margin +0.7% +0.6%
Change in store payroll costs +0.3% 0.0%
Increase in store occupancy costs -0.4% -0.6%
Increase/decrease in other costs -0.6% +0.6%
net operating margin this year 14.8% 14.8%

Gross margin is the difference between the cost of stock and the initial selling price. Net operating margin is the residual profit after deducting markdowns and all direct 
and indirect trading costs. Both are expressed as a percentage of the achieved VAT exclusive selling price.

nExT Directory customers 2012 2011 Annual change
Average active customers 2,995,000 2,731,000 +9.7%
Average sales per customer £363 £342 +6.1%
Number of printed pages 4,180 4,084 +2.4%

Active customers are defined as cash and credit customers who have placed an order or made a payment in the last 20 weeks. The average for the year is calculated 
as a weighted average of each week’s figure. Average sales per customer are calculated as statutory sales divided by the average number of active customers. 

nExT Directory operating margin 2012 2011
Net operating margin last year 23.7% 21.0%
Increase in achieved gross margin +0.8% +1.3%
Decrease in bad debt +0.4% +0.6%
Decrease in service charge income -0.9% -0.6%
Decrease in other costs +0.1% +1.4%
net operating margin this year 24.1% 23.7%

Share buybacks 2012 2011
Number of shares purchased (’000) 12,482 9,954
% of opening share capital 6.9% 5.2%
Total cost (£m) 289.7 205.4
Average cost per share (£) 23.21 20.63

Total cost of shares purchased includes stamp duty and associated costs.

21127-04NEXTPLC.indd   13 10/04/2012   10:17:26



14 Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 28 January 2012

21127-04  05/04/2012 Proof 5

Directors’ Report and Business Review

Risks & unCeRtainties
The Board has a policy of continuous identification and review of key business risks and oversees the development of processes 
to ensure that these risks are managed appropriately. Executive directors and operational management are delegated with the 
task of implementing these processes and reporting to the Board on their outcomes. The key risks identified by the Board are 
summarised below:

■■ Business strategy development & implementation 
 If the Board adopts the wrong business strategy or does not implement its strategies effectively, the business may suffer. The 

Board needs to understand and properly manage strategic risk in order to deliver long term growth for the benefit of NEXT’s 
stakeholders. The Board reviews business strategy on a regular basis to determine how sales and profit budgets can be 
achieved or bettered and business operations made more efficient. This process involves the setting of annual budgets and 
longer term financial models to identify ways in which the Group can increase shareholder value. Critical to these processes are 
the consideration of wider economic and industry specific trends that affect the Group’s businesses, the competitive position 
of its product offer and the financial structure of the Group. 

■■ Credit risk and liquidity
 NEXT is exposed to credit risk in respect of its Directory and other business customers. Rigorous procedures are in place with 

regard to the Group’s credit customers and these procedures are regularly reviewed and updated as required. Key suppliers 
whose services are essential to the successful running of the business also face credit risk. These include the supply and 
printing of the Directory, provision of core IT systems and certain systems and suppliers in the Group’s delivery and distribution 
network. The Group’s risk assessment procedures for key suppliers enables it to identify alternatives and develop contingency 
plans in the event any of these suppliers fail.

 The Group has adequate medium and long term financing in place to support its business operations for the foreseeable future. 
The Board continues to assess its exposure to counterparty risk in the light of the prevailing economic climate both in the UK 
and globally and its treasury policy is amended as necessary to restrict counterparties with which deposits, investments and 
other transactions may be made. 

■■ Management team
 The success of NEXT relies on the continued service of its senior management and technical personnel and on its ability to 

continue to attract, motivate and retain highly qualified employees. The retail sector is very competitive and NEXT staff are 
frequently targeted by other companies for recruitment. The Remuneration Committee identifies senior personnel, reviews 
their remuneration at least annually and formulates packages that are structured to retain and motivate these employees. In 
addition, the Board considers the development of senior managers to ensure that there are adequate career development 
opportunities for key personnel and an orderly succession and promotion to all important management positions within the 
Group’s businesses. 

■■ Product design & selection
 The success of NEXT depends on providing exciting, beautifully designed, excellent quality clothing and homeware. Success 

also depends upon its ability to anticipate and respond to changing consumer preferences and trends. Many of NEXT’s products 
represent discretionary purchases and demand for these products can decline in periods in which consumer confidence is 
negatively affected. As a consequence, NEXT may be faced with surplus stocks that cannot be sold at full price and have to 
be disposed of at a loss. Executive directors and senior management continually review the design and selection of NEXT’s 
product ranges. This ensures, so far as possible, that there is a well-balanced product mix on offer that is good value for money 
and in sufficient quantities at the right time to meet customer demand.

■■ Key suppliers & supply chain management
 NEXT relies on its supplier base to deliver products on time and to the quality standards it specifies. It continually seeks ways 

to develop and extend its supplier base so as to reduce any over-reliance on particular suppliers of product and services, 
and to improve the competitiveness of its product offer. If input costs rise, for example raw materials or manufacturing labour 
costs, NEXT will work with existing suppliers to mitigate the inflationary impact. When necessary, new sources of supply will be 
developed in conjunction with NEXT Sourcing, as well as through external agents and existing direct suppliers. 

 Non-compliance by suppliers with the NEXT Code of Practice may increase reputational risk. Therefore, NEXT carries out 
regular inspections of its suppliers’ operations to ensure compliance with the standards set out in this code, covering production 
methods, employee working conditions, quality control and inspection processes. NEXT also monitors and reviews the financial, 
political and geographical aspects of its supplier base to identify any factors that may affect the continuity or quality of supply 
of its products. 
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■■ Retail store network 
 Growth of NEXT’s retail business is dependent upon increasing the floor space within its store network and customers spending 

more. NEXT will continue to invest in new stores where its financial criteria are met and refurbish its existing portfolio when 
appropriate. The anticipated effect of sales deflection is factored into new store appraisals but there can be no assurance that 
the impact of new openings will not result in a greater deflection of sales from existing stores.

 Successful development of new stores is dependent upon a number of factors including the identification of suitable properties, 
obtaining planning permissions and the negotiation of acceptable purchase or lease terms. Notwithstanding there have been 
a number of retail failures in recent years, prime sites will generally be in great demand. In such circumstances, increased 
competition can result in higher rents going forwards.

■■ Directory customer base
 Growth of the NEXT Directory business depends upon the recruitment and retention of its customer base and increasing the 

average spend per customer. NEXT will continue to recruit new customers where they satisfy its credit score requirements. 
However, there can be no assurance that new customers will result in higher sales per customer or lower incidence of bad 
debts, compared with the existing customer base. 

 In addition, NEXT requires its internet website to attract new customers and encourage its existing customers to continue 
ordering from the Directory. Management continually review the configuration, content and functionality of the NEXT website to 
ensure it enhances the customer shopping experience. Service levels and response times are also monitored to ensure that the 
website is both resilient and secure at all times.

■■ warehousing & distribution
 NEXT regularly reviews its warehouses and the related logistics operations that support its businesses. Risks include business 

interruption due to physical property damage, access restrictions, breakdowns in warehouse systems, capacity shortages, 
inefficient processes and delivery service failures. Planning processes are in place to ensure there is sufficient warehouse 
handling capacity for expected future business volumes over the short and longer terms. In addition, service levels, warehouse 
handling and delivery costs are monitored continuously to ensure goods are delivered to Retail stores, Directory customers and 
third party clients in a timely and cost-efficient manner. 

■■ iT systems & business continuity
 NEXT is dependent upon the continued availability and integrity of its computer systems. Each of its businesses must record and 

process a substantial volume of data and conduct inventory management accurately and quickly. The Group expects that its 
systems will require continuous enhancements and ongoing investment to prevent obsolescence and maintain responsiveness 
to business needs. Back up facilities and business continuity plans are in place and are tested regularly to ensure that business 
interruptions are minimised and data is protected from corruption or unauthorised access or use.

■■ Call centre capacity & service levels
 NEXT is dependent on the efficient operation of its own and third party call centres to receive and respond to customer orders 

and enquiries. Insufficient manpower, supplier failures and interruption in the availability of telephony systems to meet customer 
service requirements are the principal risks. The Group continuously monitors call centre operations that support the business 
to ensure that there is sufficient capacity to handle call volumes. Capacity forecasting is used to manage peak demands and 
growth in business volumes and customer satisfaction is measured on a regular basis. Business continuity plans ensure the risk 
of business interruption is minimised. 

■■ Treasury & financial risk management
 The main financial risks of NEXT relate to the availability of funds to meet business needs, default by counterparties to financial 

transactions (see Credit risk and liquidity), and fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates. In addition, NEXT’s business 
expansion and share buyback strategy may necessitate the raising of additional finance, which can in turn increase interest 
costs and could give rise to fluctuations in profit. Higher debt levels would also result in an increase in the proportion of cash 
flow dedicated to servicing debt and potentially increase its exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

 NEXT operates a centralised treasury function which is responsible for managing its liquidity, interest and foreign currency risks. 
The Group’s treasury policy allows the use of derivative instruments provided they are not entered into for speculative purposes. 
Further details of the Group’s treasury operations are given in Notes 30 to 34 to the financial statements.

 In addition, NEXT has to fund its defined benefit pension scheme and ensure that sufficient contributions are made to meet 
its outstanding liabilities as they fall due. If NEXT fails to provide sufficient and timely funding, action may be taken by either 
the pension scheme trustees, or the Pensions Regulator, which could result in an acceleration and/or an increase in overall 
contributions towards any resulting deficit. Management meets regularly with the trustees of its pension scheme to assess fund 
performance, as well as to agree future contribution levels and any necessary changes to future benefits to be provided to 
members of the scheme.
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employees
People are key to achieving the Group’s business objectives. NEXT has established policies for recruitment, training and 
development of personnel and is committed to achieving excellence in the areas of health, safety, welfare and protection of 
employees and their working environment. 

Equal opportunities
NEXT is an equal opportunities employer and will continue to ensure it offers career opportunities without discrimination. Full 
consideration is given to application for employment from disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities. 
The Group has continued the employment wherever possible of any person who becomes disabled during their employment. 
Opportunities for training, career development and promotion do not operate to the detriment of disabled employees. 

Training and development
NEXT aims to realise the potential of its employees by supporting their career progression and promotion wherever possible. It 
makes significant investment in the training and development of staff and in training and education programmes which contribute 
to the internal promotion prospects of employees. 

Employee communication
NEXT has a policy of providing employees with financial and other information about the business and ensures that the suggestions 
and views of employees are taken into account. NEXT has an employee forum made up of a network of elected representatives 
from throughout the business who attend meetings at least twice a year with directors and senior managers. This forum enables 
and encourages open discussion on key business issues, policies and the working environment.

Employee share ownership
Approximately 6,800 NEXT employees held options over a total of 9.2 million shares in NEXT plc at January 2012, being 5.5% 
of the total shares in issue. Its employee share ownership trust (“ESOT”) has purchased shares in the market and issues them to 
employees when options are exercised. At the year end the ESOT held 5.6 million shares, the voting rights of which are exercisable 
by the Trustee.

Pension provision
The NEXT Group Pension Plan provides a valuable pension benefit to its participating employees, details of which are set out in 
the Remuneration Report on page 37 and in Note 23 to the financial statements. As at 28 January 2012, there were 1,337 (2011: 
1,612) active members in the Defined Benefit Section and 1,935 (2011: 2,216) members in the Defined Contribution Section.

soCial & enviRonmental matteRs
NEXT is committed to the principles of responsible business. For NEXT, this means addressing key business related social, ethical 
and environmental matters in a way that aims to bring value to all of its stakeholders, including customers and shareholders. 
Continuous improvement lies at the heart of NEXT’s approach and this is achieved by acting in an ethical manner, developing 
positive relationships with suppliers, recruiting and retaining successful and responsible employees, taking responsibility for our 
impact on the environment and delivering support through contributions to charities and community organisations.

NEXT has a Corporate Responsibility (“CR”) forum of 15 senior managers and directors representing key areas of the business, 
co-ordinated by a CR Manager, to develop and implement its strategy. The forum identifies potential issues and opportunities and 
evaluates the success of NEXT’s response. The CR Manager holds regular updates with the executive director responsible for CR 
matters.

A third party provides independent assurance on the content of the Group’s CR report which is published on the Company’s website 
each year. NEXT’s commitment to CR matters is also recognised externally by its continuing membership of the FTSE4Good Index 
Series.
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Suppliers
NEXT is a member of the Ethical Trading Initiative and operates its Code of Practice (“COP”), an established set of ethical trading 
standards as an integral part of the Group’s operations. The NEXT COP has ten key principles that stipulate the minimum standards 
with which suppliers are required to comply in relation to workers’ rights and conditions of work including working hours, minimum 
age of employment, health, safety, welfare and environmental issues. Through its COP, NEXT seeks to ensure all products bearing 
the NEXT brand are produced in a clean and safe environment and in accordance with all relevant laws. 

NEXT is committed to its internal supplier audit and management programme and has a COP audit team of 45 staff (2011: 44). 
The COP team works directly with suppliers to identify and address causes of non-compliance. Each audited factory is measured 
against the COP and is graded against its six tier rating system. The supplier is made aware of its rating and what is required to 
improve that rating via a corrective action plan. This direct approach also allows NEXT to build knowledge and understanding in 
the local communities, as well as monitoring suppliers through its auditing process.

NEXT’s policy for the payment of suppliers is either to agree terms of payment at the start of business or to ensure that the supplier 
is aware of the Group’s payment terms. Payment is made in accordance with contractual and other legal obligations. Trade creditor 
days of the NEXT Group at 28 January 2012 were 27 days (2011: 29 days) based on the ratio of the trade creditors at the end of 
the year to the amounts paid during the year to trade creditors. The Company had no trade creditors at 28 January 2012 or 29 
January 2011.

Customers
NEXT is committed to offering stylish, excellent quality products to its customers. It aims to ensure they are well made, functional, 
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The Trustee of the NEXT Employee Share Ownership Trust (“ESOT”) has waived dividends paid in the year on the shares held by 
the ESOT, see Note 29. 

Directors 
The Board has agreed that all directors will stand for re-election at the 2012 AGM in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance 
Code. All are eligible and willing to serve again. The current Board, including biographical details, is shown on page 24 of this report. 

During the year our Chairman, John Barton, was appointed Chairman of Cable and Wireless Worldwide plc (where he had served 
as a non-executive director) and a non-executive director at Catlin Group plc. He stepped down as non-executive director at WH 
Smith Plc and Topaz Energy and Marine plc. These changes have not impacted on his ability to allocate sufficient time to NEXT, 
as confirmed in his performance appraisal led by the senior independent non-executive director. 

The Board has formally reviewed the performance of all non-executive directors and concluded that they remain independent, 
effective and are committed to their roles at NEXT. In addition, the Board was satisfied that both Jonathan Dawson and Christine 
Cross, who were first appointed to the Board 8 years and 7 years ago respectively, remain independent in both character and 
judgement, and their knowledge and other business interests continue to enable them to contribute significantly to the work and 
balance of the Board. 

The interests of the directors who held office at 28 January 2012 and their families are shown in the Remuneration Report on 
pages 39 to 43. 

auditors
Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors of the Group and their reappointment will be 
proposed at the AGM. 

Disclosure of information to auditors
In accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, each of the persons who is a director at the date 
of approval of this report confirms that:

■■ so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

■■ each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information. 

authority to allot shares
Ordinary resolution 14 will, if passed, renew the directors’ authority pursuant to Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 to allot shares 
or grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares until the conclusion of the AGM in 2013 or, if earlier, 1 August 
2013. This resolution will allow the directors to allot ordinary shares up to a maximum nominal amount of £5,600,000, representing 
approximately one third (33.33%) of the Company’s existing issued share capital as at 20 March 2012. In accordance with the latest 
institutional guidelines, resolution 14 will also allow directors to allot further ordinary shares, in connection with a pre-emptive offer by 
way of a rights issue, up to a total maximum nominal amount of £11,200,000, representing approximately two thirds (66.67%) of the 
Company’s existing issued share capital as at that date. As at 20 March 2012 (being the latest practicable date prior to publication of 
this document) the Company’s issued share capital amounted to £16,814,753, comprising 168,147,532 ordinary shares of 10 pence 
each, none of which are held in treasury. The directors have no present intention of exercising this authority. 

authority to disapply pre-emption rights
Special resolution 15 will, if passed, renew the directors’ authority pursuant to Sections 570 to 573 of the Companies Act 2006 
to allot equity securities for cash without first offering them to existing shareholders in proportion to their holdings. This resolution 
limits the aggregate nominal value of ordinary shares which may be issued by the directors on a non pre-emptive basis to 
£840,000, being less than 5% of the issued ordinary share capital as at 20 March 2012. This authority also allows the directors, 
within the same aggregate limit, to sell for cash shares that may be held by the Company in treasury. The directors do not have 
any present intention of exercising this authority which will expire at the AGM in 2013 or, if earlier, 1 August 2013. The directors 
do not intend to issue more than 7.5% of the issued share capital of the Company for cash under this or previous authorities in 
any rolling three year period without prior consultation with shareholders and the Investment Committees of certain shareholder 
representative organisations.
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On-market purchase of own shares
NEXT has been returning capital to its shareholders by share repurchases as well as dividend since March 2000 as part of its 
strategy for delivering sustainable long term growth in earnings per share. Over this period, and up to 20 March 2012, NEXT has 
returned over £2.6 billion to shareholders by way of share buybacks and almost £1.2 billion in dividends. This buyback activity has 
enhanced earnings per share, given shareholders the opportunity for capital (as well as revenue) returns and has been transparent 
to the financial markets. Share buybacks have not been made at the expense of investment in the business. Over the last five 
years, NEXT has invested almost £670m in capital expenditure to support and grow the business.

Special resolution 16 will renew the authority for the Company to make market purchases (as defined in Section 693 of the 
Companies Act 2006) of its ordinary shares of 10p each provided that:

(a) the aggregate number of ordinary shares authorised to be purchased shall be the lesser of 25,222,000 ordinary shares of 10p 
each (being less than 15% of the issued share capital at 20 March 2012) and no more than 14.99% of the issued ordinary share 
capital outstanding at the date of the AGM, such limits to be reduced by the number of any shares to be purchased pursuant 
to special resolution 17: Off-market purchases of own shares, see below;

(b) the payment per ordinary share is not less than 10p and not more than 105% of the average of the middle market price 
according to the Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of 
purchase or, if higher, the amount stipulated by Article 5(1) of the Buy-back and Stabilisation Regulation 2003; and

(c) the renewed authority will expire at the AGM in 2013 or, if earlier, 1 August 2013.

The directors intend that this authority to purchase the Company’s shares will only be exercised if doing so will result in an increase in 
earnings per share and, being in the interests of shareholders generally, it is considered to promote the success of the Company. The 
directors will also give careful consideration to financial gearing levels of the Company and its general financial position. The purchase 
price would be paid out of distributable profits. It is the directors’ present intention to cancel any shares purchased under this authority. 

The repurchase of ordinary shares would give rise to a stamp duty liability of the Company at the rate of 0.5% of the consideration 
paid.

The total number of employee share options to subscribe for shares outstanding at 20 March 2012 was 9,724,138. This represents 
5.8% of the issued share capital at that date. If the Company were to buy back the maximum number of shares permitted pursuant 
to both the existing authority granted at the 2011 AGM (which will expire at the 2012 AGM) and the authority sought by this 
resolution, then the total number of options to subscribe for shares outstanding at 20 March 2012 would represent 7.9% of the 
reduced issued share capital.

Off-market purchases of own shares
The directors consider that share buybacks are an important means of returning value to shareholders and maximising sustainable 
long term growth in EPS. Contingent contracts for off-market share purchases are an integral part of the Company’s buyback 
strategy and offer a number of additional benefits compared to on-market share purchases:

■■ Contingent contracts allow the Company to purchase shares at a discount to the market price prevailing at the date each 
contract is entered into. Since the 2011 AGM, and up to 20 March 2012, the Company bought back 950,000 shares for 
cancellation under such contracts at a discount of up to 7.1% compared with market prices prevailing when the relevant 
contract commenced.

■■ Low share liquidity often prevents the Company from purchasing a large number of shares on a single day without affecting the 
prevailing market price. Contingent contracts enable the Company to purchase blocks of shares over a period of time without 
risk of distorting the prevailing share price. This purchase method is also cash flow advantageous insofar as it spreads the cash 
outflow of related buybacks.

■■ Contingent contracts enhance flexibility in the Company’s buyback activity when trading volumes are low or the Company 
would otherwise be restricted from buying on-market, e.g. during close periods. The Company has previously entered into 
irrevocable and non-discretionary programmes to allow it to buy shares during close periods. By entering into contingent 
contracts prior to any close period, the Company is also allowed to purchase shares off-market during these periods. Clearance 
from the FSA for use of contingent contracts, including for settlement in close periods, has been obtained.

■■ Competitive tendering involving up to five banks is used which minimises the risk of hidden purchase costs. The tender pricing 
mechanism ensures that the Company retains the benefit of forecast dividends, as well as any dividends declared, on share 
purchase commitments covered by contingent contracts.
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As with any on-market share buyback decision, the directors would use this authority only after careful consideration, taking into 
account market conditions prevailing at the time, other investment opportunities, appropriate financial gearing levels and the 
overall financial position of the Company. The directors will only purchase shares using such contracts if, based on the contract 
discounted price (rather than any subsequent changes to the share price that cannot be predicted), it is earnings enhancing and 
promotes the success of the Company for the benefit of its shareholders generally. It is the directors’ present intention to cancel 
any shares purchased under this authority. 

Special resolution 17 will give the Company authority to enter into further contingent purchase contracts with each of Goldman Sachs 
International, UBS AG, Deutsche Bank AG, HSBC Bank plc and Barclays Bank plc under which shares may be purchased off-market 
at a discount to the market price prevailing at the date each contract is entered into. The total quantity of shares which the Company 
would be permitted to purchase pursuant to this authority would be the lower of 8,000,000 shares or a total of £200 million.

The principal features of the contracts are set out in Appendix 1 to the Notice of the AGM. Copies of the agreements the Company 
proposes to enter into with each of the banks (the “Programme Agreements”) will be available for inspection at the registered office 
of the Company, and at the offices of Allen & Overy LLP, One Bishops Square, London, E1 6AD during normal working hours from 
the date of the Notice of the AGM up to the date of the AGM and at the Meeting itself.

notice of General Meetings
The notice period required by the Companies Act 2006 for general meetings of the Company is 21 days unless shareholders approve a 
shorter notice period, which cannot however be less than 14 clear days. The Company’s AGM must always be held on at least 21 clear 
days’ notice. At the AGM of the Company held in 2011, shareholders authorised the calling of general meetings other than an AGM on 
not less than 14 clear days’ notice and it is proposed that this authority be renewed. The authority granted by special resolution 18, if 
passed, will be effective until the Company’s AGM in 2013, when it is intended that a similar resolution will be proposed. In order to be 
able to call a general meeting on less than 21 clear days’ notice, the Company will make electronic voting available to all shareholders for 
that meeting. The flexibility offered by this resolution will only be used where the directors consider it appropriate, taking account of the 
business to be considered at the meeting and the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Recommendation
Your directors are of the opinion that all resolutions which are to be proposed at the 2012 AGM will promote the success of the 
Company and are in the best interests of its shareholders as a whole and, accordingly, unanimously recommend that you vote in 
favour of the resolutions. 

Share capital and major shareholders
Details of the Company’s share capital are shown in Note 26 to the financial statements.

The Company was authorised by its shareholders at the 2011 AGM to purchase the Company’s own shares. During the financial year the 
Company purchased a total of 12,481,600 ordinary shares with a total nominal value of £1,248,160 (of which 625,000 were purchased 
off-market), at a total cost of £289.7m, representing 6.9% of its issued share capital at the start of the year. These shares were cancelled.

On 28 January 2012 the Company had 168,739,787 shares in issue. Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the Company 
purchased for cancellation 592,255 of its own ordinary shares at a cost of £15.4m under an irrevocable closed season buyback 
agreement and two contingent purchase contracts. As at 20 March 2012, the Company had 168,147,532 shares in issue.

The following information has been received from holders of notifiable interests in the Company’s issued share capital: 

Notifications received
up to 28 January 2012

Notifications received after 28 January 2012  
up to 20 March 2012

No. of 
voting rights

% of 
voting rights*

Nature of 
holding

No. of 
voting rights

% of 
voting rights*

Nature of 
holding

BlackRock, Inc. 24,224,581 14.05 Indirect interest 25,350,082 15.03 Indirect interest
FMR LLC (Fidelity) 21,946,100 13.00 Indirect interest – – –
Schroders plc 8,817,239 4.79 Indirect interest – – –
Next plc Employee Share 
Option Trust 6,814,966 3.95 Direct interest – – –
Legal & General Group plc 7,400,141 3.94 Direct interest – – –

* At date of notification.

Pursuant to notices served under Section 793 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has also been notified that Capital 
Research Global Investors held 6,512,000 shares at 28 February 2012, representing 3.87% of voting rights at that date.
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additional information

Shareholder and voting rights
All members who hold ordinary shares are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM. On a show of hands at a general meeting every 
member present in person and every duly appointed proxy shall have one vote and on a poll, every member present in person or 
by proxy shall have one vote for every ordinary share held or represented. It is intended that voting at the 2012 AGM will be on a 
poll. The Notice of Meeting on pages 93 to 98 specifies deadlines for exercising voting rights.

The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders that may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities 
and voting rights.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the Company other than certain restrictions imposed by laws and 
regulations (such as insider trading laws and market requirements relating to close periods) and requirements of the Listing Rules 
whereby directors and certain employees of the Company require Board approval to deal in the Company’s securities.

The Company’s articles of association may only be amended by a special resolution at a general meeting. Directors are elected or 
re-elected by ordinary resolution at a general meeting; the Board may appoint a director but anyone so appointed must be elected 
by ordinary resolution at the next general meeting. Directors retire and may offer themselves for re-election at general meeting at 
least every three years. However, in line with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code, all directors will be subject to 
re-election at the 2012 AGM. 

Change of control
The Company is not party to any significant agreements which take effect, alter or terminate solely upon a change of control of the 
Company following a takeover bid. However, in the event of a change of control, the Company’s medium term borrowing facilities 
may be subject to early repayment if a majority of the lending banks give written notice to the Company within 30 days of the 
change of control. In addition, should a change of control cause a downgrading in the credit rating of the Company’s 2013, 2016 
and 2021 corporate bonds to sub-investment grade which is not rectified within 120 days after the change in control, holders 
of the bonds have the option to call for redemption of the bonds by the Company at their nominal value together with accrued 
interest. This option is only applicable to a downgrade which occurs as a direct consequence of a change in control.

The Company’s share option plans, and its long term incentive and share matching plans, contain provisions regarding a change of 
control. Outstanding options and awards may vest on a change of control, subject to the satisfaction of any relevant performance 
conditions.

Directors’ service contracts are terminable by the Company on giving one year’s notice. There are no agreements between the 
Company and its directors or employees providing for additional compensation for loss of office or employment (whether through 
resignation, redundancy or otherwise) that occurs because of a takeover bid. 

Corporate governance
The corporate governance statement as required by the UK Financial Services Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR 
7.2.6) comprises the Additional Information section of the Directors’ Report and the Corporate Governance statement included in 
this Annual Report.

By order of the Board

andrew McKinlay 
Secretary 
22 March 2012
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable 
United Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Under company law the directors must not approve the Group financial statements unless they are satisfied that they present fairly 
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company and the Group for that period. In preparing those 
financial statements, the directors are required to:

■■ select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
and then apply them consistently;

■■ present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable 
information;

■■ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements of IFRS is insufficient to enable users to understand 
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group’s financial position and performance; and

■■ state that the Company and the Group have complied with IFRS, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 
in the financial statements.

The directors confirm that the financial statements comply with the above requirements.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s 
transactions and which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and of the Group 
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Responsibility Statement 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

a) the financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use in the  
 European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and results of the Company and the Group;  
 and 

b) the management report incorporated into the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of  
 the business and the position of the Company and the Group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties  
 that they face.

On behalf of the Board

lord wolfson of aspley Guise 
Chief Executive 
22 March 2012  

David Keens 
Group finance Director 
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Directors and Officers

CHaiRMan Of THE BOaRD  
John Barton
Aged 67
Became a member of the Board in 2002 and was appointed Deputy 
Chairman in 2004 and Chairman in 2006. He is also Chairman of 
Cable and Wireless Worldwide plc and a non-executive director 
of Catlin Group Limited. Formerly Chief Executive of JIB Group 
plc, Chairman of Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc, Wellington 
Underwriting plc and Brit Insurance Holdings plc and non-
executive director of WH Smith plc and Hammerson plc.

ExECuTivE DiRECTORS
lord wolfson of aspley Guise, Chief Executive 
Aged 44
Joined the Group in 1991. Appointed Retail Sales Director in 
1993, became responsible for NEXT Directory in 1995 and was 
appointed to the Board in 1997 with additional responsibilities 
for systems. Appointed Managing Director of the NEXT Brand 
in 1999 and Chief Executive in 2001. 

Christos angelides, Group Product Director
Aged 48
Joined the Group in 1986 and was appointed General Manager 
of NEXT’s sourcing office in Hong Kong in 1989, Menswear 
Product Director in 1994 and Womenswear Product Director in 
1998. Appointed to the Board in 2000.

David Keens, Group finance Director
Aged 58
Joined the Group in 1986 and was appointed to the Board 
in 1991. Previous experience includes seven years in the 
accountancy profession and nine years in the UK and overseas 
operations of multinational manufacturers of consumer goods. 

andrew varley, Group Property Director
Aged 61
Joined the Group in 1985 and was appointed to the Board in 
1990. Previous experience includes twelve years in retail and 
commercial property. He is also a non-executive director of 
Metric Property Investments plc.

Company Secretary
Andrew McKinlay

Registered Office
Desford Road, Enderby,  
Leicester, LE19 4AT 
Registered in England, no. 4412362

Registrars
Equiniti Limited

auditors 
Ernst & Young LLP 

investment Bankers
Goldman Sachs International

Stockbrokers 
UBS Limited 

inDEPEnDEnT nOn-ExECuTivE DiRECTORS
Jonathan Dawson, Senior independent  
non-executive Director
Aged 60
Became a member of the Board in 2004. He is also a non-
executive director of National Australia Group Europe Ltd and 
Standard Life Investments Limited and a partner in Penfida 
Partners LLP. Previous experience includes eight years in 
the Ministry of Defence and over twenty years in investment 
banking with Lazard. 

Steve Barber
Aged 60
Became a member of the Board in 2007. Previous experience 
includes almost thirty years in the accountancy profession, 
principally with Price Waterhouse where he was a senior 
partner. Formerly Finance Director of Mirror Group and 
Chief Operating Officer of Whitehead Mann. Founder of The 
Objectivity Partnership. 

Christine Cross
Aged 60
Became a member of the Board in 2005. She is also a 
non-executive director of Sonae Group Ltd (Portugal), 
Woolworths Limited (Australia), Chief Retail Advisor to 
PricewaterhouseCoopers and a retail advisor to Apax Partners 
and Warburg Pincus. Previous experience includes fourteen 
years as a director at Tesco plc and fifteen years lecturing and 
course director roles at Edinburgh and Bath Universities. 

francis Salway
Aged 54
Joined the Board on 1 June 2010. Formerly Chief Executive 
of Land Securities Group plc and past president of the British 
Property Federation.

BOaRD COMMiTTEES
Audit Committee
Steve Barber (Committee Chairman)
Christine Cross
Jonathan Dawson
Francis Salway

Remuneration Committee
Jonathan Dawson (Committee Chairman)
Steve Barber
John Barton
Christine Cross
Francis Salway

Nomination Committee 
John Barton (Committee Chairman)
Steve Barber
Christine Cross
Jonathan Dawson
Francis Salway
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Corporate Governance

Chairman’s introduction
Effective corporate governance is essential to the success of our business.

As Chairman, my role is to manage the Board, ensuring it operates effectively and contains the right balance of skills and experience 
to successfully execute the strategy. The Board is collectively responsible for the long term success of the Company and for setting 
and executing the strategy.

Over many years, NEXT has successfully grown its business and created significant shareholder value against the backdrop of 
a challenging external environment. This is the ultimate measure of our success and reflects our strong corporate governance 
structure and the stable, effective management team we have in place. We remain committed to the robust approach to governance 
which has served the business well.

Code compliance
The Group complied throughout the year under review with the provisions set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code and the 
UK FSA Disclosure and Transparency Rules. Disclosures required by DTR7.2.6 with regard to share capital are presented in the 
‘Share capital and major shareholders’ and ‘Additional information’ sections of the Directors’ Report.

Board composition
The Board includes four independent non-executive directors and the Chairman who bring considerable knowledge, judgement 
and experience to the Group. Terms and conditions of appointment of non-executive directors are available for inspection at the 
Company’s registered office during normal business hours.

Appointments to the Board, as with other positions within the Group, are made on merit according to the balance of skills and 
experience offered by prospective candidates. Whilst acknowledging the benefits of diversity, individual appointments are made 
irrespective of personal characteristics such as race, religion or gender. The Board is comprised of eight male directors and one 
female director. At the next senior management level, there are thirteen male directors and eleven female directors.

The Company’s Articles of Association require directors to submit themselves for re-election by shareholders at least once every 
three years. However, the Board has determined that all directors will stand for re-election at the 2012 AGM in accordance with 
provision B.7.1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

Board responsibilities
The Board is responsible for major policy decisions whilst delegating more detailed matters to its committees and officers including 
the Chief Executive. The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for monitoring implementation of its 
policies by the Chief Executive. The system of internal control is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to 
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board holds regular meetings where it approves major decisions, including significant items of capital expenditure, investments, 
treasury and dividend policy. Board papers including reports from the Chief Executive and Finance, Property and Product Directors 
are circulated in advance of each Board meeting. The Board is responsible for approving semi-annual group budgets. Performance 
against budget is reported to the Board monthly and any substantial variances are explained. Forecasts of each half year’s 
anticipated results are revised and reviewed monthly. Certain other important matters are subject to weekly or monthly reporting 
to the Board or Board Committee, including sales, treasury operations and capital expenditure. There is a regular flow of written 
and verbal information between all directors irrespective of the timing of meetings.

All new directors receive a personalised induction programme, tailored to their experience, background and understanding of the 
Group’s operations. Individual training needs are reviewed regularly and training is provided where a need is identified or requested. 
All directors receive frequent updates on a variety of issues relevant to the Group’s business, including regulatory and governance 
issues.

Meetings of the non-executive directors without the executive directors being present are held at least annually, both with and 
without the Chairman. 

The Board has appointed committees to carry out certain of its duties, three of which are detailed below. Each of these is 
chaired by a different director and has written terms of reference which are available for inspection on the Company’s website  
(www.nextplc.co.uk) or on request.

The Company Secretary attends all Board meetings and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters 
and facilitating the flow of information within the Board.
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attendance at meetings
The Board held nine formal meetings during the year and these were fully attended with the exception of one meeting which Mr 
Angelides was unable to attend. The Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee held four, six and 
one meetings in the year respectively and all were fully attended.

audit Committee and external audit
The Committee consists of the four independent non-executive directors including the senior non-executive director and at least 
one member (Steve Barber, the Committee Chairman) with recent and relevant financial experience.

The Committee holds regular, structured meetings and consults with external auditors and senior management, including internal 
audit, where appropriate. The Chairman of the Group, executive directors and other members of senior management attend 
meetings by invitation or as required.

The Committee considers financial reporting and reviews the Group’s annual and interim financial statements, including underlying 
accounting policies. In particular, any major accounting topics or matters of a subjective nature are discussed by the Committee.

During the year, the Committee’s review of the interim and full year financial statements focused on Directory receivables and 
related provisions, pension fund accounting and actuarial reports, the treatment of exceptional items such as the sale of Ventura, 
the valuation of treasury items and provisioning generally, together with a review of the going concern assumption and the adoption 
of appropriate accounting policies. These items were also addressed at the planning stage of the external audit and there were no 
disagreements between management and external auditors’ conclusions.

In addition, the Committee received reports and presentations from senior management on various activities of the Group, including 
IT systems and controls, overseas operations, treasury and tax, the Bribery Act (including the completion of web-based training), 
NEXT’s involvement with the London 2012 Olympic Games and corporate responsibility matters.

The Group’s internal control functions in areas such as finance, IT, security and product are reviewed regularly by the Committee. 
The Committee also receives frequent briefings on health and safety, risk management, business continuity and corporate 
governance generally. 

The Committee had discussions with the external auditors on audit planning, fees, accounting policies, internal control and audit 
findings. Meetings were also held with the auditors without management present and the performance and independence of the 
auditors has been assessed.

The Audit Committee is responsible for recommending the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors. 
Consideration is given each year to putting the audit out to tender, however it was not considered necessary during the current 
year. Ernst & Young have been the Group’s auditors for over 20 years with regular partner rotation, and the Committee is satisfied 
that they continue to possess the skills and experience required to fulfil their duties effectively and efficiently. As part of this review, 
the Committee Chairman and the Group Finance Director interviewed partners from Ernst & Young to select a replacement for the 
current audit partner who will stand down at the completion of this year’s audit. As described below, policies and procedures are 
also in place to safeguard auditor independence.

The Group’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, have reported to the Committee that, in their professional judgement, they are 
independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner 
and audit staff is not impaired. The Audit Committee has reviewed this statement and concurs with its conclusion.

In order to ensure the continued independence and objectivity of the Group’s external auditors, the Board has established policies 
regarding the provision of non-audit services by the auditors. The Audit Committee’s approval is required in advance for any non-
audit services to be provided where the fees exceed £100,000 for an individual assignment or £150,000 in aggregate for the year. 
The Committee reviews details of audit and non-audit fees twice a year in conjunction with these policies.

Proposed assignments of non-audit services with anticipated fees in excess of £50,000 are generally subject to independent 
tender, and decisions on the allocation of work are made on the basis of competence, cost-effectiveness and relevant legislation. 
A tender process is not always undertaken where the auditors’ existing knowledge of the Group enables them to provide the 
required services more cost-effectively than other parties, for example certain overseas taxation compliance services. The Group’s 
auditors are prohibited from providing any services that would conflict with their statutory responsibilities. 

The Committee has reviewed its terms of reference and composition and believes that both are appropriate.
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Remuneration Committee
The Committee consists of the Chairman and four independent non-executive directors. The Committee, which is chaired by the 
senior non-executive director, determines the remuneration of the executive directors and reviews that of senior management. A 
Remuneration Report is included in this Annual Report which summarises the activities of the Committee. 

nomination Committee
The Committee consists of the Chairman and four independent non-executive directors, including the senior non-executive 
director. The Committee meets whenever necessary to consider, in particular, succession planning for directors and other senior 
executives to ensure the requisite skills and expertise are available to the Board to address future challenges and opportunities. 

External consultants have been used to assist in identifying suitable Board candidates, based on a written specification for each 
appointment. The Chairman is responsible for providing a shortlist of candidates for consideration by the Committee which then 
makes its recommendation for final approval by the Board.

Chairman
There is a clear division of responsibilities between the offices of Chairman and Chief Executive, which is set out in writing and 
agreed by the Board. The Chairman manages the Board to ensure: that the Group has appropriate objectives and an effective 
strategy, that there is a Chief Executive with a team of executive directors able to implement the strategy, that there are procedures 
in place to inform the Board of performance against objectives, and that the Group is operating in accordance with a high standard 
of corporate governance.

The current Chairman was an independent non-executive director of the Company prior to his appointment as Chairman on 
17 May 2006. His other significant commitments are noted on page 24, and the Board considers that these are not a constraint 
on his agreed time commitment to the Company.

Chief Executive
The Board sets objectives and annual targets for the Chief Executive to achieve. The Board is responsible for general policy on 
how these objectives are achieved and delegates the implementation of that policy to the Chief Executive. The Chief Executive is 
required to report at each Board meeting all material matters affecting the Group and its performance.

Management delegation
The Chief Executive has delegated authority for the day to day management of the business to operational management drawn 
from executive directors and other senior management who have responsibility for the respective areas. The most important 
management meetings are the weekly NEXT Brand trading and capital expenditure meetings which consider the performance and 
development of the NEXT Brand through its different distribution channels. These meetings cover risk management of all business 
areas in respect of the NEXT Brand including product, sales, property, warehousing, systems and personnel. Key performance 
indicators are monitored daily and weekly. 

Directors’ conflicts of interest
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board has a formal system in place for directors to declare situational 
conflicts to be considered for authorisation by those directors who have no interest in the matter being considered. In deciding 
whether to authorise a situational conflict, the non-conflicted directors consider the situation in conjunction with their general duties 
under the Companies Act 2006. They may impose limits or conditions when giving an authorisation, or subsequently if they think 
appropriate. Any situational conflicts considered by the Board, and any authorisations given, are recorded in the Board minutes 
and in a register of conflicts which is reviewed annually by the Board. 

Performance evaluation
The performance of the Board, its non-executive directors and committees was formally evaluated during the year. The evaluation 
was conducted by directors completing a detailed questionnaire, the results of which were compiled by the Company Secretary 
for review by the Chairman and the Board as a whole. The Board acknowledged provision B.6.2 of the UK Corporate Governance 
Code requiring the appraisal be externally facilitated at least every three years. Whilst an externally facilitated appraisal was not 
held during the current year, the Board is committed to undertaking such a review in the next two years and has begun the search 
for a suitable third party to facilitate the process. The senior independent non-executive director appraises the performance of the 
Chairman through discussions with all the directors individually and, together with the Chairman, appraises the performance of 
the Chief Executive. The performance of the executive directors is monitored throughout the year by the Chief Executive and the 
Chairman.
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Risk management
The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management process and has delegated responsibility for its implementation to the 
Chief Executive and senior management best qualified in each area of the business. The Board sets guidance on the general level 
of risk which is acceptable and has a considered approach to evaluating risk and reward.

The Board confirms that it has carried out a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control covering financial, 
operational, compliance and other controls and risk management. This includes identifying and evaluating key risks, determining 
control strategies for these risks and considering how they may impact on the achievement of the business objectives. The risk 
management process has been in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report.

Risk management and internal control is a continuous process and has been considered by the Board on a regular basis during the year. 
The Board promotes the development of a strong control culture within the business. During the year the Board addressed the business 
risks which had been identified as key, taking into account any changes in circumstances over the period. The Audit Committee has 
reviewed the level of internal audit resource available within the Group and believes that it is adequate for the size, structure and business 
risks of the Group and is supplemented with appropriate external resources where needed for specific projects.

The Board considers that the Group’s management structure and timely and continuous monitoring of key performance indicators 
provide the ability to identify promptly any material areas of concern. Business continuity plans, procedures manuals and codes of 
conduct are maintained in respect of specific major risk areas and business processes. Through these measures the management 
of business risk is an integral part of Group policy and the Board will continue to enhance risk management and internal control 
where practical.

The use of a Group accounting manual and prescribed reporting requirements for finance teams throughout the Group ensures 
that the Group’s accounting policies are clearly established and that information is appropriately reviewed and reconciled as part 
of the reporting process. The use of a standard reporting package by all entities in the Group ensures that information is presented 
in a consistent way that facilitates the production of the consolidated financial statements.

Personal use of company assets
The Board carried out a review during the year and confirmed that there has been no improper personal use of company assets by 
directors. Policies are in place to ensure proper approval procedures are applied to expense claims and that these are in accordance 
with service agreements. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the level of benefits in kind provided to executive directors.

Relations with shareholders
The Board’s primary role is to promote the success of the Company and the interests of shareholders. The Board is accountable 
to shareholders for the performance and activities of the Group.

The Board communicates with its shareholders in respect of the Group’s business activities through its Annual Report, yearly and 
half yearly announcements, interim management statements and other regular trading statements. Full year, interim and other 
public announcements are presented in a consistent format with a particular focus on making the presentations as meaningful, 
understandable and comparable as possible. This information is also made publicly available via the Company’s website. 

All shareholders have an opportunity to ask questions or represent their views to the Board at the Annual General Meeting. 
The Company’s largest shareholders are invited to the annual and interim results presentations, at which executive and non-
executive directors are present. Non-executive directors may attend other meetings with shareholders on request. Shareholder 
views are also communicated to the Board through the inclusion in Board reports of shareholder feedback and statements made 
by representative associations.

The Board takes care not to disseminate information of a share price sensitive nature which is not available to the market as a 
whole.

Going concern
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set 
out in the Directors’ Report and Business Review. The Directors’ Report also describes the Group’s financial position, cash flows 
and borrowing facilities, further information on which is detailed in the financial statements. Information on the Group’s financial 
management objectives, and how derivative instruments are used to hedge its capital, credit and liquidity risks is provided in Notes 
30 to 34 of the financial statements.

The Directors report that, having reviewed current performance and forecasts, they have a reasonable expectation that the Group 
has adequate resources to continue its operations for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they have continued to adopt the 
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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Remuneration Report

This report sets out details of the remuneration paid to NEXT’s directors for the year to January 2012. The report is divided into three 
parts covering an overview of the year, the remuneration strategy adopted by NEXT’s Remuneration Committee, and regulatory 
disclosures under Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Group (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 
and the relevant parts of the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority and UK Corporate Governance Code. The Board of Directors 
confirms that the Company has complied with these regulations throughout the year under review.

PaRT 1: OvERviEw Of THE YEaR

Information not subject to audit

In a year of challenging economic conditions NEXT delivered a robust performance, achieving record underlying pre-tax profit 
of £570.3m and earnings per share (EPS) which grew by 15 per cent to 255.4 pence. The Company’s key financial objective 
continues to be the delivery of long term, sustainable growth in EPS, and this is the metric against which the Committee assesses 
the annual bonuses of the executive directors. 

annual bonuses and base salaries
Despite NEXT achieving record EPS, the annual bonus payable to executive directors fell to 72% of the maximum potential award, 
giving an aggregate annual bonus of £1.7m compared with the previous year when the maximum bonus was paid. This reduction 
reflects the Company’s EPS performance against the stretching targets set at the start of 2011 by the Remuneration Committee. 
Details of the targets are set out on page 34. Base salaries of these directors increased by 1.2% in February 2011 and by 2.5% in 
February 2012, both increments being in line with the wider Company cost of living awards.

long term incentive plan
Under the LTIP, a variable percentage of a pre-determined number of shares can vest, depending on NEXT’s relative total 
shareholder returns (TSR) performance against the comparator group of companies. The maximum number of shares that may 
be awarded to each director is a percentage of each director’s basic salary at the date of each award, divided by NEXT’s average 
share price over the three months prior to the start of the performance period. Details of awards made to executive directors are 
set out on page 42. 

Since 2008 NEXT has made LTIP awards twice a year and two awards matured in the year to January 2012. Over the performance 
periods of these awards, i.e. between August 2008 to January 2012, NEXT’s share price rose from 955p to 2639p. During this 
period NEXT’s market capitalisation grew from £1.9 billion to £4.4 billion; a further £611m was returned to shareholders through 
share buybacks and a total of £408m was paid in dividends. 

Based on NEXT’s TSR relative to its comparator group of around 20 other UK retailers, and the Committee’s review of NEXT’s 
overall performance against wider economic and other conditions, both LTIP awards have vested. The award that matured in 
July 2011 vested 100% as the Company’s TSR ranked third against the comparator group over the three years to July 2011 and 
the award that matured in January 2012 vested 83% as the Company’s TSR was ranked fifth. It should also be noted that the 
calculation of TSR excludes the £611m returned to shareholders through share buybacks over this period.

The value of awards that vested this year is higher than last year; this is mainly due to the rise in the Company’s share price over 
the relevant performance period and not to any increase in the maximum number of shares originally awarded. The Committee 
has determined that the maximum value of any LTIP awards that vest for a participant in a year should be capped at £2.5m and, 
following discussions with the Chief Executive, this cap will be applied to his awards that have vested this year. After this restriction, 
the total value to the executive directors of the two LTIP awards that vested during the year is estimated at £6.9m. Of this sum, 
approximately 60% or £4.2m, is attributable to the growth in NEXT’s share price over the performance periods. 

21127-04NEXTPLC.indd   29 10/04/2012   10:17:28



30 Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 28 January 2012

21127-04  05/04/2012 Proof 5

Governance

Remuneration Report

NEXT’s share price growth compared with the FTSE 100 and the FTSE General Retailers indices over this period is illustrated by 
the graph below: 

nExT plc Share Price Performance Relative to fTSE General Retailers and fTSE 100
July 2008 – Jan 2012 
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Total performance-based remuneration
Aggregate performance-based remuneration of the executive directors has increased from £4.9m last year to circa £8.6m – see 
pages 40 to 41.  As noted above, the aggregate annual bonus level fell last year by £0.6m to £1.7m; therefore the increase in the 
executive directors’ performance-based remuneration is primarily due to the increase in the NEXT share price, as reflected in the 
value of the NEXT shares in the LTIP awards that vested during the year.

The Remuneration Committee has analysed carefully the level of performance remuneration earned by the executive 
directors and considers that it is a fair reflection of nExT’s operating and financial performance and that it is well 
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PaRT 2: REMunERaTiOn STRaTEGY

Information not subject to audit

The Remuneration Committee’s objective continues to be to ensure that the remuneration paid to NEXT’s senior executives is 
appropriate in both amount and structure and, importantly, is directly linked to the Company’s annual and longer term performance 
to ensure alignment with the interests of shareholders. The Committee’s approach reflects its belief that stable and transparent 
remuneration structures are a key element in ensuring a fair system for rewarding personal and collective contribution across the 
business. There are bonus structures at all levels throughout the Company’s business, including Head Office, stores, call centres 
and warehouses. The Committee focuses particularly on ensuring that a competitive and appropriate base salary is paid to 
directors and senior managers, together with disciplined incentive arrangements that, wherever possible, are:

■■ aligned with shareholders’ interests and with NEXT’s long term business strategies;

■■ measured against challenging benchmarks, including both absolute financial targets (which are set in advance) and relative 
share performance;

■■ a mix of annual and three year performance periods;

■■ paid in a combination of cash and shares; and

■■ transparent, i.e. without any ‘soft’ non-financial targets which would allow the Committee undue discretion to award bonuses 
that do not reflect actual financial performance. 

We aim to maintain a stable remuneration structure whereby executive directors and senior management know at the start of each 
year the potential scale of rewards available to them, and the relevant performance thresholds, whilst avoiding significant increases 
in base salaries. Over each of the past three years, base salary levels for all grades across NEXT, including executive directors, have 
risen by no more than 1.2%, excluding individual merit awards. Individual merit awards to employees are only given after a careful 
assessment process which reviews personal performance. Save for a merit award to Christos Angelides made in February 2010, no 
executive director has received a merit or promotion award during the last three years. As noted above, for the current financial year, 
base salaries across NEXT will rise by 2.5%, well below the level of general price inflation. The Committee considers it important that 
base salary increases are kept under tight control given the potential multiplying effect of such increases on future costs.

The Committee gives careful consideration to ensuring that there is an appropriate balance in the overall remuneration structure 
between both annual and longer term awards as well as between cash and share-based payments. We recognise, however, that 
corporate performance and share price performance may not always be perfectly correlated in any single accounting period. 
Notwithstanding this, the Committee believes that the present structure, which is weighted towards rewarding sustainable long 
term performance, is well aligned with shareholders’ interests. This is particularly evident from the high proportion of executive 
directors’ performance-related pay in the year to January 2012 that derived from both growth in EPS and NEXT’s share price, as 
opposed to inflation in salaries or annual bonus.

annual bonus
Each January the Committee sets financial performance thresholds for the principal incentive arrangements. In addition to the 
annual bonus targets for executive directors, these include parameters for annual bonuses payable to other Head Office staff, the 
Share Matching Plan (which is open to executive directors and other senior executives), and management share options (open 
to middle management and senior store staff). Details of the relevant thresholds for these awards are set out later in this report. 

Annual bonuses to executive directors are paid only if there has been growth in pre-tax EPS, with the amount payable being 
dependent on achieving a target range determined by the Committee at the start of each year. The level of annual bonus earned 
by executive directors in the year to January 2012 fell by 28% from the previous year as the maximum EPS performance target set 
by the Committee was not achieved. Against the background of a challenging consumer economy the Committee will continue to 
set stretching but realistic targets for awards. 

long term incentive plan (lTiP)
The Committee also reviews the composition of the comparator group of around 20 UK listed retailers that are used as a benchmark 
to assess the level of any vesting of LTIP awards. At the end of each three year performance period the Committee further reviews 
NEXT’s overall performance to determine whether the LTIP’s general economic underpin has been satisfied. From July 2008, LTIP 
awards have been made every six months at half the previous annual rate, as opposed to a single annual award. The Committee 
believes that this arrangement enhances the portfolio effect for participants through offering more frequent but smaller awards. As 
noted above, two awards vested during the year, details of which are set out on pages 40 to 41 together with the Committee’s 
conclusions on the economic underpin review. 
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Share Matching Plan (SMP)
Two years ago, with the approval of shareholders, the Committee introduced the SMP. The purpose of this incentive plan was to 
encourage greater ownership of NEXT shares amongst the executive directors and other senior executives and thereby further 
align their interests with shareholders. Participants who invest a proportion of their annual cash bonus in NEXT shares can receive 
up to a maximum of two times their original investment in NEXT shares, calculated on a pre-tax basis. Any matching is conditional 
upon achieving pre-determined fully diluted EPS growth targets set by the Committee for the following three years. In addition to 
the executive directors, around 20 other senior executives participate in the scheme. 

The Committee has noted the high level of participation in the SMP by the senior executive team and expects to continue to issue 
annual invitations. The Committee is also mindful of the annual accounting cost of the SMP and the high level of payments made 
under the LTIP this year. Against this background, the Committee has decided to amend investment parameters for the SMP in 
2012 in three ways: 

■■ the amount of annual bonus that may be invested under the SMP has been reduced from 100 per cent of an individual’s cash 
bonus to maxima of between £50,000 and £125,000; 

■■ the matching award has been reduced from a maximum of two times to a maximum of one times the initial investment; and 

■■ the maximum EPS performance threshold has been further increased to aggregate growth of 30% for the 3 year performance 
period of the 2012 award. 

Further details are set out on pages 35 to 36. Whilst the Committee intends the SMP should operate for the foreseeable future, 
the Committee will continue to review its suitability, structure and thresholds each year. The first SMP award is due to vest at the 
end of June 2013.

EPS and performance measurement
As noted previously, the Committee reviews each year the basis of annual bonus and performance thresholds under the SMP. We 
have again concluded that EPS remains the most appropriate measurement basis for the following reasons:

■■ NEXT has used EPS as the determining measurement for many years; it is therefore both consistent and entirely transparent 
to participants and shareholders. The Committee will however exercise its discretion to adjust EPS to reflect what it considers 
to be a fairer outcome for shareholders. Thus, for the year to January 2012, the Committee decided to exclude from the 
calculation of EPS the capital profit achieved by NEXT on the sale of Ventura and the exceptional VAT refund and interest relating 
to past years;

■■ NEXT is predominantly a single business selling products through a number of channels under the NEXT brand. As such its 
earnings are not derived from uncorrelated businesses and therefore a Group metric such as EPS is logical and consistent with 
NEXT’s strategy;

■■ EPS continues to be the core financial yardstick by which management and the Board measure and assess the overall 
performance of NEXT; and

■■ the use of EPS in determining annual bonuses and awards under the SMP is complemented by the application of TSR for  
the LTIP. 

Furthermore, the Committee considers it right that the impact of share buybacks be included in performance measurement as, 
for more than a decade, this has been one of the primary strategies of the Company in returning value to shareholders. Share 
buybacks are subject to advance Board approval and are only undertaken after the Board is satisfied that the ability of the Group 
to invest in the business and to continue to grow the annual dividend would not be prejudiced.

The Committee believes that the remuneration strategy it pursues, and the structures implementing that strategy, 
have contributed positively to maintaining the stable and highly motivated management team at nExT who have 
consistently delivered strong performances for shareholders. 
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PaRT 3: REGulaTORY DiSClOSuRES

Information not subject to audit

Further details of each of the components of the directors’ remuneration are given in the report below.

THE REMunERaTiOn COMMiTTEE

During the year the Committee comprised the following independent non-executive directors:

Jonathan Dawson (Committee Chairman) 
Steve Barber 
John Barton 
Christine Cross 
Francis Salway

The Committee met six times during the year under review and all meetings were fully attended. 

Role of Remuneration Committee
The Committee determines the remuneration of the Group’s Chairman and executive directors, and reviews that of senior 
executives. It is also responsible for determining the targets for any performance related pay schemes operated by the Company, 
approves any award of the Company’s shares under share option or incentive schemes to the Company’s employees and oversees 
any major changes in employee benefit structures throughout the Group. The Committee members have no conflicts of interest 
arising from cross-directorships and no director is permitted to be involved in any decisions as to his or her own remuneration. The 
remuneration of non-executive directors is decided by the executive directors of the Board. The Committee’s terms of reference 
are available on the Company’s website (www.nextplc.co.uk) or on request from the Company Secretary.

Remuneration policy
The remuneration packages of directors are reviewed by the Committee at least annually on the same basis as other employees 
of the Group. The review takes into account market practice and performance of the individual and of the business. Other factors 
taken into account include the experience and responsibility of the individuals concerned, together with the Group’s wider pay 
structures. In particular, pay and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group are considered by the Committee to ensure that 
any differences in the pay and employment conditions of directors are justified.

From time to time, the Committee commissions benchmarking exercises by independent consultants covering all aspects of 
directors’ remuneration including share incentives and other performance related reward plans. The Committee also receives 
information from various independent sources on directors’ remuneration and draws on members’ experience from other board 
positions. The components of the Group’s remuneration packages and directors’ service contract information are detailed below.

Remuneration is structured with the objective that no single component or measure dominates and that interests are aligned 
over different time periods with other employees and shareholders. Remuneration policy does not conflict with the Company’s 
approach to environmental, social and corporate governance matters and the Committee believes that the current arrangements 
do not encourage directors to take undue business risks. Packages include basic salary, annual bonus based on pre-tax EPS, a 
long term incentive plan based on total shareholder return (“TSR”), a share matching plan based on fully diluted post-tax EPS and 
participation in NEXT’s group pension plan. There are no uncapped incentive plans. 

assistance to the Committee
During the period under review the Committee received input from the Chief Executive and Group Finance Director and retained 
the services of Aon Hewitt and FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP to provide independent external advice regarding executive 
remuneration. Aon Hewitt also provided the Board of the Trustee to the NEXT Group Pension Plan with investment advice up to 
September 2011. PricewaterhouseCoopers provided independent verification services of total shareholder returns for NEXT and 
the comparator group of companies under the NEXT LTIP.

Board remuneration packages
Salary
Directors’ salaries are set by reference to those prevailing in the market, particularly within other major retail companies, and 
according to individual performance, experience and responsibility. Where appropriate, merit increases are awarded. With effect 
from 1 February 2012 an annual salary increase of 2.5% was awarded to executive directors, in line with the wider Company 
award. No merit awards were made to executive directors in the year.
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Annual performance related bonus
The executive directors participate in an annual performance related bonus scheme which is based on pre-tax EPS targets 
set annually by the Committee. These targets are set taking account of a range of factors, including consensus analysts’ profit 
forecasts, the Company’s own internal budgets for the relevant period and the wider background of the UK economy. Whilst 
company forecasts are not disclosed in advance for reasons of commercial sensitivity, the targets and performance against them 
are disclosed in the relevant year’s Remuneration Report. 

For the year to January 2012, performance targets were set requiring pre-tax EPS of 320p before any bonus became payable. 
A maximum bonus of 150% of salary in the case of the Chief Executive and 100% of salary for the other executive directors 
was payable if pre-tax EPS exceeded 350p. A sliding scale of payments operated for performance between the minimum and 
maximum levels. Based on the pre-tax EPS of 340p (adjusted as described below) an annual bonus of 72% of salary (108% in 
respect of the Chief Executive) was earned. In the case of the Chief Executive, any annual bonus in excess of 100% of basic salary 
is payable in shares, deferred for a period of two years and will be forfeited if he voluntarily resigns prior to the end of that period.

Following the sale of Ventura during the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the impact on EPS for the purposes of 
performance measurement of annual bonus, SMP and management share options. The Committee noted that Ventura’s trading 
profit up to the time of its sale and the exceptional profit on its disposal are reported in the Group’s consolidated financial statements 
as earnings arising from discontinued operations. By contrast, any investment income arising from, and EPS enhancement on 
share buybacks financed by, the Ventura sale monies are included in the calculation of EPS on continuing operations.

In determining whether any incentive awards should be made, the Committee concluded that current year EPS reported in 
accordance with IFRS (which includes the exceptional capital gain from the disposal of Ventura) should be reduced to a more 
representative measure of sustainable profitability. The Committee therefore determined that pre-tax EPS should include Ventura’s 
trading profits up to sale of £2.9m but exclude the £38.0m capital profit achieved on disposal. In addition, the Committee decided 
that an exceptional recovery of VAT overpaid in past years and related interest totalling £9.2m should be excluded from the 
calculation of this adjusted EPS. Had the Committee not made these adjustments the unadjusted pre-tax EPS of 369p would have 
resulted in a higher bonus of 100% of salary (150% in the case of Simon Wolfson). 

Long term incentive plan
From 2008 the Remuneration Committee adopted a semi-annual, rather than annual, grant policy. The Chief Executive, other 
executive directors and senior management receive grants of conditional awards of NEXT shares, equal to 100%, 75% and 60% 
of basic annual salary respectively every six months (in or around March and September each year). Therefore, they are able to 
receive awards of up to 200%, 150% and 120% of basic salary annually. For Christos Angelides, in recognition of the strategic 
importance of his product skills to the Group, each of the four semi-annual LTIP awards with performance periods ending July 
2012 through to January 2014 were increased from 75% of salary to 125%. No equivalent increase for other executive directors 
was made.

Under the plan, performance is measured over periods of three years, which commence in February and August each year, by 
comparing TSR against at least 20 other UK listed retail companies. If no entitlement has been earned at the end of a three year 
performance period then the award for that period will lapse and there is no retesting. Awards made for all periods starting on or 
before January 2009 have now either vested or lapsed. For periods from August 2008 onwards, before allowing any of the awards 
to vest, the Remuneration Committee must have regard to the performance of the Company in light of underlying economic and 
other circumstances, including EPS performance of the Company and of other UK retailers over the period. Whilst not disclosed in 
advance, the factors taken into account in determining the awards are disclosed in the relevant year’s Remuneration Report (see 
pages 40 to 41 for details of the performance reviews for awards vesting in the year). 

The comparator group of companies for the three year performance periods to January and July 2012 was as follows:

ASOS Findel J Sainsbury N Brown 
Burberry French Connection Kesa Signet
Carpetright Halfords Kingfisher Tesco
Carphone Warehouse HMV Marks & Spencer WH Smith
Debenhams Home Retail Group Morrisons
Dixons Retail JJB Sports Mothercare
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For subsequent performance periods the changes to the comparator group above are:

1.  period ending January 2013 – no change;
2.  periods ending July 2013 and January 2014 – Ted Baker added and Findel, French Connection and JJB Sports removed;
3.  period ending July 2014 – Supergroup added and Signet removed; and
4.  period ending January 2015 – Dunelm Group added and HMV removed.

The Committee considers that the comparator group consists of UK listed retail companies which are most comparable with NEXT 
in size and/or nature of their business and believes that comparison against such a group of companies is more likely to reflect the 
Company’s relative performance against its peers, thereby resulting in awards being made on an appropriate basis.

If TSR is below the median ranking company in the comparator group there will be no entitlement to any of the award. Median 
performance earns an entitlement to 20% of the maximum award. For performance above the median the entitlement will rise, 
with the maximum award being earned for performance which places the Company within the upper quintile in the comparator 
group. Performance against the relative TSR performance targets is calculated by PricewaterhouseCoopers and reported to the 
Remuneration Committee. The maximum aggregate annual award allowed under the current rules of the plan is 200% of basic 
salary (300% in exceptional circumstances). 

Details of potential awards granted for outstanding performance periods are as follows:

Performance periods commencing

    Maximum potential award granted (% of basic salary)
Simon 

wolfson
Christos 

angelides
David Keens & 
andrew varley

Other 
employees

August 2009, February 2010, August 2010 and February 2011 100% 125% 75% 60%
August 2011 100% 75% 75% 60%

The Committee has discretion as to whether entitlements earned are payable in NEXT shares or cash and to date it has allowed 
participants the choice. Entitlements earned are not pensionable and are based on salary and share price at the start of the 
performance period. No individuals included in the plan have received grants under the management share option scheme in the 
same year.

Share matching plan 
The share matching plan (“SMP”) was approved by shareholders at the 2010 AGM and awards made in June 2010 and April 
2011, details of which are given below. Under the SMP around 25 senior executives (including the four executive directors) are 
able to invest part or all of their annual bonus in NEXT shares (“Investment Shares”) and in return they receive a conditional award 
of Matching Shares (“Matching Shares”). Investment Shares may be purchased out of the post-tax cash element of any annual 
bonus, subject to limits specified by the Remuneration Committee. Deferred shares (i.e. any compulsory deferral element of the 
annual bonus, which currently only applies to the Chief Executive) do not qualify. 

Under the SMP awards made in 2010 and 2011 participants are eligible to receive a maximum matching award of 2 Matching 
Shares for every 1 Investment Share calculated on the value of gross bonus used to acquire their Investment Shares, with a 
minimum of 0.5 Matching Shares being received on achievement of a pre-determined performance threshold. Vesting of matching 
awards is subject to remaining in employment, the achievement of 3-year performance targets and the retention of Investment 
Shares. The scheme contains the ability to grant a higher matching ratio of up to 3:1 if the Committee considers it appropriate; 
however the Committee intends to operate the SMP with a maximum 2:1 match and will consult with major shareholders before 
any higher award is made. As noted above, a reduced match will be offered for the award to be made in 2012.

Vesting of the awards made in June 2010 and April 2011 is dependent solely on achieving the fully diluted post-tax EPS targets 
detailed below:

      Required fully diluted EPS (pence)

Date of grant
for 0.5:1 

match
for 1:1 
match

for 2:1 
match

June 2010 191.5 206.5 221.5
April 2011 231.3 240.2 258.1
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These targets require a minimum three year growth in EPS of 8.8% and 12% respectively before any shares vest and a maximum 
award is only achieved if EPS growth reaches 25.8% and 25% over three years respectively. The effective matching ratio will be 
calculated on a straight line basis for EPS falling between each of the threshold points. Details of the calculation of fully diluted 
EPS are provided in Note 10.

The Committee has reviewed the parameters of awards to be made in 2012 and has reduced the level of the matching award, 
limited the amount participants can invest and increased the maximum performance hurdle. For the year to January 2015, the 
fully-diluted EPS hurdle will be 267.2 pence for a minimum match of 0.25 of a share to vest and 310.2 pence for the maximum 
match of one share with vesting calculated on a straight-line basis across the range. The minimum threshold requires fully diluted 
EPS growth of 12% and the maximum match requires growth of 30% over the three years.
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Group pension plan 
Executive directors are eligible for membership of the NEXT Group Pension Plan (the “Plan”) which has been approved by HM 
Revenue & Customs and consists of defined benefit and defined contribution sections. 

The trustee of the Plan is a limited company, NEXT Pension Trustees Limited (the “Trustee”). The Board of the Trustee includes 
members of the Plan, a pensioner member and an independent director who is also the Chairman of the Trustee. Two of the 
directors are member nominated directors and cannot be removed by NEXT; the other directors, including the independent 
director, are appointed by and can be removed by NEXT. All directors of the Trustee receive a fee for their services, including those 
directors who are also employees of NEXT. No director of the Company is a director of the Trustee.

The Plan’s investments are kept separate from the business affairs of the NEXT Group and the Trustee holds them in trust. 
Responsibility for investment of the Plan’s funds has been delegated by the Trustee to professional investment managers.

From October 2008 the Group initiated a salary sacrifice scheme whereby members from either section can elect to receive 
a reduced gross salary in exchange for enhanced employer pension contributions. The participation of members in the salary 
sacrifice scheme does not result in any overall increase in costs to the Group.

Defined contribution section
Employees of the Group can join the defined contribution section of the Plan. Members elect to pay either 3% or 5% of their 
pensionable earnings which is matched by the Company. For death prior to retirement, a lump sum of three times the member’s 
basic salary at the previous April is payable along with the current value of the member’s fund. 

Defined benefit section
The defined benefit section of the Plan was closed to new members in 2000 but continues for the benefit of existing members. 
This section provides members with a retirement benefit of one sixtieth or one eightieth (depending on the member’s chosen 
contribution rate) of final pensionable earnings for each year of pensionable service. 

This section also provides a lump sum death in service benefit and dependants’ pensions on death in service or following retirement. 
Children’s pensions are only payable on death in service. In the case of ill-health retirement only the accrued pension is payable. 
All benefits are subject to Plan limits. Increases to pensions in payment are at the discretion of the Trustee although pensionable 
service post-1997 is subject to limited price indexation. 

For all current members, pensionable earnings are composed of basic pay, overtime and, prior to 1 October 2006, annual 
performance bonuses. No other items of remuneration are taken into account. From 1 October 2006, sales and profit related 
bonuses are no longer taken into account and the normal retirement age under the Plan was increased from 60 to 65. 

Members contribute 3% or 5% of pensionable earnings, whilst the Company currently makes contributions at the rate of 17.5%. 
The most recent full actuarial valuation of the defined benefit section’s financial position was undertaken as at 31 March 2010. 
Adjusting these results for the subsequent buy-in transaction (described more fully in Note 23) resulted in a fully funded position 
on an actuarial basis. The Company and the Trustee of the Plan have agreed that no further special contributions are required at 
this time. As calculated in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the surplus in the Plan at 28 January 2012 
was £35.1m; further details are given in Note 23 to the financial statements.

Certain members whose accrued or projected pension fund value exceeds their personal lifetime allowance are provided with 
benefits through an unfunded, unapproved arrangement where they so elect. The relevant members contribute towards the 
additional cost of providing these benefits by a deduction of 5% of pensionable earnings. 

Since April 2011, where existing members have reached either the annual or lifetime pension contributions limits, the Company 
has offered those members the choice of leaving the defined benefit section and either joining the defined contribution section (with 
an enhanced Company contribution) or taking a salary supplement, equal (depending on their existing contributions and benefits) 
to 10% or 15% of their base salary. 

Specific information in respect of executive directors’ pension entitlements is detailed on page 44. 
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Other benefits
Executive directors receive benefits which may include the provision of a fully expensed company car or cash alternative, private 
medical insurance, annual subscriptions to appropriate professional bodies and staff discount when purchasing the Group’s 
merchandise. Other employees are also eligible for certain of these benefits.

Non-executive directors receive a discount when purchasing the Group’s merchandise but do not participate in any of the Group’s 
bonus, pension, share option or other incentive schemes.

Service contracts
Executive directors
Each of the executive directors has a rolling service contract which commenced on 1 February 2012 and which is terminable by 
the Company on giving one year’s notice. The Company has reserved the right to make a payment in lieu of notice on termination 
of an executive director’s contract. If notice of termination is given immediately following a change of control of the Company, the 
executive director may request the immediate termination of his contract and a payment of liquidated damages from the Company 
equal to the value of his basic salary and benefits in kind. In the event of any termination payment being made to a director, the 
Committee will take full account of that director’s duty to mitigate any loss and where appropriate the Committee may seek 
independent professional advice prior to authorising such payment. 

Apart from service contracts no director has had any material interest in any contract with the Company or its subsidiaries.

Non-executive directors
Remuneration of the non-executive directors of the Company is determined by the Chairman and the executive directors. 
Remuneration consists of a basic fee for services in connection with Board and Board Committee meetings of £50,000 per 
annum. Additional fees of £10,000 per annum are paid for the roles of Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, Chairman of the 
Audit Committee and Senior Independent Non-executive Director. There are no share options or performance related elements in 
their remuneration. 

Letters of appointment for the Chairman and non-executive directors do not contain fixed term periods; however they are appointed 
in the expectation that they will serve for a minimum of six years, subject to satisfactory performance and successful re-election 
at Annual General Meetings. 

Dates of appointment and notice periods for non-executive directors are set out below:

Date of 
appointment notice period

Chairman
John Barton 17 May 2006 12 months
non-executive directors
Steve Barber 1 June 2007 1 month
Christine Cross 19 January 2005 1 month
Jonathan Dawson 13 May 2004 1 month
Francis Salway 1 June 2010 1 month

Executive directors’ external appointments
Andrew Varley is a non-executive director of Metric Property Investments plc and the Remuneration Committee has approved his 
retention of the director’s fee of £41,200 per annum for this appointment. No other executive director holds any non-executive 
directorships outside the Group. 
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Directors’ interests
The Company has no formal share ownership requirement for executive directors although all executive directors have significant 
holdings (see below) and also participate in the SMP.

Directors’ beneficial interests in shares at the beginning of the financial year and at the end of the year were as follows:

Ordinary shares of 10p each

 

2012
 no. of

 shares

2011
 No. of
 shares

Simon Wolfson 1,638,010 1,621,571
Christos Angelides 72,975 60,000
Steve Barber 10,000 10,000
John Barton 16,000 16,000
Christine Cross 5,598 2,500
Jonathan Dawson 5,000 5,000
David Keens 151,574 140,599
Francis Salway 9,258 2,556
Andrew Varley 76,460 67,254

The executive directors are also (together with other employees) discretionary beneficiaries under the ESOT and, as such, were 
each considered to be interested in the 5,637,388 shares owned by the Trust at 28 January 2012. David Keens has a beneficial 
holding of £83,000 (2011: £83,000) nominal value of the Company’s 2013 5.25% corporate bonds.

Save for the acquisition of 385 ordinary shares by David Keens on exercise of one of his Sharesave options on 30 January 2012, 
there have been no changes to directors’ interests in the shares of the Company from the end of the financial year to 20 March 
2012. Full details of directors’ interests in the shares and share options of the Company are contained in the Register of Directors’ 
Interests which is open to inspection. 

Performance Graph 
The graph below illustrates the performance of the Company over five years when compared with the FTSE All Share and FTSE 
General Retailers index. These have been selected to illustrate the Company’s total shareholder return performance against a wide 
UK index and a sector specific index for the five year period ending January 2012. 

nExT plc Performance Chart 2007 – 2012
Total Shareholder Return
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Information subject to audit

Directors’ remuneration 
£’000 Salary/fee

annual
performance 

related 
bonus Benefits

Salary 
supplement1

Total 
2012

Total 
2011

Chairman
John Barton 250 – – – 250 225
Executive directors
Simon Wolfson 697 753 36 – 1,486 1,757
Christos Angelides 506 364 30 – 900 1,031
David Keens 466 3852 19 46 916 948
Andrew Varley 346 249 30 49 674 746
non-executive directors
Steve Barber 60 – – – 60 54
Nick Brookes – – – – – 13
Christine Cross 50 – – – 50 45
Jonathan Dawson 70 – – – 70 59
Francis Salway 50 – – – 50 30
Total 2,495 1,751 115 95 4,456 4,908
Total 2011 2,417 2,336 121 34 4,908

1  Andrew Varley and David Keens received a salary supplement of 15% in lieu of pension provision from April and June 2011 respectively. Prior to April 2011, 
Mr Varley’s salary supplement was 10%.

2  In addition to his annual performance related bonus of £335,000, the Remuneration Committee approved a special bonus payment of £50,000 to David Keens in 
respect of his contribution to the sale of Ventura.

All directors were members of the Board throughout the two year period covered by the table above with the exception of Nick 
Brookes who retired as a director on 18 May 2010 and Francis Salway who was appointed to the Board on 1 June 2010. 

Simon Wolfson was the highest paid director in the current and previous year; £56,000 of his annual performance related bonus 
noted above is payable in NEXT shares (2011: £345,000), deferred for a period of two years and will be forfeited if he voluntarily 
resigns prior to the end of that period.

The Company also paid a pension under the unfunded, unapproved arrangement to a former director of the Company of £35,606 
(2011: £34,738). 

long term incentive plans
The first of the semi-annual, rather than annual, awards was made in September 2008 (the July 2008 award) and related to 
the three year performance period to July 2011. The Company’s TSR ranked third in the comparator group of 20 other listed 
retail companies and 100% vesting accrued. Before allowing the award to vest the Remuneration Committee also assessed the 
performance of the Company during the performance period in light of underlying economic and other conditions (‘the economic 
underpin’). The Committee noted that NEXT’s EPS compound growth of 12.2% and pre-tax profit compound growth of 6.1% over 
the three year period, was well ahead of RPI compound growth of 2.7%. In addition, NEXT’s dividend had grown broadly in line 
with EPS and the Company had returned over £500m to shareholders through buybacks over the relevant period. The Committee 
also assessed NEXT’s earnings growth against selected comparable major UK retailers and concluded that NEXT had performed 
favourably. Taking these factors into account, the Committee determined that the economic underpin performance condition for 
the July 2008 award had been satisfied. Details of the amounts that vested for each executive director are detailed in the table 
below. The awards were cash settled.
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The January 2009 LTIP award matured in January 2012. The Company’s TSR over this performance period ranked fifth against 
the comparator group of 22 other listed retail companies which corresponded to a vesting of 83% of the maximum award. The 
Remuneration Committee has assessed the performance of the Company in this period on the same basis as the July 2008 LTIP 
award and noted that NEXT’s EPS compound growth of 17.9% and pre-tax profit compound growth of 10.0% were both well 
ahead of RPI compound growth of 4.2%. In addition, NEXT’s dividend had grown broadly in line with EPS and the Company had 
returned over £600m to shareholders through buybacks over the relevant period. The Committee again assessed NEXT’s earnings 
growth against selected comparable major UK retailers and concluded that NEXT had performed favourably. Taking these factors 
into account, the Committee determined that the economic underpin performance condition had therefore been satisfied.

Accordingly, the January 2009 award will be settled in April, and based on the share price of 2894p on 20 March 2012, awards 
for each executive director for the year to January 2012 are detailed below:

      July 2011 January 2012 Total  January 2011

 
actual no. 
of shares

value
£000

actual no. 
of shares

Estimated 
value
£000

estimated 
value
£000

Adjustment 
to estimate

£000

Final
value
£000

Simon Wolfson 62,791 1,643 29,6051 8571 2,5001 45 1,053
Christos Angelides 32,791 858 27,036 782 1,640 24 550
David Keens 31,395 822 25,885 749 1,571 22 526
Andrew Varley 23,372 612 19,270 558 1,170 17 392

150,349 3,935 101,796 2,946 6,881 108 2,521

1  As noted on page 29, Lord Wolfson has agreed with the Remuneration Committee to restrict the value of LTIP awards vesting in respect of the financial year ended 
January 2012 to a maximum of £2.5m.
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Details of directors’ interests in long term schemes, comprising the LTIP and deferred bonus shares, are as follows: 

Date of 
award

Maximum 
share 

potential at 
January 

20111

Shares 
awarded 

during the 
year

Shares 
vested 

during the 
year3

Shares 
lapsed 

during the 
year

Maximum 
share 

potential 
at January 

20121

Market 
value on 

date of 
award 

(p)

Market 
value on 

date cash 
equivalent 

determined 
(p)

Vesting 
date

Simon wolfson
LTIP Mar 2008 80,024 – 52,016 28,008 – 1687 2024 31.1.2011

Sept 2008 62,791 – 62,791 – – 1075 2617 31.7.2011
Mar 2009 62,374 – – – 62,3744 1093 – 31.1.2012

Sept 2009 44,356 – – – 44,356 1537 – 31.7.2012
Mar 2010 34,228 – – – 34,228 2013 – 31.1.2013

Sept 2010 32,592 – – – 32,592 2114 – 31.7.2013
Mar 2011 – 33,684 – – 33,684 2070 – 31.1.2014

Sept 2011 – 30,289 – – 30,289 2302 – 31.7.2014
Deferred bonus 
shares2 Apr 2010 15,615 – – – 15,615 2183 – 1.4.2012

Apr 2011 – 17,020 – – 17,020 2024 – 1.4.2013
Total 331,980 80,993 114,807 28,008 270,158
Christos angelides
LTIP Mar 2008 41,790 – 27,164 14,626 – 1687 2024 31.1.2011

Sept 2008 32,791 – 32,791 – – 1075 2617 31.7.2011
Mar 2009 32,573 – – – 32,5734 1093 – 31.1.2012

Sept 2009 38,606 – – – 38,606 1537 – 31.7.2012
Mar 2010 31,048 – – – 31,048 2013 – 31.1.2013

Sept 2010 29,565 – – – 29,565 2114 – 31.7.2013
Mar 2011 – 30,556 – – 30,556 2070 – 31.1.2014

Sept 2011 – 16,486 – – 16,486 2302 – 31.7.2014
Total 206,373 47,042 59,955 14,626 178,834
David Keens
LTIP Mar 2008 40,012 – 26,008 14,004 – 1687 2024 31.1.2011

Sept 2008 31,395 – 31,395 – – 1075 2617 31.7.2011
Mar 2009 31,187 – – – 31,1874 1093 – 31.1.2012

Sept 2009 22,178 – – – 22,178 1537 – 31.7.2012
Mar 2010 17,139 – – – 17,139 2013 – 31.1.2013

Sept 2010 16,320 – – – 16,320 2114 – 31.7.2013
Mar 2011 – 16,866 – – 16,866 2070 – 31.1.2014

Sept 2011 – 15,166 – – 15,166 2302 – 31.7.2014
Total 158,231 32,032 57,403 14,004 118,856
andrew varley
LTIP Mar 2008 29,787 – 19,362 10,425 – 1687 2024 31.1.2011

Sept 2008 23,372 – 23,372 – – 1075 2617 31.7.2011
Mar 2009 23,217 – – – 23,2174 1093 – 31.1.2012

Sept 2009 16,510 – – – 16,510 1537 – 31.7.2012
Mar 2010 12,742 – – – 12,742 2013 – 31.1.2013

Sept 2010 12,133 – – – 12,133 2114 – 31.7.2013
Mar 2011 – 12,536 – – 12,536 2070 – 31.1.2014

Sept 2011 – 11,273 – – 11,273 2302 – 31.7.2014
Total 117,761 23,809 42,734 10,425 88,411

1 The maximum number of LTIP shares is the award that could be receivable if the performance conditions outlined on pages 34 to 35 are fully met.

2 Full details of deferred bonus are set out on pages 34 and 40.

3  See above for details of the performance conditions and vesting levels applicable to the LTIP schemes vesting in the year, including the restriction on the value of awards vesting 
in respect to the financial year ended January 2012 and to be settled in April 2012.

4 The March 2009 LTIP matured in January 2012 and the actual numbers of shares that vested are shown in the table on page 41.

21127-04NEXTPLC.indd   42 10/04/2012   10:17:30



N
ot

es
 t

o 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
A

d
d

iti
on

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n

43Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 28 January 2012

21127-04  05/04/2012 Proof 5

A
cc

ou
nt

s
B

us
in

es
s 

re
p

or
ts

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

The LTIP performance periods which mature after January 2012 are not yet complete and no entitlement has yet been earned. A 
charge of £17,159,000 for the year (2011: £13,368,000) has been made in the accounts in respect of the LTIP awards, of which 
approximately £7,956,000 (2011: £5,808,000) related to the executive directors.

For all LTIP participants, the total maximum shares receivable at January 2011 was 1,776,284 (January 2010: 1,585,752). During 
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Directors’ pension entitlements
All executive directors are deferred members of the defined benefit section of the NEXT Group Pension Plan. Directors and some 
senior managers receive enhancements from the Plan, increasing the accrual of their retirement benefit up to two thirds of their 
final pensionable earnings on completion of 20 years pensionable service at age 65 and the lump sum payable on death is four 
times pensionable salary. 

Since leaving the defined benefit section of the Plan, Simon Wolfson and Christos Angelides have been members of, and 
contributed to, the Company’s unfunded, unapproved pension arrangement and the accrued annual pension and transfer value 
set out below includes both their membership of that arrangement and deferred entitlements under the Plan.

Andrew Varley and David Keens ceased to contribute to the Plan in 2008 and May 2011 respectively. Their pensions are no longer 
linked to salary and will increase in line with statutory deferred revaluation. On ceasing to contribute to the Plan these directors 
have received salary supplements (from April and June 2011 respectively) of 15%. Prior to April 2011, the salary supplement paid 
to Mr Varley was 10% and was only paid from November 2008. These supplements are less than the contributions the Company 
would otherwise have made to the defined benefit section of the Plan. 

Pension entitlements of the executive directors who held office during the year are as follows:

age at 
January 

2012

Years of 
pensionable 

service

accrued 
annual 

pension 
£’000

Change in 
accrued 

annual 
pension 

£’000

Change in 
accrued 

annual 
pension 

(net of 
inflation)

£’000

   Transfer 
   value 

   of accrued 
   annual pension

increase in
transfer 

value less 
director’s 

contributions
£’000

2012
£’000

2011
£’000

Simon Wolfson 44 17 288  20 6 3,911 3,050 826
Christos Angelides 48 19 256 16 3 4,336 3,438 873
David Keens 58 25 178 (2) (11) 4,914 3,923 981
Andrew Varley 61 24 72 3 – 2,135 1,778 357

Years of pensionable service shown above may include bought-in service from the transfer of other pension entitlements into the 
Plan. Directors’ pension arrangements are subject to the same actuarial reduction as other employees on termination or early 
retirement.

On behalf of the Board

Jonathan Dawson 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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independent auditor’s Report to the Members of nExT plc

We have audited the financial statements of NEXT plc for the year ended 28 January 2012 which comprise the Consolidated 
Income Statement, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company 
Statements of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Company Cash Flow 
Statements, Accounting Policies, the related Notes 1 to 44 and Group Companies. The financial reporting framework that has 
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the 
European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to 
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards 
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an 
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the 
directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 
in the Annual Report and Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware 
of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion:

■■ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 28 January 
2012 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;

■■ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union; and

■■ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European 
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

■■ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards 
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies act 2006
In our opinion:

■■ the part of the directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2006; and

■■ the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent 
with the financial statements; and

■■ the information given in the Corporate Governance statement set out on pages 25 to 28 with respect to internal control and 
risk management systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about share capital structures is consistent with the 
financial statements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

■■ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 
received from branches not visited by us; or

■■ the parent company financial statements and the part of the directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement 
with the accounting records and returns; or

■■ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

■■ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

■■ a Corporate Governance statement has not been prepared by the Company.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review:

■■ the directors’ statement, set out on page 28, in relation to going concern; 

■■ the part of the Corporate Governance statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the UK 
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review; and

■■ certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on directors’ remuneration.

Christopher voogd (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young llP, Statutory auditor 
Birmingham 
22 March 2012

Notes: 

1.  The maintenance and integrity of the Next plc website is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors 
does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may 
have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

2.  Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 
in other jurisdictions
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Consolidated income Statement
For the financial year ended 28 January

2012 2011

Notes
underlying

£m

Exceptional
items (note 1)

£m
Total

£m
Total

£m
Continuing operations
Revenue 3, 4 3,441.1 – 3,441.1 3,297.7
Cost of sales (2,395.8) – (2,395.8) (2,332.6)
Gross profit 1,045.3 – 1,045.3 965.1
Distribution costs (245.7) – (245.7) (223.2)
Administration expenses (201.3) – (201.3) (179.1)
Other (losses)/gains 5 (1.1) 3.1 2.0 2.2
Trading profit 597.2 3.1 600.3 565.0
Share of results of associates 13 1.5 – 1.5 1.8
Operating profit 5 598.7 3.1 601.8 566.8
Finance income 7 0.5 6.1 6.6 0.9
Finance costs 7 (28.9) – (28.9) (24.3)
Profit before taxation 570.3 9.2 579.5 543.4
Taxation 8 (142.9) (2.4) (145.3) (150.3)
Profit from continuing operations 427.4 6.8 434.2 393.1

Profit from discontinued operations 2 2.6 38.0 40.6 7.8

Profit for the year 430.0 44.8 474.8 400.9

Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent company 430.1 44.8 474.9 401.1
Non-controlling interest (0.1) – (0.1) (0.2)
Profit for the year 430.0 44.8 474.8 400.9

underlying Total Total
Basic earnings per share 10
Continuing operations 253.9p 257.9p 217.6p
Discontinued operations 1.5p 24.1p 4.3p
Total 255.4p 282.0p 221.9p

Diluted earnings per share 10
Continuing operations 247.6p 251.6p 212.3p
Discontinued operations 1.5p 23.5p 4.2p
Total 249.1p 275.1p 216.5p
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income
For the financial year ended 28 January

 
Notes 

 2012
 £m

 2011
 £m

Profit for the year 474.8 400.9

Other comprehensive income and expenses
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (2.0) –
Gains on cash flow hedges 15.6 1.8
Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension scheme 23 (28.5) 64.3
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 8 4.5 (15.5)

(10.4) 50.6

Reclassification adjustments
Transferred to income statement on cash flow hedges 5 5.0 (14.8)
Transferred to the carrying amount of hedged items on cash flow hedges (5.9) 4.7
Exchange gains transferred to income statement on disposal of subsidiary (0.6) –

(1.5) (10.1)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (11.9) 40.5
Total comprehensive income for the year 462.9 441.4

attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent company 463.0 441.5
Non-controlling interest (0.1) (0.1)
Total comprehensive income for the year 462.9 441.4
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 28 January

Notes
2012

 £m
2011

 £m
aSSETS anD liaBiliTiES 
non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment 11 581.9 592.4
Intangible assets 12 45.6 46.5
Interests in associates 13 6.1 5.1
Other investments 14 1.0 1.0
Defined benefit pension surplus 23 35.1 55.7
Other financial assets 17 44.6 24.3

714.3 725.0
Current assets
Inventories 15 371.9 368.3
Trade and other receivables 16 699.1 645.6
Other financial assets 17 12.5 4.1
Cash and short term deposits 18 56.4 49.3

1,139.9 1,067.3
Total assets 1,854.2 1,792.3

Current liabilities
Bank loans and overdrafts 19 (7.6) (125.2)
Trade and other payables 20 (545.0) (544.6)
Other financial liabilities 21 (87.0) (54.7)
Current tax liabilities (102.8) (108.4)

(742.4) (832.9)
non-current liabilities
Corporate bonds 22 (652.1) (471.2)
Provisions 24 (12.0) (13.3)
Deferred tax liabilities 8 (15.4) (23.4)
Other financial liabilities 21 (4.4) (2.6)
Other liabilities 25 (205.2) (216.5)

(889.1) (727.0)
Total liabilities (1,631.5) (1,559.9)
net assets 222.7 232.4

EquiTY
Share capital 26 16.9 18.1
Share premium account 0.8 0.8
Capital redemption reserve 13.0 11.8
ESOT reserve (141.1) (138.6)
Fair value reserve 11.5 (3.2)
Foreign currency translation reserve 2.0 4.6
Other reserves 27 (1,443.8) (1,443.8)
Retained earnings 1,763.4 1,782.6
Shareholders’ equity 222.7 232.3
Non-controlling interest – 0.1
Total equity 222.7 232.4

Approved by the Board on 22 March 2012

lord wolfson of aspley Guise David Keens
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 28 January

Share
capital

£m

Share
premium
account

£m

Capital
redemp-

tion
reserve

£m

 
ESOT

reserve
£m

Fair
value

reserve
£m

Foreign
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Consolidated Cash flow Statement
For the financial year ended 28 January

 
Notes

2012
 £m

2011
 £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit – continuing operations  601.8  566.8
Operating profit – discontinued operations 2.9  8.0
 Depreciation and amortisation  119.7  119.3
 Impairment  1.4  2.3
 Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment  4.5  6.9
 Share option charge  16.8  11.8
 Share of undistributed profit of associates  (1.0)  (1.1)
 Exchange movement  (0.7)  (2.6)
 Increase in inventories  (3.6)  (59.3)
 Increase in trade and other receivables  (93.8)  (29.0)
 Increase in trade and other payables  28.2  11.7
 Pension contributions less income statement charge  (6.4)  (40.9)
Cash generated from operations  669.8  593.9
 Corporation taxes paid  (143.9)  (141.9)
net cash from operating activities 2  525.9  452.0

Cash flows from investing activities  
 Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiary 2 63.0  –
 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  1.9  1.9
 Additions to property, plant and equipment  (126.1)  (144.3)
 (Decrease)/increase in capital accruals  (9.0)  23.7
 Payment of deferred consideration  –  (19.4)
net cash from investing activities  (70.2)  (138.1)

Cash flows from financing activities
 Repurchase of own shares  (291.1)  (221.6)
 Purchase of shares by ESOT  (106.7)  (99.7)
 Proceeds from disposal of shares by ESOT  67.6  31.0
 (Repayment)/proceeds of unsecured bank loans  (115.0)  115.0
 Net proceeds from bond issue and tender 22  153.3  –
 Repurchase of corporate bonds   –  (51.3)
 Interest paid  (23.9)  (21.6)
 Interest received  5.0  0.9
 Payment of finance lease liabilities  (0.2)  (0.3)
 Dividends paid  (135.1)  (129.6)
net cash from financing activities  (446.1)  (377.2)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  9.6  (63.3)
Opening cash and cash equivalents  39.1  102.3
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held  0.1  0.1
Closing cash and cash equivalents 35  48.8  39.1
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Financials

Company Balance Sheet
As at 28 January

Notes
 2012
 £m

 2011
 £m

aSSETS anD liaBiliTiES 
non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 38 2,475.7 2,475.7
Other financial assets 39 44.6 24.3

2,520.3 2,500.0
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 39 7.4 3.3
Current tax asset 5.5 5.2
Cash and short term deposits 39 10.6 –

23.5 8.5
Total assets 2,543.8 2,508.5

Current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 40 – (115.0)
Trade and other payables 40 (247.4) (11.6)
Other financial liabilities 40 (84.4) (46.8)

(331.8) (173.4)
non-current liabilities
Corporate bonds 22 (652.1) (471.2)
Other financial liabilities 40 (4.4) (2.6)

(656.5) (473.8)
Total liabilities (988.3) (647.2)
net assets 1,555.5 1,861.3

EquiTY
Share capital 26 16.9 18.1
Share premium account 0.8 0.8
Capital redemption reserve 13.0 11.8
ESOT reserve (141.1) (138.6)
Other reserves 41 985.2 985.2
Retained earnings 680.7 984.0
Total equity 1,555.5 1,861.3

Approved by the Board on 22 March 2012

lord wolfson of aspley Guise David Keens
Director Director
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Company Statement of Comprehensive income
For the financial year ended 28 January

 2012
 £m

2011
 £m

Profit for the year 179.1 183.6

Other comprehensive income and expenses
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income – (0.8)

– (0.8)
Reclassification adjustments
Transferred to income statement on cash flow hedges – 2.6
Other comprehensive income for the year – 1.8
Total comprehensive income for the year 179.1 185.4

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 28 January

Share
capital

£m

Share
premium
account

£m

Capital
redemption

reserve
£m

 
ESOT

reserve
£m

Fair
value

reserve
£m

Other
reserves

£m

Retained
earnings

£m

Total 
equity

£m
at January 2010 19.1 0.7 10.8 (78.2) (2.6) 985.2 1,088.8 2,023.8
Profit for the year – – – – – – 183.6 183.6
Other comprehensive 
income/(expense) for  
the year – – – – 2.6 – (0.8) 1.8
Total comprehensive  
income for the year – – – – 2.6 – 182.8 185.4

Shares issued – 0.1 – – – – – 0.1
Shares purchased for 
cancellation (1.0) – 1.0 – – – (165.3) (165.3)
Shares purchased by ESOT – – – (95.9) – – – (95.9)
Shares issued by ESOT – – – 35.5 – – (4.5) 31.0
Share option charge – – – – – – 11.8 11.8
Equity dividends paid – – – – – – (129.6) (129.6)
at January 2011 18.1 0.8 11.8 (138.6) – 985.2 984.0 1,861.3

Profit for the year – – – – – – 179.1 179.1
Other comprehensive 
income for the year – – – – – – – –
Total comprehensive income 
for the year – – – – – – 179.1 179.1

Shares purchased for 
cancellation (1.2) – 1.2 – – – (323.0) (323.0)
Shares purchased by ESOT – – – (112.3) – – – (112.3)
Shares issued by ESOT – – – 109.8 – – (42.2) 67.6
Share option charge – – – – – – 17.9 17.9
Equity dividends paid – – – – – – (135.1) (135.1)
at January 2012 16.9 0.8 13.0 (141.1) – 985.2 680.7 1,555.5
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Financials

Company Cash flow Statement
For the financial year ended 28 January

Notes
 2012
 £m

 2011
 £m

Cash flows from operating activities
 Operating loss (1.1) (0.1)
 Share option charge 1.1 –
 Decrease in trade and other receivables 1.2 108.7
 Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 252.3 (0.7)
Cash generated from operations 253.5 107.9
 Corporation taxes received 6.8 8.0
net cash from operating activities 260.3 115.9

Cash flows from investing activities
 Dividends received 200.0 200.0
net cash from investing activities 200.0 200.0

Cash flows from financing activities
 Repurchase of own shares (291.1) (221.6)
 Purchase of shares by ESOT (106.7) (99.7)
 Proceeds from disposal of shares by ESOT 67.6 31.0
 (Repayment)/proceeds of unsecured bank loans (115.0) 115.0
 Net proceeds from bond issue and tender 153.3 –
 Repurchase of corporate bonds – (51.3)
 Interest paid (23.7) (21.5)
 Interest received 1.0 0.7
 Dividends paid (135.1) (129.6)
net cash from financing activities (449.7) (377.0)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10.6 (61.1)
Opening cash and cash equivalents – 61.1
Closing cash and cash equivalents 42 10.6 –
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accounting Policies

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of NEXT plc (“the Company”) and NEXT plc and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) adopted for use in the European Union and in accordance 
with the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, pension assets 
and liabilities and share based payment liabilities which are measured at fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are 
set out below.

The Group and Company financial statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest tenth of a million 
pounds except where otherwise indicated. 

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings. All 
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the 
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries that is not held by the Group and 
are presented in equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from parent shareholders’ equity.

The results and net assets of associated undertakings are incorporated into these financial statements using the equity method 
of accounting.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisition is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest 
in the net fair value of the acquired entity’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the date of acquisition. 

Goodwill is not amortised, but is reviewed for impairment at least annually; any impairment is recognised immediately in the income 
statement and is not subsequently reversed.

On disposal of a subsidiary or associate, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss 
on disposal.

Goodwill arising before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being tested 
for impairment at that date. 

intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are carried initially at cost. An intangible asset acquired as part of a business 
combination is recognised outside goodwill if the asset is separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights and its fair value 
can be measured reliably. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
impairment losses. Intangible assets with a finite life have no residual value and are amortised on a straight line basis over their 
expected useful lives as follows:

Brand names and trademarks  10 years
Customer relationships  4 years

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the 
carrying value may not be recoverable.

Property, plant & equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and reviewed annually for impairment. 

Depreciation is provided to write down the cost of property, plant and equipment to their estimated residual values, based on 
current prices at the balance sheet date, over their remaining useful lives by equal annual instalments. Useful lives are also reviewed 
annually.
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accounting Policies

Property, plant & equipment (continued)
The useful lives generally applicable are summarised as follows: 

Freehold and long leasehold property  50 years
Plant and fittings:
 Plant, machinery and building works  10 – 25 years
 Fixtures and fittings  6 – 15 years
 Vehicles, IT and other assets  2 – 6 years
 Leasehold improvements  the period of the lease, or useful life if shorter

investments
Investments in subsidiary companies and equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and 
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost, subject to review for impairment.

impairment 
The carrying values of non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. Where the asset does not generate 
cash flows which are independent from other assets, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs is estimated.

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell, and its value in use. Value in use is 
the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-generating unit. 

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of standard cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices 
less further costs to be incurred to disposal.

financial assets
Financial assets are classified in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-
for-sale. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. Derivatives are also categorised as held for 
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss’ category are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market and are carried at amortised cost. Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value and are non-derivatives that 
are either specifically designated as such or which are not classified in any of the other categories.

Trade and other receivables 
Trade receivables are stated at original invoice amount plus any accrued service charge (in the case of Directory customer 
receivables). Where there is objective evidence that there is an impairment loss, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Amounts charged 
to the allowance account are written off when there is no expectation of further recovery.

Share based payments
The fair value of employee share options is calculated when they are granted using the Black–Scholes model. The resulting cost 
is charged in the income statement over the vesting period of the option and is regularly reviewed and adjusted for the expected 
and actual number of options vesting.
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Share based payments (continued)
For cash-settled share based payments (including the long term incentive plan), the fair value of the liability is determined at each 
balance sheet date and the charge recognised through the income statement over the vesting period. 

Taxation
Current tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition 
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor 
the accounting profit. Deferred tax is not recognised in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries and associates where the timing of the reversal of temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates of taxation that are expected 
to apply when the asset or liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance 
sheet date, and is not discounted.

Taxation is charged or credited to the income statement, except to the extent it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, in which case the related tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits, 
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand. Cash and short term deposits comprise cash at bank and in hand and short 
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings
Bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, unless hedge accounting applies (see page 58).

Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and 
services provided to customers outside of the Group, stated net of returns and sales taxes. 

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed. Interest income, including Directory service charge, 
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable effective interest rate. Income from 
rendering of services is recognised when the services have been performed. Rental income is recognised when receivable in 
accordance with the terms of the lease. Royalty income is recognised in line with sales reported by the Group’s franchise partners. 

foreign currencies
The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the Company’s functional and presentation 
currency. Transactions in foreign currencies, which are those other than the functional currency of an entity, are recorded at the 
rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the rates 
ruling at the balance sheet date. Resulting exchange gains or losses are recognised in the income statement for the period.

Upon consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the 
balance sheet date. Income and expense items of foreign operations are translated at the weighted average rate during the period. 
Differences on translation are recognised as a separate equity reserve which was deemed to be zero on transition to IFRS at 1 
February 2004. On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences for that subsidiary are recognised in the 
income statement as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the 
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. The Group has elected to treat goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on 
acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS as Sterling denominated assets and liabilities.
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Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments (“derivatives”) are used to manage risks arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates 
relating to the purchase of overseas sourced products and changes in interest rates relating to the Group’s debt. In accordance 
with its treasury policy, the Group does not enter into derivatives for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are stated at their fair value. The fair value of foreign currency derivative contracts is their market value at the balance 
sheet date. Market values are calculated using mathematical models and are based on the duration of the derivative instrument 
together with quoted market data including interest rates, foreign exchange rates and market volatility at the balance sheet date. 
The fair value of interest rate contracts is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate them at the 
balance sheet date, taking into account prevailing interest rates.

Hedge accounting
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised directly in 
equity and any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. When the asset or liability for the hedged 
transaction is recognised in the balance sheet the associated gain or loss on maturity of the hedging instrument previously 
recognised in equity is included in the carrying amount of the hedged asset or liability. Gains or losses realised on cash flow hedges 
will therefore be recognised in the income statement in the same period as the hedged item.

The Group uses certain interest rate derivatives as fair value hedges of the interest rate risk associated with the Company’s 
corporate bonds. The carrying amounts of the bonds are adjusted only for changes in fair value attributable to interest rate risk 
being hedged and this value adjustment is recognised in the income statement. Any gain or loss from restating the related interest 
rate derivatives at their market value is also recognised immediately in the income statement.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies 
for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument previously recognised in equity is 
retained in equity until the hedged transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative 
gain or loss recognised in equity is then transferred to the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives which do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement as  
they arise.

Contingent share purchase contracts
The Group uses contingent contracts for the purchase of its own shares. These derivative contracts are accounted for as equity 
transactions and the contracts are not stated at their market values. The present value of the obligation to purchase the shares is 
recognised in full at the inception of the contract, even when that obligation is conditional. Any subsequent reduction in the total 
obligation arising from the early termination of a contract is credited back to equity at the time of termination.

Shares held by ESOT
The NEXT Employee Share Ownership Trust (“ESOT”) provides for the issue of shares to Group employees, including share issues 
under share options. Shares in the Company held by the ESOT are included in the balance sheet at cost as a deduction from 
equity.

Employee benefits
The Group operates a pension plan which consists of defined benefit and defined contribution sections. The assets of the plan 
are held in a separate trustee administered fund. The Group also provides other, unfunded, post-employment benefits to certain 
plan members.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit section and the unfunded arrangement are determined using the projected 
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. The net defined benefit pension asset 
or liability recognised in the balance sheet represents the fair value of the defined benefit plan assets less the present value of 
the defined benefit section and unfunded liabilities. A net pension asset is only recognised to the extent that it is expected to be 
recoverable in the future.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur, are recognised directly in equity and are 
presented in the statement of comprehensive income. Other income and expenses associated with the defined benefit section 
are recognised in the income statement.

The pension cost of the defined contribution section is charged in the income statement as incurred.
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Provisions
A provision is recognised where the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that 
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are discounted where the impact is material.

leasing commitments
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to 
the Group. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Assets used by the Group which have been funded through finance leases are capitalised in property, plant and equipment and 
the resulting lease obligations are included in liabilities. The assets are depreciated over their useful lives and the interest element 
of the rental obligations is charged to the income statement over the period of the lease and represents a constant proportion of 
the balance of capital repayments outstanding.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight line basis over the period of the lease. Contingent 
rentals payable based on store revenues are accrued in line with the related sales.

Premiums payable, rent free periods and capital contributions receivable on entering an operating lease are released to income on 
a straight line basis over the lease term.

Significant areas of estimation and judgement
The preparation of the financial statements requires judgements, estimations and assumptions to be made that affect the reported 
values of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. The nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those 
estimates. Significant areas of estimation for the Group include the expected future cash flows applied in measuring impairment 
of trade receivables (Note 16), estimated selling prices applied in determining the net realisable values of inventories (Note 15) and 
the actuarial assumptions applied in calculating the net retirement benefit obligation (Note 23).

underlying profit and exceptional items
Exceptional items are significant items of an unusual or non-recurring nature which are shown separately in the income statement 
to provide a clearer understanding of the underlying financial performance during the year.  Further details are given in Note 1.

impact of changes to accounting standards 
An amendment to IAS 19 Employee Benefits was published in June 2011. The amendment applies to accounting periods beginning 
after 1 January 2013 and affects the accounting for defined benefit pension schemes. The precise impact will depend on the future 
position of the pension scheme and future actuarial assumptions, but the changes are not expected to have a material effect on 
the Group’s reported profits or equity.

Various other new accounting standards and amendments have also been issued during the year, none of which have had or are 
expected to have any significant impact on the Group.
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notes to the Consolidated financial Statements

1. Exceptional items
The Group recently reached agreement with HM Revenue & Customs for the recovery of overpaid VAT on product sales made 
during the period from 1973 to 1988. The total amount recoverable is £9.2m, comprising £3.1m of VAT and interest thereon of 
£6.1m. Together with the gain on the sale of Ventura (see Note 2), this is presented separately in the Income Statement to provide 
a clearer understanding of the underlying financial performance during the year.

2. Discontinued operations
Ventura, the Group’s customer services management business, was sold to The Capita Group plc on 1 July 2011 for £65m on 
a cash and debt free basis. Net cash proceeds of £63m were received on completion and the balance of the consideration was 
received on 31 January 2012.

The table below shows the results of Ventura and the impact of its disposal on the Group:

2012 2011
underlying

£m
Exceptional

items £m
Total

£m
Total

£m
Revenue 64.8 – 64.8 156.0
Expenses (61.9) – (61.9) (148.0)
Profit before taxation 2.9 – 2.9 8.0
Taxation (0.3) – (0.3) (0.2)
Profit after taxation 2.6 – 2.6 7.8
Profit on disposal – 37.6 37.6 –
Acceleration of share option charge – (1.1) (1.1) –
Pension credit on disposal – 1.5 1.5 –
Profit from discontinued operations 2.6 38.0 40.6 7.8

The assets and liabilities of Ventura on disposal were as follows:

£m
Deferred tax 1.0
Property, plant and equipment 9.9
Trade and other receivables 47.4
Trade and other payables (36.8)
Net cash/(overdraft) (0.4)
net assets on disposal 21.1

In the cash flow statement, net cash from operating activities includes an outflow of £9.9m in respect of Ventura in the current year 
up to disposal. In the prior year, net cash from operating activities includes an inflow from Ventura of £7.7m.
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3. Segmental analysis 
The results for the financial year are for the 52 weeks to 28 January 2012 (last year 52 weeks to 29 January 2011) with the exception 
of NEXT Sourcing and certain other activities which relate to the calendar year to 31 January. The Group’s operating segments 
under IFRS 8 have been determined based on the management accounts reviewed by the Board of Directors. The Board assesses 
the performance of the operating segments based on profits before interest and tax, excluding equity settled share option charges 
recognised under IFRS 2 Share Based Payment and unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses on derivatives not designated 
as a hedge. The activities, products and services of the operating segments are detailed in the Directors’ Report on page 3. The 
Property Management segment holds properties which are sub-let to other segments and external parties. 

 External revenue  internal revenue  Total revenue
2012

£m
2011

£m
 2012

£m
2011

£m
2012

£m
2011

£m
NEXT Retail  2,191.4 2,222.1 6.7 6.4 2,198.1 2,228.5
NEXT Directory 1,088.7 935.5 – – 1,088.7 935.5
NEXT International 76.3 67.3 – – 76.3 67.3
NEXT Sourcing 7.5 4.1 511.5 505.7 519.0 509.8

3,363.9 3,229.0 518.2 512.1 3,882.1 3,741.1
Lipsy 54.9 44.7 3.5 4.4 58.4 49.1
Property Management 6.2 6.9 188.8 186.5 195.0 193.4
Total segment revenues 3,425.0 3,280.6 710.5 703.0 4,135.5 3,983.6
Other 16.1 17.1 – – 16.1 17.1
Eliminations – – (710.5) (703.0) (710.5) (703.0)
Continuing operations 3,441.1 3,297.7 – – 3,441.1 3,297.7
Discontinued (ventura) 64.8 156.0 2.0 4.6 66.8 160.6

Other revenues comprise third party distribution activities.

                               Segment profit

             2012 2011
Total

£m
underlying

£m
Exceptional

items £m
Total

£m
NEXT Retail  323.7 – 323.7 328.8
NEXT Directory 262.6 – 262.6 221.9
NEXT International 7.9 – 7.9 5.8
NEXT Sourcing 21.1 – 21.1 26.7

615.3 – 615.3 583.2
Lipsy 1.3 – 1.3 1.0
Property Management 5.6 – 5.6 2.3
Total segment profit 622.2 – 622.2 586.5
Other activities (including central costs) (7.1) 3.1 (4.0) (11.9)
Share option charge (16.8) – (16.8) (11.8)
Unrealised foreign exchange (loss)/gain (1.1) – (1.1) 2.2
Trading profit 597.2 3.1 600.3 565.0
Share of results of associates 1.5 – 1.5 1.8
Finance income 0.5 6.1 6.6 0.9
Finance costs (28.9) – (28.9) (24.3)
Profit before tax – continuing operations 570.3 9.2 579.5 543.4
Profit before tax – discontinued (ventura) 2.9 38.0 40.9 8.0

Transactions between operating segments are made on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to those with third parties. 
Segment revenue and segment profit include transactions between business segments; these transactions are eliminated on 
consolidation.
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3. Segmental analysis (continued)

Property, plant  
& equipment Capital expenditure Depreciation

2012
£m

2011
£m

2012
£m

2011
£m

2012
£m

2011
£m

NEXT Retail  407.2 411.8 105.4 121.6 100.8 99.7
NEXT Directory 88.8 81.5 16.3 12.7 12.1 11.1
NEXT International 1.7 2.4 0.4 1.4 0.7 1.0
NEXT Sourcing 3.4 4.2 0.7 1.7 1.3 1.6
Lipsy 8.9 8.5 2.9 4.4 2.1 1.3
Property Management 71.8 72.8 – 0.1 0.2 0.2
Ventura (discontinued) – 11.1 0.3 2.2 1.4 3.5
Other 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 –
Total 581.9 592.4 126.1 144.3 118.8 118.4

Analyses of the Group’s external revenues (by customer location) and non-current assets (excluding investments, the defined 
benefit pension surplus, other financial assets and deferred tax assets) by geographical location are detailed below:

External revenue

2012
Continuing

£m

2012
Discontinued

£m

2011
Continuing

£m

2011
Discontinued

£m
United Kingdom 3,245.7 63.7 3,109.0 152.2
Rest of Europe 148.1 – 153.5 –
Middle East 28.0 – 21.7 –
Asia 11.2 – 9.8 –
Rest of World 8.1 1.1 3.7 3.8

3,441.1 64.8 3,297.7 156.0

non-current assets
2012

£m
2011

£m
United Kingdom 579.6 581.1
Rest of Europe 15.0 21.3
Middle East 4.6 4.6
Asia 28.2 31.4
Rest of World 0.1 0.5

627.5 638.9

4. Revenue

2012
Continuing

£m

2012
Discontinued

£m

2011
Continuing

£m

2011
Discontinued

£m
Sale of goods 3,281.6 – 3,146.9 –
Rendering of services 143.9 64.8 135.3 156.0
Rental income 6.2 – 6.9 –
Royalties 9.4 – 8.6 –

Revenue 3,441.1 64.8 3,297.7 156.0

Rendering of services includes £126.1m (2011: £116.3m) of service charge on Directory customer receivables. 
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5. Operating profit 
Group operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):

2012
£m

2011
£m

Depreciation on tangible assets:
 Owned 118.6 118.0
 Leased 0.2 0.4

Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment 4.5 6.9

Amortisation of intangible assets 0.9 0.9

Impairment charges:
 Tangible assets 1.4 2.3

Operating lease rentals:
 Minimum lease payments (net of amortisation of incentives) 194.3 196.6
 Contingent rentals payable 7.8 7.9

Net foreign exchange gains 1.1 –

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 1,319.2 1,242.5

Write down of inventories to net realisable value 79.4 89.1

Trade receivables: 
 Impairment charge 29.9 33.1
    Amounts recovered (3.3) (5.7)

2012
£000

2011
 £000

Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services – Group 189 176
Other services:
 Subsidiary statutory audits 265 311
 Tax 57 38
 Corporate finance 25 –
 Other 22 –

558 525

Gains and losses on cash flow hedges removed from equity and included in the income statement for the period comprise losses 
of £5.0m (2011: gains of £17.2m) included in cost of sales, gains of £nil (2011: gains of £0.2m) included in administrative expenses 
and gains of £nil (2011: losses of £2.6m) included in finance costs.

Other gains/(losses) reported in the income statement represent changes in the fair value of foreign exchange derivative contracts 
which do not qualify for hedge accounting under IAS 39, and the exceptional VAT credit explained in Note 1.
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6. Staff costs and key management personnel
Total staff costs were as follows:

2012
£m

2011
£m

Wages and salaries 536.9 591.8
Social security costs 37.2 43.8
Other pension costs 6.1 14.4

580.2 650.0
Share based payments expense:
 Equity settled 
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7. finance income and costs
2012

£m
2011

£m
Interest on bank deposits 0.3 0.2
Other interest receivable 6.3 0.7
Total finance income 6.6 0.9

Interest on bank and other borrowings 25.2 22.5
Premium paid on repurchase of corporate bonds 8.2 3.3
Swap hedging gain on bond repurchases (7.3) (2.8)
Other fair value movements 2.8 1.3
Total finance costs 28.9 24.3

Directory service charge is presented as a component of revenue.

Other interest receivable includes statutory interest of £6.1m on an exceptional VAT recovery (see Note 1).

The Company redeemed £158.2m of its outstanding 2013 and 2016 bonds during the year and issued a new £325.0m 10 year 
2021 bond. Further details are given in Note 22.

8. Taxation
2012

£m
2011

£m
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profits of the year 160.1 163.5
Adjustments in respect of previous years (12.6) (9.8)

147.5 153.7
Overseas tax:
On profits of the year 2.7 2.8
Adjustments in respect of previous years – (3.5)
Total current tax 150.2 153.0

Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (7.8) (5.6)
Adjustments in respect of previous years 3.2 3.1
Tax expense reported in the consolidated income statement 145.6 150.5

Allocated to:
Continuing operations 145.3 150.3
Discontinued operations 0.3 0.2

145.6 150.5

£2.4m of the current year tax charge relates to the exceptional VAT recovery and related interest (see Note 1). Adjustments in respect 
of previous years relate to release of provisions for items subsequently agreed with HM Revenue & Customs and overseas tax 
authorities. The tax rate for the current year varied from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK due to the following factors:

2012
%

2011
%

UK corporation tax rate 26.3 28.0
(Non-taxable income)/non-deductible expenses (0.5) 2.0
Overseas tax differentials (0.5) (0.7)
Tax over-provided in previous years (1.5) (1.8)
Deferred tax rate change (0.3) (0.2)
Effective total tax rate on profit before taxation 23.5 27.3

The effective tax rate stated above is based on total profit including the exceptional gain on the sale of Ventura.
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8. Taxation (continued)
In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, tax movements recognised through equity were as follows:

2012
£m

2011
£m

Current tax:
Pension benefit obligation – (11.2)
Foreign exchange losses – 1.1

Deferred tax:
Pension benefit obligation (8.3) 28.6
Fair value movements on derivative instruments 3.8 (3.0)
Tax (credit)/charge in the statement of comprehensive income (4.5) 15.5

2012
£m

2011
£m

Current tax:
Share based payments (12.3) (2.1)

Deferred tax:
Share based payments – (3.4)
Tax credit in the statement of changes in equity (12.3) (5.5)

Deferred taxation

2012
£m

2011
£m

Accelerated capital allowances 22.9 29.0
Revaluation of derivatives to fair value 2.4 (1.0)
Pension benefit obligations 8.8 15.0
Share based payments (15.8) (14.6)
Other temporary differences (2.9) (5.0)

15.4 23.4

The deferred tax movement in the year is as follows:

 2012
£m

 2011
£m

At January 2011 23.4 3.7
Charged to the income statement:
 Accelerated capital allowances (5.8) (4.0)
 Revaluation of derivatives to fair value (0.3) 0.6
 Pension benefit obligations 2.0 0.3
 Share based payments (2.2) 0.2
 Other temporary differences 1.8 0.4
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (4.5) 25.6
Recognised in the statement of changes in equity – (3.4)
Disposal of subsidiaries 1.0 –
At January 2012 15.4 23.4
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8. Taxation (continued)
No recognition has been made of the following deferred tax assets:

Gross
value
2012

£m

unrecognised
deferred tax

2012
£m

Gross
value
2011

£m

Unrecognised
deferred tax

2011
£m

Property development trading losses 5.4 1.4 3.7 1.0
Capital losses 88.5 22.1 89.3 24.1

93.9 23.5 93.0 25.1

The benefit of unrecognised losses will only accrue when taxable profits are realised on sale of the Group’s property development 
stock or gains are realised on future disposals of the Group’s capital assets.

As announced in the Budget Statement on 21 March 2012, it is proposed that the UK corporation tax rate will be reduced to 
24% with effect from 1 April 2012.  Since this rate reduction had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, no 
recognition of the potential benefit of £0.6m has been made in calculating the above provision for deferred taxation.

9. Dividends

2012
£m

2011
£m

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Final dividend for the year to 29 January 2011 of 53p (2010: 47p) per share 89.5 85.3
Interim dividend for the year to 28 January 2012 of 27.5p (2011: 25p) per share 45.6 44.3

135.1 129.6

Proposed final dividend for the year to 28 January 2012 of 62.5p (2011: 53p) per share 100.0 92.0

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as 
a liability in these financial statements.

The Trustee of the ESOT has waived dividends paid in the year on the shares held by the ESOT.
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10. Earnings per share
Year to January 2012

underlying

Exceptional
items

(note 1) Total

Year to
January 2011

Total
Profit after tax attributable to equity holders of the parent 
company 
 Continuing operations (£m) 427.5 6.8 434.3 393.3
 Discontinued operations (£m) 2.6 38.0 40.6 7.8
Total 430.1 44.8 474.9 401.1

 Weighted average shares in issue (m) 174.3 174.3 185.0
 Weighted average shares held by ESOT (m) (5.9) (5.9) (4.3)
 Weighted average shares for basic EPS (m) 168.4 168.4 180.7

Basic earnings per share (p)
 Continuing operations 253.9 257.9 217.6
 Discontinued operations 1.5 24.1 4.3
Total 255.4 282.0 221.9

 Weighted average shares for basic EPS (m) 168.4 168.4 180.7
 Weighted average dilutive potential shares (m) 4.3 4.3 4.6
 Weighted average shares for diluted EPS (m) 172.7 172.7 185.3

Diluted earnings per share (p)
 Continuing operations 247.6 251.6 212.3
 Discontinued operations 1.5 23.5 4.2
Total 249.1 275.1 216.5

 Weighted average shares for basic EPS (m) 168.4 168.4 180.7
 Weighted average share options outstanding (m) 11.9 11.9 13.6
 Weighted average shares for fully diluted EPS (m) 180.3 180.3 194.3

fully diluted earnings per share (p)
 Continuing operations 237.1 240.9 202.5
 Discontinued operations 1.4 22.5 4.0
Total 238.5 263.4 206.5

Basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the parent company and the 
weighted average number of shares ranking for dividend less the weighted average number of shares held by the ESOT during 
the period.

Diluted earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares used for the calculation of basic earnings per share 
as increased by the dilutive effect of potential ordinary shares. Dilutive shares arise from employee share option schemes where the 
exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the period. Where the option price 
is above the average market price, the option is not dilutive and is excluded from the diluted EPS calculation. There were no such 
share options in the current year (2011: 2.8 million).

Fully diluted earnings per share is used for the purposes of the Share Matching Plan and is based on total underlying profit and the 
weighted average number of shares used for the calculation of basic earnings per share increased by the weighted average total 
employee share options outstanding during the period.

Underlying earnings per share is based on profit before the exceptional items described in Note 1.
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11. Property, plant & equipment
Freehold
property

£m

Leasehold
property

£m

Plant and 
fittings

£m
Total

£m
Cost
At January 2010 75.6 8.3 1,235.0 1,318.9
Exchange movement – – 0.7 0.7
Additions – – 144.3 144.3
Disposals (1.3) – (27.4) (28.7)
At January 2011 74.3 8.3 1,352.6 1,435.2
Exchange movement – – (0.2) (0.2)
Additions – – 126.1 126.1
Disposals (0.8) – (28.9) (29.7)
Disposal of subsidiaries – – (47.6) (47.6)
at January 2012 73.5 8.3 1,402.0 1,483.8

Depreciation
At January 2010 8.3 1.4 732.0 741.7
Exchange movement – – 0.3 0.3
Provided during the year – – 118.4 118.4
Impairment charge – – 2.3 2.3
Disposals – – (19.9) (19.9)
At January 2011 8.3 1.4 833.1 842.8
Exchange movement – – (0.1) (0.1)
Provided during the year – – 118.8 118.8
Impairment charge – – 1.4 1.4
Disposals (0.1) – (23.2) (23.3)
Disposal of subsidiaries – – (37.7) (37.7)
at January 2012 8.2 1.4 892.3 901.9

Carrying amount
at January 2012 65.3 6.9 509.7 581.9

At January 2011 66.0 6.9 519.5 592.4

At January 2010 67.3 6.9 503.0 577.2

The carrying amount of plant and fittings above includes an amount of £0.4m (2011: £0.6m) in respect of assets held under finance 
lease contracts.

At 28 January 2012 the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
amounting to £9.5m (2011: £21.3m).
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12. intangible assets

Brand names
& trademarks

£m

Customer
relationships

£m
Goodwill

£m
Total

£m
Cost
at January 2010, January 2011 and January 2012 4.0 2.0 44.1 50.1

amortisation and impairment
At January 2010 0.5 0.6 1.6 2.7
Provided during the year 0.4 0.5 – 0.9
At January 2011 0.9 1.1 1.6 3.6
Provided during the year 0.4 0.5 – 0.9
at January 2012 1.3 1.6 1.6 4.5

Carrying amount
at January 2012 2.7 0.4 42.5 45.6

At January 2011 3.1 0.9 42.5 46.5

At January 2010 3.5 1.4 42.5 47.4

Customer relationships relates to contractual and other arrangements with corporate customers of Lipsy that existed at the date 
of acquisition.

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the following cash generating units:

2012
£m

2011
£m

NEXT Sourcing 30.5 30.5
Lipsy 12.0 12.0

42.5 42.5

Goodwill is tested for impairment at the balance sheet date on the basis of value in use. As this exceeded carrying value for each 
of the cash generating units concerned, no impairment loss was recognised (2011: £nil).

NEXT Sourcing
The key assumptions in the calculation are the future sourcing requirements of the Group and the ability of NEXT Sourcing to meet 
these requirements based on past experience. In assessing value in use, the most recent financial results and internal budgets 
for the next year were used and extrapolated for four further years with no subsequent growth assumed, and discounted at 10% 
(2011: 10%).

Lipsy
In assessing the recoverable amount of goodwill and intangibles, the five year business plan for Lipsy was used and cash flows 
beyond this period extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% (2011: 2%), and discounted at 15% (2011: 15%). The key assumption 
is the net contribution margin of retail and internet sales.

For both NEXT Sourcing and Lipsy, the calculated value in use significantly exceeded the carrying value of the goodwill and other 
intangible assets and no further sensitivity calculations were necessary to conclude that there is no impairment at January 2012.
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13. interests in associates
Aggregated amounts relating to associates:

2012
£m

2011
£m

Share of associates’ revenues and profits:
Revenue 36.3 33.5
Profit 1.5 1.8

Share of associates’ net assets:
Total assets 12.1 10.9
Total liabilities (6.0) (5.8)
Carrying amount of investment 6.1 5.1

During the year the Group sold goods and services in the normal course of business to its associated undertakings as follows:

Sales amounts receivable
2012

£m
2011

£m
2012

£m
2011

£m
Choice Discount Stores Limited 4.8 5.1 0.7 0.5
Cotton Traders Limited 5.5 5.0 0.5 0.8

10.3 10.1 1.2 1.3

14. Other investments 
2012

£m
2011

£m
Other investments available for sale 1.0 1.0

The investments above relate to a minority interest in Gresse Street Limited, which owns a property used for The Fashion Retail 
Academy, a registered charity. These unlisted equity securities are carried at cost since they do not have a quoted price in an 
active market and their fair value cannot be reliably measured. The investments have no maturity or coupon rate. The Group has 
no present intention of disposing of these assets.

15. inventories

2012
£m

2011
£m

Raw materials and work in progress 7.1 5.2
Finished goods 358.9 357.2

366.0 362.4
Property development stocks 5.9 5.9

371.9 368.3
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16. Trade and other receivables
2012

£m
2011

£m
Trade and customer debtors 710.7 642.1
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (113.7) (108.8)

597.0 533.3
Amounts due from associated undertakings 1.2 1.3
Other debtors 10.4 9.7
Prepayments 90.5 101.3

699.1 645.6

The credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired may be assessed by reference to the historical default 
rate for the preceding 365 days of 1.0% (2011: 1.5%), although default rates over shorter periods may show significant variations.

No interest is charged on Directory customer receivables if the statement balance is paid in full; otherwise balances bear interest at 
a variable annual percentage rate of 25.99% (2011: 25.99%). Expected irrecoverable amounts on overdue balances are provided 
for based on past default experience. Customer receivables which are impaired otherwise than by age or default are separately 
identified and provided for in full.

Other debtors and prepayments do not include impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the 
carrying value of each class of asset. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade and customer debtors:

2012
£m

2011
£m

Current 580.3 506.1
0 – 30 days past due 37.7 38.5
30 – 60 days past due 10.8 12.2
60 – 90 days past due 4.5 4.8
90 – 120 days past due 2.9 3.0
Over 120 days past due 56.4 61.2
Otherwise impaired 18.1 16.3

710.7 642.1

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

2012
£m

2011
£m

Opening position 108.8 123.7
 Charged to the income statement 29.9 33.1
 Written off as uncollectible (19.9) (42.3)
 Recovered during the year (3.3) (5.7)
 Disposal of subsidiaries (1.8) –
Closing position 113.7 108.8
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17. Other financial assets
2012 2011

Current
£m

non-
current

£m
Current

£m

Non-
current

£m
Foreign exchange contracts 12.5 – 4.1 –
Interest rate derivatives – 44.6 – 24.3

12.5 44.6 4.1 24.3

Foreign exchange contracts comprise forward contracts and options, the majority of which are used to hedge exchange risk 
arising from the Group’s overseas purchases (Note 31). The instruments purchased are denominated primarily in US Dollars and 
Euros. Interest rate derivatives relate to the corporate bonds (Note 22). 

18. Cash and short term deposits
2012

£m
2011

£m
Cash at bank and in hand 45.8 46.4
Short term deposits 10.6 2.9

56.4 49.3

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term deposits are made for varying periods 
of between one day and three months depending on the cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at market short term 
deposit rates.

19. Bank loans and overdrafts
2012

£m
2011

 £m
Bank overdrafts and overnight borrowings 7.6 10.2
Unsecured bank loans – 115.0

7.6 125.2

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and bear interest at a margin over bank base rates. Overnight borrowings and unsecured 
bank loans fall due within one year of the balance sheet date and bear interest at a margin above LIBOR. In the previous year, the 
unsecured bank loans related to amounts drawn down by the Company under a medium term bank revolving credit facility. This 
was repaid during the current year and a new £300m committed bank facility was put in place, expiring in December 2016. None 
of this facility was drawn down at 28 January 2012.

20. Trade and other payables
2012

£m
2011

 £m
Trade payables 193.1 195.5
Obligations under finance leases 0.1 0.2
Other taxation and social security 61.6 58.5
Share based payment liability 15.1 14.2
Other creditors and accruals 275.1 276.2

545.0 544.6

Trade payables do not bear interest and are generally settled on 30 day terms. Other creditors and accruals do not bear interest.
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21. Other financial liabilities
2012 2011

Current
£m

non-
current

£m
Current

£m

Non-
current

£m
Foreign exchange contracts 2.6 – 7.9 –
Interest rate derivatives – 4.4 1.2 2.6
Own equity share purchase contracts 84.4 – 45.6 –

87.0 4.4 54.7 2.6

Foreign exchange contracts comprise forward contracts and options, the majority of which are used to hedge exchange risk 
arising from the Group’s overseas purchases (Note 31). The instruments purchased are primarily denominated in US Dollars and 
Euros. Interest rate swaps relate to the corporate bonds and their subsequent partial repurchases (Note 22). 

Own equity share purchase contracts relate to outstanding liabilities of £63.6m (2011: £30.3m) arising under contingent purchase 
contracts and an irrevocable closed season buyback agreement for the purchase of the Company’s own shares (Note 26), and 
net liabilities of £20.8m (2011: £15.3m) arising under contingent purchase contracts for the Company’s own shares entered into 
by the ESOT (Note 29). 

22. Corporate bonds
Balance sheet value nominal value
2012

£m
2011

£m
2012

£m
2011

£m
Corporate bond 5.25% repayable 2013 89.9 218.6 85.5 206.3
Corporate bond 5.875% repayable 2016 218.8 252.6 212.6 250.0
Corporate bond 5.375% repayable 2021 343.4 – 325.0 –

652.1 471.2 623.1 456.3

During the year, the Company issued £325m of new 10-year 2021 bonds and redeemed £158.2m of its existing 2013 and 2016 
bonds. Holders of the Company’s 2013 and 2016 bonds were invited to tender their holdings, either for cash or in exchange for 
the new 10-year issue.

The table below shows the effect of the transactions during the period:

 2013 
bonds

 £m

 2016 
bonds

 £m

 2021 
bonds

 £m
 Total
 £m

Consid-
eration

 £m
Nominal value at January 2011 206.3 250.0 – 456.3 –
Bonds tendered and accepted (120.8) (37.4) – (158.2) (169.7)
New issue – – 325.0 325.0 323.0
nominal value at January 2012 85.5 212.6 325.0 623.1 153.3

Consideration paid is before settlement of accrued interest and includes premiums on redemption of £11.3m in respect of the 
2013 and 2016 bonds. The 2016 bond redemption has been treated as a modification, rather than as a debt extinguishment and, 
accordingly, the redemption premium of £3.1m has been capitalised. Consideration received is stated net of transaction fees of 
£2m.

Of the 2013 bonds that were redeemed in the year, £74.2m were exchanged for the new 2021 issue and £46.6m were redeemed 
for cash. All £37.4m of the redeemed 2016 bonds were exchanged for new 2021 bonds. The transactions were settled on a net 
basis. 

The Group uses interest rate derivatives to manage the interest rate risk associated with its bonds. After accounting for fees and 
gains on interest rate swaps, which partly offset the premiums paid on redemption, the transactions resulted in a net £1.5m charge 
to finance costs.
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22.   Corporate bonds (continued)
During the year, £175m of the new £325m bond issue was swapped into floating rate liabilities using interest rate swaps which 
have been designated as fair value hedges. The table below shows the nominal value and effective interest rates over the remaining 
lives of all bonds:

 2012
nominal

value
 £m

 2012
Effective
interest

 rate

 2011
Nominal

 value
 £m

 2011
Effective
interest

 rate
2013 bonds
Floating 85.5  6m liBOR + 0.9% 206.3  6m LIBOR + 0.9%
2016 bonds   
Fixed 162.6  5.875% 200.0  5.875%
Floating 50.0  6m liBOR + 1.7% 25.0  6m LIBOR + 1.7%
Fixed –  – 25.0  4.52% 

212.6 250.0
2021 bonds
Fixed 150.0  5.375% –  –
Floating 175.0  6m liBOR + 1.9% –  –

325.0 –
Total 623.1 456.3

The fair values of the corporate bonds are shown in Note 33.

23. Retirement benefit plans
The Group operates a pension plan in the UK which consists of defined benefit and defined contribution sections. The defined 
benefit section is a funded arrangement which provides benefits based on final pensionable earnings which are salaries, overtime 
and, prior to 1 October 2006, annual performance bonuses. From 1 October 2006, sales and profit related bonuses ceased 
to be part of pensionable earnings. The defined benefit section was closed to new members from October 2000. The defined 
contribution section is for all members who joined after September 2000 and benefits are based on each individual member’s 
personal account. The plan has equal pension rights with respect to members of either sex and complies with the Employment 
Equality Regulations (2006). The assets of the plan are held in a separate trustee administered fund. The Group also provides 
further, unfunded retirement benefits to plan members whose benefits would otherwise be restricted by the lifetime allowance. 

In 2010, as part of the Group’s risk management strategy for the liabilities arising under the Plan, most pensioner liabilities were 
subject to a buy-in arrangement. Under the terms of this arrangement, the Plan paid £124m to an insurance company and 
receives annuity payments equal to the monthly pensions then in payment. This eliminates the Plan’s exposure to the interest, 
inflation and longevity risks associated with these pensioner members.

The components of the net benefit expense recognised in the consolidated income statement are as follows:

2012 2011
funded

£m
unfunded

£m
Total

£m
Funded

£m
Unfunded

£m
Total

£m
Current service cost 8.7 0.5 9.2 9.5 0.5 10.0
Interest cost on benefit obligation 25.0 0.4 25.4 26.7 0.4 27.1
Expected return on plan assets (32.1) – (32.1) (27.8) – (27.8)
Net benefit expense recognised 
in administration expenses 1.6 0.9 2.5 8.4 0.9 9.3

Curtailment gain on disposal of  
Ventura (Note 2) 1.5 – 1.5 – – –

Actual return on plan assets 34.3 – 34.3 39.0 – 39.0
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23. Retirement benefit plans (continued)
Changes in the present value of defined benefit pension obligations are analysed as follows:

2012 2011
funded

£m
unfunded

£m
Total

£m
Funded

£m
Unfunded

£m
Total

£m
Opening obligation 443.9 7.5 451.4 475.6 6.7 482.3
Current service cost 8.7 0.5 9.2 9.5 0.5 10.0
Interest cost 25.0 0.4 25.4 26.7 0.4 27.1
Disposal of Ventura (1.5) – (1.5) – – –
Employee contributions 0.2 – 0.2 0.2 – 0.2
Benefits paid (10.4) – (10.4) (15.1) – (15.1)
Actuarial losses/(gains) 29.7 1.0 30.7 (53.0) (0.1) (53.1)
Closing retirement benefit obligation 495.6 9.4 505.0 443.9 7.5 451.4

Changes in the fair value of defined benefit pension assets were as follows:

2012 2011
funded

£m
unfunded

£m
Total

£m
Funded

£m
Unfunded

£m
Total

£m
Opening assets 507.1 – 507.1 432.8 – 432.8
Employer contributions 8.9 – 8.9 50.2 – 50.2
Employee contributions 0.2 – 0.2 0.2 – 0.2
Benefits paid (10.4) – (10.4) (15.1) – (15.1)
Expected return on assets 32.1 – 32.1 27.8 – 27.8
Actuarial gains 2.2 – 2.2 11.2 – 11.2
Closing retirement benefit assets 540.1 – 540.1 507.1 – 507.1

The fair value of plan assets was as follows:

  2012 2011
£m % £m %

Equities 223.2 41.3 244.0 48.1
Bonds 62.9 11.6 56.9 11.2
Gilts 62.0 11.5 36.7 7.2
Property 19.8 3.7 18.3 3.6
Insurance contract 114.8 21.3 103.8 20.5
Other (cash deposits) 57.4 10.6 47.4 9.4

540.1 100.0 507.1 100.0

The net defined benefit pension asset/(liability) is analysed as follows:

2012 2011
funded

£m
unfunded

£m
Total

£m
Funded

£m
Unfunded

£m
Total

£m
Total assets 540.1  – 540.1 507.1 – 507.1
Benefit obligation (495.6) (9.4) (505.0) (443.9) (7.5) (451.4)
Net pension asset/(liability) 44.5 (9.4) 35.1 63.2 (7.5) 55.7
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24. Provisions
vacant 

property 
costs

£m
At January 2011  13.3
 Provisions made in the year 7.1
 Utilisation of provision (5.7)
 Release of provision (3.5)
 Unwind of discount 0.8
at January 2012 12.0

Provision is made for the cost of future rentals or estimated exit costs of properties no longer occupied by the Group to which the 
Group remains committed, over an average remaining lease term of three years (2011: four years).

25.  Other non-current liabilities
2012

£m
2011

 £m
Obligations under finance leases 0.4 0.5
Share based payment liability 10.6 13.8
Other creditors and accruals 194.2 202.2

205.2 216.5

Other non-current creditors and accruals include £188.9m (2011: £199.1m) of property lease incentives received which will be 
credited to the income statement more than one year from the balance sheet date.

26. Share capital
2012
’000

2011
’000

2012
£m

2011
£m

allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10p each
At January 2011 181,221 191,169 18.1 19.1
Shares issued – 6 – –
Purchased for cancellation (12,481) (9,954) (1.2) (1.0)
at January 2012 168,740 181,221 16.9 18.1

During the year the Company purchased for cancellation 12,481,600 of its own ordinary shares at a total cost of £289.7m (2011: 
9,954,115 shares at a total cost of £205.4m).

At 28 January 2012 the Company was party to an irrevocable closed season buyback agreement and outstanding contingent 
purchase contracts for the purchase of its own ordinary shares for a maximum total cost of £63.6m (January 2011: £30.3m). At 20 
March 2012, £15.4m of the year end commitment had been fulfilled, £41.2m was unfulfilled and had expired, and £7.0m remained 
open for potential completion under contingent purchase contracts.

27. Other reserves
Other reserves in the consolidated balance sheet comprise the reserve created on reduction of share capital through the Scheme 
of Arrangement under Section 425 of the Companies Act 1985 (£1,460.7m) less share premium account (£3.8m) and capital 
redemption reserve (£8.7m) at the time of the capital reconstruction in 2002 plus the accumulated amount of goodwill arising on 
acquisition after taking into account subsequent disposals (£0.7m) less the unrealised component of revaluations of properties 
arising under previous accounting standards (£5.1m).
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28. Equity settled share based payments
The Group operates a number of share based payment schemes as set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 35 to 36 and 
below:

Management and Sharesave options
The following table summarises the number and weighted average exercise prices of, and movements in, management and 
sharesave options during the year:

 2012  2011
no. of 

options
weighted average

exercise price
 No. of
options

Weighted average
exercise price

Outstanding at beginning of year 12,504,404 £14.66 13,136,299 £13.51
Granted 2,773,077 £20.73 2,443,191 £21.07
Exercised (5,447,415) £12.42 (2,069,313) £14.96
Forfeited (610,873) £16.72 (1,005,773) £14.59
Outstanding at end of year 9,219,193 £17.67 12,504,404 £14.66

Exercisable at end of year 1,410,373 £16.74 2,130,599 £18.69

Options were exercised on a regular basis throughout the year and the weighted average share price during this period was 2407p 
(2011: 2176p). Options outstanding at 28 January 2012 are exercisable at prices ranging between 889p and 2189p (2011: 889p 
to 2189p) and have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.5 years (2011: 6.3 years), as analysed below: 

2012 2011

no. of 
options 

weighted average 
remaining 

contractual
life (years)

No. of 
options

Weighted average 
remaining 

contractual
life (years)

Exercise price range 
889p – 1131p 807,075 3.4 4,960,403 5.2
1302p – 1399p 2,369,571 7.2 2,661,267 8.2
1412p – 1782p 1,183,255 2.7 1,840,096 3.8
2070p 1,985,360 9.2 – –
2084p – 2189p 2,873,932 6.6 3,042,638 8.0

9,219,193 6.5 12,504,404 6.3

Included in the above balances were 3,000 options (2011: 55,000) that were granted prior to 7 November 2002 and which have 
not been subsequently modified and are, therefore, not required to be recognised in accordance with IFRS 2.

Share matching plan
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices of, and movements in, share matching plan 
options during the year:

2012
no. of 

options 

2011
No. of 

options
Outstanding at beginning of year 383,772 –
Granted 314,092 383,772
Forfeited (18,632) –
Outstanding at end of year 679,232 383,772

There have been two awards of nil cost options under the share matching plan (June 2010 and April 2011). The weighted average 
remaining contractual life of these options is 8.8 years (2011: 9.4 years). There were no exercises of share matching plan options 
during the current or prior year, and none were exercisable at the end of the current or prior year.
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28. Equity settled share based payments (continued)

fair value calculation
The fair value of management, sharesave and share matching plan options granted is calculated at the date of grant using a 
Black–Scholes option pricing model. Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Company’s 
share price over a period equivalent to the expected life of the option. The expected life applied in the model is based on historical 
analyses of exercise patterns, taking into account any early exercises.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used for options granted in the years ended 28 January 2012 and 29 January 2011 
based on information at the date of grant:

Management share options
2012 2011

Weighted average share price at date of grant £20.70 £21.83
Weighted average exercise price £20.70 £21.83
Volatility 41.4% 40.9%
Expected life 4 years 4 years
Risk free rate 2.37% 2.35%
Dividend yield 3.48% 2.57%
Weighted average fair value per option £5.51 £6.20

Sharesave plans
2012 2011

Weighted average share price at date of grant £26.05 £22.27
Weighted average exercise price £20.84 £17.82
Volatility 34.4% 43.4%
Expected life 3.3 years 3.5 years
Risk free rate 0.96% 1.11%
Dividend yield 2.99% 2.96%
Weighted average fair value per option £7.23 £7.36

Share matching plan
2012 2011

Weighted average share price at date of grant £22.37 £20.23
Weighted average exercise price nil nil
Volatility 41.4% 41.4%
Expected life 3 years 4 years
Risk free rate 1.59% 1.24%
Dividend yield 3.49% 3.26%
Weighted average fair value per option £20.15 £17.76

29.   Shares held by ESOT
The NEXT 2003 Employee Share Ownership Trust (“ESOT”) has an independent professional trustee resident in Jersey and 
provides for the issue of shares to Group employees, including share issues under share options, at the discretion of the Trustee. 
All employee share options which were exercised during the year were satisfied by shares issued from the ESOT.

At 28 January 2012 the ESOT held 5,637,388 (2011: 6,392,633) ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company, the market value of 
which amounted to £148.8m (2011: £127.5m). Details of outstanding share options are shown in Note 28.

The consideration paid for the ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company held by the ESOT at 28 January 2012 and 29 January 
2011 has been shown as an ESOT reserve and presented within equity for the Company and the Group. All other assets, liabilities, 
income and costs of the ESOT have been incorporated into the accounts of the Company and the Group.
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29.    Shares held by ESOT (continued)
During the year to January 2012, the ESOT purchased 2,660,000 NEXT plc shares in the open market at a total cost of £62.6m 
and 2,025,000 shares under off-market contingent purchase contracts at a total cost of £45.1m. During the previous year, the 
ESOT purchased 1,500,000 NEXT plc shares in the open market at a total cost of £32.3m and 3,325,000 shares under off-market 
contingent purchase contracts at a total cost of £68.0m.

At 28 January 2012, the ESOT was party to off-market contingent purchase contracts for a maximum of 825,000 NEXT plc shares 
at a maximum liability of £20.8m. At 29 January 2011 the ESOT was party to off-market contingent purchase contracts for a 
maximum of 725,000 NEXT plc shares at a maximum total cost of £15.3m.

At 20 March 2012, £7.3m of the ESOT’s year end purchase commitment had been fulfilled. The remainder was unfulfilled and is 
no longer open for completion. At 20 March 2012, employee share options over 157,679 shares had been exercised subsequent 
to the balance sheet date and had been satisfied by ordinary shares issued by the ESOT.

30. financial instruments: risk management
NEXT operates a centralised treasury function which is responsible for managing the liquidity, interest and foreign currency risks 
associated with the Group’s activities. As part of its strategy for the management of these risks, the Group uses derivative 
financial instruments. In accordance with the Group’s treasury policy, derivative instruments are not entered into for speculative 
purposes. Treasury policy is reviewed and approved by the Board and specifies the parameters within which treasury operations 
must be conducted, including authorised counterparties, instrument types and transaction limits, and principles governing the 
management of liquidity, interest and foreign currency risks.

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, are cash and short term deposits, bank overdrafts and loans, 
and corporate bonds. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. In addition, 
the Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables arising directly from its 
operations.

Liquidity risk
The Group manages its cash and borrowing requirements centrally to minimise net interest expense within risk parameters agreed 
by the Board, whilst ensuring that the Group has sufficient liquid resources to meet the operating needs of its businesses. The 
forecast cash and borrowings profile of the Group is monitored to ensure that adequate headroom remains under committed 
borrowing facilities.

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows (including interest) of the 
Group’s financial liabilities:

2012

less than
1 year

£m

1 to 2
 years

£m

2 to 5
 years

£m

Over 5
years

£m
Total

£m
Bank loans and overdrafts 7.6 – – – 7.6
Trade and other payables 373.5 – – – 373.5
Finance lease liabilities 0.1 0.1 0.3 – 0.5
Corporate bonds 34.4 120.0 302.5 412.3 869.2
Other liabilities 84.4 – 0.7 – 85.1

500.0 120.1 303.5 412.3 1,335.9
Derivatives: net settled (11.6) (10.6) (10.3) (10.4) (42.9)
Derivatives: gross settled
 Cash inflows (819.2) – – – (819.2)
 Cash outflows 810.0 – – –  810.0
Total cash flows  479.2 109.5 293.2 401.9 1,283.8
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30.   financial instruments: risk management (continued)

2011

Less than
1 year

£m

1 to 2
 years

£m

2 to 5
 years

£m

Over 5
years

£m
Total

£m
Bank loans and overdrafts 125.2 – – – 125.2
Trade and other payables 380.2 – – – 380.2
Finance lease liabilities 0.2 0.2 0.4 – 0.8
Corporate bonds 25.5 25.5 261.2 264.7 576.9
Other liabilities 45.6 – – – 45.6

576.7 25.7 261.6 264.7 1,128.7
Derivatives: net settled (6.6) (6.6) (7.8) (0.5) (21.5)
Derivatives: gross settled
 Cash inflows (656.0) – – – (656.0)
 Cash outflows 658.4 – – –  658.4
Total cash flows  572.5 19.1 253.8 264.2 1,109.6

At 28 January 2012 the Group had borrowing facilities of £300m (2011: £295.0m) in respect of which all conditions precedent 
have been met and which are committed to December 2016 (2011: July 2013). None of this facility was drawn down at 28 January 
2012 (2011: £115m).

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk on its fixed rate corporate bonds and cash flow interest rate risk on floating 
rate bank loans and overdrafts. The forecast cash and borrowings profile of the Group is monitored regularly to assess the mix of 
fixed and variable rate debt, and the Group uses interest rate derivatives where appropriate to reduce its exposure to changes in 
interest rates and the economic environment. 

Foreign currency risk
The Group’s principal foreign currency exposures arise from the purchase of overseas sourced products. Group policy allows for 
these exposures to be hedged for up to 18 months ahead in order to fix the cost in Sterling. This hedging activity involves, inter 
alia, the use of spot, forward and option contracts.

The market value of outstanding foreign exchange contracts is reported regularly at Board level, and reviewed in conjunction with 
percentage cover taken by season and current market conditions in order to assess and manage the Group’s ongoing exposure.

The Group does not have a material exposure to currency movements in relation to translation of overseas assets or liabilities and 
consequently does not hedge any such exposure.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date are 
detailed in the table below. The Group’s net exposure to foreign currencies, taking hedging activities into account is illustrated by 
the sensitivity analysis in Note 34.

assets liabilities
2012

£m
2011

£m
2012

£m
 2011
 £m

US Dollar 12.1 2.8 (1.8) (7.9)
Euro 0.4 1.3 (0.8) –

Credit risk
Investments of cash surpluses, borrowings and derivative instruments are made through banks and companies which must 
fulfil credit rating and investment criteria approved by the Board. Concentrations of risk are mitigated by the use of various 
counterparties at any one time.

All customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. Receivable balances are monitored 
on an ongoing basis and provision is made for estimated irrecoverable amounts. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to 
the Directory customer base being large and diverse.

The Group’s outstanding receivables balances are detailed in Note 16.
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30. financial instruments: risk management (continued)

Capital risk
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, as analysed in Note 35, and equity attributable to the equity holders of the 
parent company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as shown in the consolidated statement of changes 
in equity. The Group manages its capital with the objective that all entities within the Group continue as going concerns while 
maintaining an efficient structure to minimise the cost of capital. The Group is not restricted by any externally imposed capital 
requirements.

As part of its strategy for delivering sustainable long term growth in earnings per share, the Group has been returning capital 
to shareholders by way of share buybacks in addition to dividends. Share buybacks are transacted through both on-market 
purchases and contingent contracts for off-market share purchases.

31. financial instruments: hedging activities

Foreign currency: cash flow hedges
The Group uses derivative instruments in order to manage foreign currency exchange risk arising on expected future purchases 
of overseas sourced products for up to 18 months ahead. These comprise forward currency contracts and currency options, the 
terms of which match the terms of the expected purchases. Fair values of foreign exchange derivatives are as follows:

2012
£m

2011
 £m

Derivatives in designated hedging relationships 11.5  (3.2)
Other foreign exchange derivatives  (1.6)  (0.6)
Total foreign exchange derivatives 9.9  (3.8)

The total notional amount outstanding at the balance sheet date is as follows:

2012
£m

2011
 £m

US Dollar 727.5 573.8
Euro 90.3 77.6
Other – 4.6

817.8  656.0

Interest rates: fair value hedges
The Group has interest rate swap agreements in place as fair value hedges of part of the interest rate risk associated with the 
Company’s corporate bonds. Under the terms of the swaps, which have the same key features as the bonds, the Group receives 
a fixed rate of interest equivalent to the relevant coupon rate, and pays a variable rate. Details of the effective rates payable are 
given in Note 22. 

The fair values of the Group’s interest rate swaps, including accrued interest, are as follows:

2012
£m

2011
 £m

Derivatives in designated fair value hedging relationships 31.4  17.4
Other interest rate derivatives 8.8  3.1
Total interest rate derivatives 40.2  20.5

Other interest rate derivatives relate to economic hedges of variable rate interest payments due under swaps relating to the 2013 
corporate bond which are not able to be hedge accounted for under IAS 39.

The fair values of derivatives have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and 
are based on market prices at the balance sheet date.
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32.   financial instruments: categories
2012

£m
2011

£m
Financial assets
 Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss – held for trading  13.8  7.9
 Derivatives in designated hedging relationships  43.3  20.5
 Loans and receivables  608.4  542.0
 Cash and short term deposits  56.4  49.3

 Available for sale financial assets  1.0  1.0

Financial liabilities   
 Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss – held for trading  (6.6)  (5.4)
 Derivatives in designated hedging relationships  (0.4)  (6.3)
 Corporate bonds  (652.1)  (471.2)
 Amortised cost  (466.2)  (551.0)

 Finance lease obligations  (0.5)  (0.7)

All derivatives are categorised as Level 2 under the requirements of IFRS 7, as they are valued using techniques based significantly 
on observed market data.

33.   financial instruments: fair values
The fair values of each category of the Group’s financial instruments are the same as their carrying values in the Group’s balance 
sheet, other than as noted below:

 2012  2011
Carrying
amount

£m
fair value

£m

Carrying
amount

£m
Fair value

£m
Corporate bonds
In hedging relationships 339.5 328.5 271.2 275.2
Not in hedging relationships 312.6 336.0 200.0 214.3

652.1 664.5 471.2 489.5

The fair values of corporate bonds are their market values at the balance sheet date. Market values include credit risk and are 
therefore different to the reported carrying value of bonds in fair value hedging relationships, which adjusts the nominal value of the 
bond for changes in interest rate risk only. Corporate bonds not in hedging relationships are carried at unadjusted amortised cost.

34.   financial instruments: sensitivity analysis

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group’s principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dollars and the Euro. The table below illustrates the hypothetical 
sensitivity of the Group’s reported profit and closing equity to a 10% increase and decrease in the US Dollar/Sterling and Euro/
Sterling exchange rates at the year end date, assuming all other variables remain unchanged.  The sensitivity rate of 10% (2011: 
10%) represents the directors’ assessment of a reasonably possible change, based on historical volatility.

The analysis assumes that exchange rate fluctuations on currency derivatives that form part of an effective cash flow hedge 
relationship affect the fair value reserve in equity and the fair value of the hedging derivatives. For foreign exchange derivatives 
which are not designated hedges, movements in exchange rates impact the income statement.

Positive figures represent an increase in profit or equity.
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34. financial instruments: sensitivity analysis (continued)

income statement Equity
 2012

£m
 2011

£m
 2012

£m
 2011

£m
Sterling strengthens by 10%
US Dollar (11.3) (9.8) (39.0) (33.9)
Euro (2.3) 0.2 (5.7) (2.6)
Sterling weakens by 10%
US Dollar (8.0) 5.2 35.5 35.8
Euro (1.2) (1.7) 4.1 1.7

Year end exchange rates applied in the above analysis are US Dollar 1.57 (2011: 1.58) and Euro 1.19 (2011: 1.16). Strengthening 
and weakening of Sterling may not produce symmetrical results depending on the proportion and nature of foreign exchange 
derivatives which do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The table below illustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group’s reported profit and closing equity to a 0.5% (2011: 0.5%) 
increase or decrease in interest rates, assuming all other variables were unchanged. The sensitivity rate of 0.5% (2011: 0.5%) 
represents the directors’ assessment of a reasonably possible change, based on historical volatility.

The analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions:

■■ For floating rate assets and liabilities, the amount of asset or liability outstanding at the balance sheet date is assumed to have 
been outstanding for the whole year.

■■ Fixed rate financial instruments that are carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate risk for the purpose of this 
analysis.

Positive figures represent an increase in profit or equity.

income statement Equity
2012

£m
2011

£m
2012

£m
2011

£m
Interest rate increase of 0.5% (2011: 0.5%) (1.3) (1.4) (1.3) (1.4)
Interest rate decrease of 0.5% (2011: 0.5%) 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.4

35. analysis of net debt

January
2011

£m
Cash flow

£m

Other 
non-cash
changes

£m

January
2012

£m
Cash and short term deposits 49.3 56.4
Overdrafts (10.2) (7.6)
Cash and cash equivalents 39.1 9.6 0.1 48.8
Unsecured bank loans (115.0) 115.0 – –
Corporate bonds (471.2) (153.3) (27.6) (652.1)
Fair value hedges of corporate bonds 17.4 – 11.7 29.1
Finance leases (0.7) 0.2 – (0.5)
Total net debt (530.4) (28.5) (15.8) (574.7)
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35. analysis of net debt (continued)

January
2010

£m
Cash flow

£m

Other 
non-cash
changes

£m

January
2011

£m
Cash and short term deposits 107.0 49.3
Overdrafts (4.7) (10.2)
Cash and cash equivalents 102.3 (63.3) 0.1 39.1
Unsecured bank loans – (115.0) – (115.0)
Corporate bonds (520.9) 51.3 (1.6) (471.2)
Fair value hedges of corporate bonds 19.5 – (2.1) 17.4
Finance leases (1.0) 0.3 – (0.7)
Total net debt (400.1) (126.7) (3.6) (530.4)

36.  Operating lease commitments
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases where the Group is the lessee:

2012
£m

Excluding
Ventura

2011
£m

Total
2011

 £m
Within one year 207.5 205.3 211.0
In two to five years 756.7 743.0 765.8
Over five years 821.0 882.7 917.1

1,785.2 1,831.0 1,893.9

Ventura was sold during the current year (see Note 2). Prior year figures excluding Ventura are shown above to provide a more 
meaningful comparison of the year-on-year change for the Group’s ongoing business.

At 28 January 2012, future rentals receivable under non-cancellable sub-leases where the Group is the lessor were £39.0m (2011: 
£23.3m).

The Group has entered into operating leases in respect of vehicles, equipment, warehouses, office equipment and retail stores. 
These non-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between 3 months and 20 years. Contingent rentals are payable on certain 
retail store leases based on store revenues. The majority of the Group’s operating leases provide for their renewal by mutual 
agreement at the expiry of the lease term.
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37.  Profit after taxation
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the income statement of the Company is not presented as part of the 
financial statements. The profit after taxation dealt with in the accounts of the holding company was £179.1m (2011: profit of 
£183.6m).

38. investments in subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are given in Group Companies on page 91.

39. Current and non-current assets
At the balance sheet date, trade and other receivables comprise £nil (2011: £1.2m) of amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 
and £7.4m (2011: £2.1m) of prepaid finance costs.

Cash and short term deposits comprise cash at bank and in hand and deposits with a maturity of three months or less. 

The carrying amount of current and non-current assets approximates to their fair value.

Other financial assets comprise interest rate derivatives as detailed in Note 17 which are carried at their fair value.

40. Current and non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables comprise £235.5m (2011: £nil) of amounts due to subsidiary undertakings and £11.9m (2011: £11.6m) 
of other creditors and accruals. Other current financial liabilities include amounts payable under the Company’s closed season 
buyback arrangements and contingent purchase contracts, including those entered into by the ESOT for the Company’s own 
shares. The carrying amount of these liabilities approximates to their fair value.

Other non-current financial liabilities comprise interest rate derivative instruments carried at fair value (Note 21).

Details of the terms of bank overdrafts and unsecured bank loans are given in Note 19.

41. Other reserves
Other reserves in the Company balance sheet of £985.2m (2011: £985.2m) represent the difference between the market price and 
the nominal value of shares issued as part of the capital reconstruction on acquisition of NEXT Group Plc which has been subject 
to Section 131 Companies Act 1985 merger relief.
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42. analysis of net debt

January
2011

£m
Cash flow

£m

Other
non-cash
changes

£m

January
2012

£m
Cash and short term deposits  –  10.6
Overdrafts  –  –
Cash and cash equivalents  – 10.6 –  10.6
Unsecured bank loans  (115.0) 115.0 –  –
Corporate bonds  (471.2) (153.3) (27.6)  (652.1)
Fair value hedges of corporate bonds  17.4 – 11.7  29.1
Total net debt (568.8) (27.7) (15.9)  (612.4)

January
2010

£m
Cash flow

£m

Other
non-cash
changes

£m

January
2011

£m
Cash and short term deposits  61.1  –
Overdrafts  –  –
Cash and cash equivalents  61.1 (61.1) –  –
Unsecured bank loans  – (115.0) –  (115.0)
Corporate bonds  (520.9) 51.3 (1.6)  (471.2)
Fair value hedges of corporate bonds  19.5 – (2.1)  17.4
Total net debt  (440.3) (124.8) (3.7)  (568.8)

43. financial instruments
The Company is exposed to liquidity, interest rate, credit and capital risks and adopts the same approach to the management of 
these risks as the Group, as detailed in Note 30.

The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as it has no foreign currency assets or liabilities. 

Trade and other receivables primarily comprise amounts due from Group companies and therefore the Company’s exposure to 
credit risk is limited; none of these assets are overdue or impaired.

The Company hedges its exposure to interest rate risk associated with its corporate bonds as detailed in Notes 22 and 31. The 
fair values of the Company’s corporate bonds are shown in Note 33.

The following table shows the sensitivity of the Company’s reported profit and closing equity to movements in interest rates under 
the same assumptions as detailed in Note 34:

income statement Equity
2012

£m
2011

£m
2012

£m
2011

£m
Interest rate increase of 0.5% (2011: 0.5%) (1.4) (1.5) (1.4) (1.5)
Interest rate decrease of 0.5% (2011: 0.5%) 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.5
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43. financial instruments (continued)
The following table shows the carrying values of the Company’s financial instruments by category:

2012
£m

2011
 £m

Financial assets
 Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss – held for trading 13.2 6.9
 Derivatives in designated hedging relationships 31.4 17.4
 Cash and short term deposits 10.6  –

Financial liabilities
 Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss – held for trading (4.4) (3.8)
 Corporate bonds (652.1) (471.2)
 Amortised cost (331.8) (172.2)

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of the Company’s financial 
liabilities:

2012

less than 
1 year

£m

1 to 2
years

£m

2 to 5
years

£m

Over 5
years

£m
Total

£m
Trade and other payables 237.7 – – – 237.7
Other liabilities 84.4 – – – 84.4
Corporate bonds 34.4 120.0 302.5 412.3 869.2

356.5 120.0 302.5 412.3 1,191.3
Derivatives: net settled (11.6) (10.6) (10.3) (10.4) (42.9)
Total cash flows 344.9 109.4 292.2 401.9 1,148.4

2011

Less than
1 year

£m

1 to 2
years

£m

2 to 5
years

£m

Over 5
years

£m
Total

£m
Bank loans and overdrafts 115.0 – – – 115.0
Trade and other payables 3.4 – – – 3.4
Other liabilities 45.6 – – – 45.6
Corporate bonds 25.5 25.5 261.2 264.7 576.9

189.5 25.5 261.2 264.7 740.9
Derivatives: net settled (6.6) (6.6) (7.8) (0.5) (21.5)
Total cash flows 182.9 18.9 253.4 264.2 719.4

44. Related party transactions
During the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with other related parties as follows.

2012
£m

2011
£m

Transactions with subsidiary undertakings:
 Recharge of costs (419.4) (402.9)
 Funds advanced/(borrowed) (16.3) 107.4
 Dividends received 200.0 200.0
 Interest payable (1.0) (0.6)

Amounts due (to)/from subsidiary undertakings (235.5) 1.2
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The Company has taken advantage of Section 410(2) of the Companies Act 2006 to list only its principal subsidiary and associated 
undertakings at 28 January 2012. All of these are wholly owned by the Company or its subsidiary undertakings, registered in 
England and Wales, and operate predominantly in the United Kingdom, unless otherwise stated.

Subsidiary undertakings

NEXT Group Plc Intermediate holding company

NEXT Retail Limited ¹ Retailing of womenswear, menswear, childrenswear, home products, accessories 
and jewellery

NEXT Directory ² Home shopping for womenswear, menswear,  childrenswear, home products, 
accessories and jewellery

NEXT Sourcing Limited ¹ Overseas sourcing services (Hong Kong)

NEXT Manufacturing (Pvt) Limited ¹ Garment manufacture (Sri Lanka)

NEXT Distribution Limited ¹ Warehousing and distribution services

Lipsy Limited ¹ Retailing, home shopping and wholesaling of womenswear and accessories

Associated undertakings

Choice Discount Stores Limited ¹ Retailing (40%)

Cotton Traders Holdings Limited ¹ Home shopping and retailing (33%)

¹ Shareholdings held by subsidiary undertakings

² The trade of the NEXT Directory is carried out as a division of NEXT Retail Limited

Group Companies
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first
half
£m

Second
half
£m

2012
£m

First
half
£m

Second
half
£m

2011
£m

Revenue
NEXT Retail 1,008.2 1,183.2 2,191.4 1,026.2 1,195.9 2,222.1
NEXT Directory 486.7 602.0 1,088.7 422.8 512.7 935.5
NEXT International 33.6 42.7 76.3 30.8 36.5 67.3
NEXT Sourcing 3.2 4.3 7.5 1.7 2.4 4.1
Lipsy 22.7 32.2 54.9 18.9 25.8 44.7
Property Management 3.1 3.1 6.2 3.3 3.6 6.9
Other activities 8.0 8.1 16.1 8.0 9.1 17.1
Total – continuing 1,565.5 1,875.6 3,441.1 1,511.7 1,786.0 3,297.7
Ventura (discontinued) 64.8 – 64.8 75.5 80.5 156.0

Profit before tax
 
 

NEXT Retail 122.5 201.2 323.7 122.9 205.9 328.8
NEXT Directory 112.8 149.8 262.6 101.3 120.6 221.9
NEXT International 3.2 4.7 7.9 2.3 3.5 5.8
NEXT Sourcing 10.1 11.0 21.1 12.5 14.2 26.7
Lipsy (0.4) 1.7 1.3 0.3 0.7 1.0
Property Management 3.4 2.2 5.6 1.3 1.0 2.3
Other activities (10.3) (10.1) (20.4) (18.0) (1.7) (19.7)
Operating profit 241.3 360.5 601.8 222.6 344.2 566.8
Net finance costs (13.3) (9.0) (22.3) (12.4) (11.0) (23.4)
Total – continuing 228.0 351.5 579.5 210.2 333.2 543.4
Ventura (discontinued) 2.9 – 2.9 3.1 4.9 8.0

five Year History
Year ended January

Continuing and discontinued operations
 2012

 £m
2011

£m
2010

£m
2009

£m
2008

£m

Revenue 3,505.9 3,453.7 3,406.5 3,271.5 3,329.1

Operating profit 604.7 574.8 529.8 478.3 537.1
Net finance costs (22.3) (23.4) (24.5) (49.5) (39.0)
Profit on disposal of Ventura 38.0 – – – –
Profit before taxation 620.4 551.4 505.3 428.8 498.1
Taxation (145.6) (150.5) (141.3) (126.5) (144.2)
Profit after taxation 474.8 400.9 364.0 302.3 353.9

Total equity 222.7 232.4 133.4 140.5 (95.2)

Shares purchased for cancellation  12.5m  10.0m  5.9m  3.9m  26.1m

Dividend per share  90.0p  78.0p  66.0p  55.0p  55.0p

Basic earnings per share
 Total  282.0p  221.9p  188.5p  156.0p  168.7p
 Underlying  255.4p  221.9p  188.5p  156.0p  168.7p

Half Year and Sector analysis
Year ended January
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THiS DOCuMEnT iS iMPORTanT anD REquiRES YOuR iMMEDiaTE aTTEnTiOn. if you are in any doubt as to the 
action you should take, you are recommended to seek your own personal financial advice from your stockbroker, 
bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other financial advisor authorised under the financial Services and Markets 
act 2000.

if you have sold or otherwise transferred all your nExT shares, please send this document, together with the 
accompanying form of Proxy, as soon as possible to the purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other 
agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for delivery to the purchaser or transferee.

Notice is given that the Annual General Meeting of NEXT plc will be held at the Leicester Marriott Hotel, Smith Way, Grove Park, 
Leicester LE19 1SW on Thursday 17 May 2012 at 9.30 a.m. at which the following resolutions will be proposed; resolutions 1 to 
14 as Ordinary Resolutions and 15 to 18 as Special Resolutions.

further information on these resolutions can be found in the Directors’ Report and Business Review on pages 18 
to 21 and in the appendix to this notice.  Biographies of directors seeking re-election are shown on page 24 of the 
annual Report.

1    To receive and adopt the accounts and reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended 28 January 2012.

2    To approve the remuneration report for the year ended 28 January 2012.

3    To declare a final dividend of 62.5p per share in respect of the year ended 28 January 2012.

4    To re-elect John Barton as a director. 

5    To re-elect Christos Angelides as a director.

6    To re-elect Steve Barber as a director.

7    To re-elect Christine Cross as a director.

8    To re-elect Jonathan Dawson as a director.

9    To re-elect David Keens as a director.

10 To re-elect Francis Salway as a director.

11 To re-elect Andrew Varley as a director.

12 To re-elect Simon Wolfson as a director.

13 To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors and authorise the directors to set their remuneration.

14 Directors’ authority to allot shares

That:

(a)  the directors be authorised to allot equity securities (as defined in Section 560 of the Companies Act 2006) in the Company:

 (i)   in accordance with article 7 of the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”), up to a maximum nominal amount 
of £5,600,000; and

 (ii)   up to a maximum nominal amount of £11,200,000 (as reduced by any equity securities allotted under paragraph (a)(i) 
  above) in connection with an offer by way of a rights issue (as defined in article 8 of the Articles);

(b)  in accordance with article 7 of the Articles this authority shall expire at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting 
of the Company after the passing of this resolution, or, if earlier, at the close of business on 1 August 2013; and

(c) all previous unutilised authorities under Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 shall cease to have effect (save to the 
extent that the same are exercisable pursuant to Section 551(7) of the Companies Act 2006 by reason of any offer or 
agreement made prior to the date of this resolution which would or might require shares to be allotted on or after that 
date).

15 Disapplication of pre-emption rights

  That: 

(a) in accordance with article 8 of the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”), the directors be given power to allot 
equity securities for cash;

notice of Meeting

21127-04NEXTPLC.indd   93 10/04/2012   10:17:40



94 Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 28 January 2012

21127-04  05/04/2012 Proof 5

Additional information

(b) the power under paragraph (a) above (other than in connection with a rights issue, as defined in article 8(b)(ii) of the Articles) 
shall be limited to the allotment of equity securities having a nominal amount not exceeding in aggregate £840,000;

(c) in accordance with article 8 of the Articles this authority shall expire at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting 
of the Company after the passing of this resolution or, if earlier, at the close of business on 1 August 2013; and

(d) all previous unutilised authorities under Sections 570 and 573 of the Companies Act 2006 shall cease to have effect.

16 On-market purchase of own shares

That in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”), the Company be granted general and unconditional authority 
to make market purchases (as defined in Section 693 of the Act) of any of its own ordinary shares on such terms and in such 
manner as the directors may determine provided that:

(a) the authority conferred by this resolution shall be limited to the lesser of 25,222,000 ordinary shares of 10p each and no 
more than 14.99% of the issued ordinary shares outstanding at the date of the Annual General Meeting, such limit to be 
reduced by the number of any shares purchased pursuant to the authority granted at resolution 17 below;

(b) the minimum price which may be paid for ordinary shares (exclusive of expenses) is 10p per ordinary share;

(c) the maximum price which may be paid for each ordinary share (exclusive of expenses) is an amount not more than the 
higher of 105% of the average of the middle market price of the ordinary shares of the Company according to the Daily 
Official List of the London Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of purchase and the 
amount stipulated by Article 5(1) of the Buy-back and Stabilisation Regulation 2003;

(d) the authority hereby conferred, unless renewed, shall expire on whichever is the earlier of the conclusion of the Annual 
General Meeting of the Company held in 2013 and 1 August 2013;

(e) the Company may make a contract or contracts to purchase ordinary shares under the authority hereby conferred prior 
to the expiry of such authority which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority and may 
make a purchase of ordinary shares in pursuance of any such contract; and

(f) all existing authorities for the Company to make market purchases of its own ordinary shares are revoked, except in 
relation to the purchase of shares under a contract or contracts concluded before the date of this resolution and which 
has or have not yet been executed.

17 Off-market purchases of own shares

That, in accordance with Section 694 of the Companies Act 2006, the proposed programme agreements to be entered into 
between the Company and each of Goldman Sachs International, UBS AG, Deutsche Bank AG, HSBC Bank plc and Barclays 
Bank plc (in the form produced to this meeting and initialled by the Chairman for the purpose of identification) (“the Programme 
Agreements”) be and are approved and the Company be and is authorised to enter into the Programme Agreements and all 
and any forward trades which may be effected or made from time to time under or pursuant to the Programme Agreements 
for the off-market purchase by the Company of its ordinary shares of 10 pence each, as more fully described in Appendix 1 on 
pages 95 to 96 (the authority conferred by this special resolution to expire on whichever is the earlier of the conclusion of the 
next annual general meeting of the Company held in 2013 and 1 August 2013, unless such authority is renewed prior to that 
time (except in relation to the purchase of ordinary shares under any forward trade effected or made before the expiry of such 
authority and which might be completed wholly or partly after such expiry)), and provided that shares purchased pursuant to 
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aPPEnDix 1
fuRTHER infORMaTiOn On RESOluTiOn 17: Off-MaRKET PuRCHaSES Of Own SHaRES
As noted on pages 20 to 21 in the Directors’ Report and Business Review, approval will be sought from shareholders to renew the 
Company’s authority to make off-market purchases of its shares. 

By virtue of special resolution number 16 passed at the Company’s Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) on 19 May 2011 shareholder 
authority was given to the Company to make on-market purchases of shares. This authority was limited to a maximum of 26.97 
million shares and expires on the earlier of the date of the AGM held in 2012 or 1 August 2012. At the same AGM, authority was 
granted to the Company to make off-market purchases of shares for cancellation under contingent purchase contracts to be 
entered into with each of Goldman Sachs International, UBS AG, Deutsche Bank AG and Barclays Bank plc (the “Bank(s)”). This 
authority was limited to a maximum of 9 million shares and expires on the earlier of the date of the AGM to be held in 2012 or 1 
August 2012. Since the granting of those authorities and up to 20 March 2012, the Company has bought back 6,298,926 shares 
for cancellation, representing 3.6% of its issued share capital as at the date of the 2011 AGM, at a total cost of £157.9 million. Of 
these, 950,000 shares were bought back under contingent purchase contracts.

Under Sections 693 and 694 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”), the Company is not permitted to make off-market purchases or 
contingent purchases of its shares unless it obtains advance shareholder approval to the proposed contract terms. Furthermore, under the 
rules of the UK Listing Authority (the “Listing Rules”) the Company may not purchase its shares at a time when any director is in receipt of 
unpublished price sensitive information about the Company. Accordingly, no purchases of shares would normally be made in periods when 
the directors might be in receipt of unpublished price sensitive information (“Close Periods”). Typically, these include the periods from the 
Company’s half year end up to the announcement of its interim results in September and the January year end up to the announcement of 
full year results in March each year. These Close Periods inevitably reduce the number of shares the Company is able to purchase.

In order to achieve maximum flexibility in its share purchase activities, the Company is able to enter into irrevocable and non-
discretionary programmes to allow it to buy shares during Close Periods. Another method of providing flexibility in its share 
purchase activities, and reducing the cost of share buybacks, is for the Company to enter into contingent forward purchase 
contracts outside of Close Periods. Pursuant to the authority granted at the 2011 AGM, the Company entered into agreements 
with the Banks (the “Existing Agreements”) and the Company intends to terminate the Existing Agreements and enter into new 
agreements with each of the Banks and HSBC Bank plc (together the “New Banks”). Under these agreements (the “Programme 
Agreements”), the Company may (although it is not obliged to) enter into contingent forward trades (“Contingent Forward Trades” 
or “CFT”) from time to time. The terms of each CFT will provide for the Company to purchase a fixed number of shares each week 
over a period of between 20 to 30 weeks. The maximum number of shares that can be purchased under each CFT is limited to 
50,000 shares per week. Details of each CFT will be announced to shareholders on the day it is entered into by the Company.

Whether or not the Company purchases shares in a particular week during the term of a CFT is dependent upon the Company’s 
share price not reaching a level set at the time that contract is entered into (the “Suspension Level”). The Suspension Level is 
determined by the Company and must be between 104% and 110% of the Company’s share price as at the start of the CFT. 

The price at which the Company may purchase shares during the term of a Contingent Forward Trade (the “Forward Price”) shall 
also be fixed at the start of the CFT. The Forward Price is subject to a maximum of 99% of the share price at the start of the 
contract and a minimum of 10 pence (the par value of an ordinary share). 

This structure would allow the Company to purchase shares at a discount to the market price (as at the time each CFT commences), 
for so long as the Suspension Level is not reached, without breaching the Listing Rules. If the Suspension Level is reached, the CFT 
would terminate automatically at that time and no further shares would be purchased under that contract. In such circumstances, 
a reduced number of shares would be purchased by the Company for cancellation under that contract. 

Under the provisions of Sections 693 and 694 of the Act, the Programme Agreements and Contingent Forward Trades are contingent 
purchase contracts to purchase shares by the Company off-market. Accordingly resolution 17, which will be proposed as a special 
resolution, seeks shareholder approval to the terms of the Programme Agreements to be entered into between the Company and each 
of the New Banks. The Programme Agreements will have a duration of the shorter of the period to the date of the next AGM to be held in 
2013 or 1 August 2013 and will incorporate the terms of an ISDA Master Agreement and Schedule. The Programme Agreements will be 
entered into and each CFT will be effected outside a Close Period but shares may be purchased during a Close Period by the Company. The 
minimum and maximum amount of time between a CFT being effected and shares being purchased is 5 days and 30 weeks respectively.
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Should shareholder approval be granted, any number of CFT may be effected with the New Banks at any time, provided that: 

■■ the total maximum number of shares which the Company is permitted to purchase pursuant to this authority would be 8.0 
million, representing less than 5% of its issued share capital at 20 March 2012;

■■ the total cost of shares that the Company would be permitted to purchase pursuant to this authority may not exceed £200 
million (including costs);

■■ the Forward Price may not exceed the higher of 105% of the average middle market closing price of the Company’s shares 
as derived from the Official List of the London Stock Exchange for the five days immediately preceding the day on which the 
Contingent Forward Trade was effected and the amount stipulated by Article 5(1) of the Buy-back and Stabilisation Regulation 
2003; 

■■ the Forward Price will be no more than 99% of the share price at the time the Contingent Forward Trade was effected;

■■ the minimum price that can be paid for any share is £0.10; and

■■ only one Contingent Forward Trade will be entered into on any particular day. 

Subject to the limits set out above, the Company will select the Suspension Level and the duration of each CFT, and the Forward 
Price will be determined by the relevant New Bank. Shares purchased via the Programme Agreements will reduce the number of 
shares that the Company may purchase under any authority granted at the AGM on 17 May 2012 for on-market purchases. No 
shares will be purchased under that authority on the same day that a CFT is entered into. The authority granted to the Company 
under this resolution will expire at the conclusion of the AGM of the Company held in 2013 or on 1 August 2013, whichever is the 
earlier, unless such authority is renewed prior to that time (except in relation to the purchase of shares under any CFT effected 
before the expiry of such authority and which might be completed wholly or partly after such expiry). The purchase of shares under 
the Programme Agreements will always be physically settled by delivery of shares to the Company (except in the case of certain 
events of default or termination events). 

A copy of each of the Programme Agreements will be available at the AGM on 17 May 2012. Copies will also be available for 
inspection at the Company’s registered office at Desford Road, Enderby, Leicester LE19 4AT or at the offices of Allen & Overy LLP, 
One Bishops Square, London, E1 6AD during usual business hours until the date of the AGM and at the Meeting itself.

The total number of employee share options to subscribe for shares outstanding at 20 March 2012 was 9,724,138. This represents 
5.8% of the issued share capital at that date. If the Company were to buy back the maximum number of shares permitted pursuant 
to both the existing authority for off-market purchases granted at the 2011 AGM (which will expire at the 2012 AGM) and the 
authority sought by this special resolution, then the total number of options to subscribe for shares outstanding at 20 March 2012 
would represent 6.4% of the reduced issued share capital.
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attendance, voting and questions
All members who hold ordinary shares are entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). A member who is 
entitled to attend and vote may appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote instead of him, provided that each proxy is appointed 
to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by him. A proxy need not also be a member. A proxy may vote on 
any other business which may properly come before the meeting. If you do not intend being present at the meeting please either 
sign and return a hard copy form of proxy so as to reach the Company’s registrars at least 48 hours before the meeting or follow 
the instructions for electronic proxy appointment through CREST or through www.sharevote.co.uk set out below. The return by a 
member of a fully completed form of proxy will not preclude any such member from attending in person and voting at the meeting.

A person to whom this notice is sent who is a person nominated under Section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy information 
rights (a “Nominated Person”) may, under an agreement between them and the shareholder by whom they were nominated, have 
a right to be appointed (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy for the AGM. If a Nominated Person has no such proxy 
appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, they may, under any such agreement, have a right to give instructions to the 
shareholder as to the exercise of voting rights.

The statements of the rights of members in relation to the appointment of proxies in the above paragraph and in the paragraphs headed 
“Electronic proxy appointment through CREST” and “Proxy card” below do not apply to a Nominated Person. The rights described in 
these paragraphs can only be exercised by registered members of the Company. Nominated persons are reminded that they should 
contact the registered holder of their shares (and not the Company) on matters relating to their investments in the Company.

Any corporation which is a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its 
powers as a member provided that they do not do so in relation to the same shares.

The Company, pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 and its articles of association, specifies 
that only those shareholders registered in the register of members of the Company as at 6pm on 15 May 2012 shall be entitled to 
attend or vote at the aforesaid general meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to 
entries on the relevant register of securities after 6pm on 15 May 2012 (or 6pm on the day that is two days before any adjourned 
meeting) shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting.

All resolutions will be put to poll votes. This means that the votes of all shareholders, including those who cannot attend the 
meeting but who validly appoint a proxy, are counted. The procedures for the poll votes will be explained at the AGM.

In respect of resolution 17 on off-market share purchase contracts, the Companies Act 2006 provides that this resolution will not 
be effective if any member of the Company holding shares to which it relates (i.e. those which may be purchased pursuant to the 
Programme Agreements) exercised the voting rights carried by any of those shares in voting on the special resolution and the 
resolution would not have been passed if they had not done so. Therefore, NEXT intends to disregard any poll votes which are 
cast in favour of resolution 17 attaching to 8.0 million shares (being the total maximum number of shares which the Company is 
permitted to purchase pursuant to the Programme Agreements) from both the total number of votes cast in favour of this resolution 
and the total number of votes cast.

As at 20 March 2012 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this Notice) the Company’s issued share capital 
consists of 168,147,532 ordinary shares. All of the ordinary shares carry one vote each and there are no shares held in treasury. 

A member attending the meeting has the right to ask questions. The Company must ensure any such question relating to the 
business being dealt with at the meeting is answered but no such answer need be given if (a) to do so would interfere unduly with 
the preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential information, (b) the answer has already been given on a 
website in the form of an answer to a question, or (c) it is undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good order of the 
meeting that the question be answered.

Electronic proxy appointment through CREST
CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for 
the AGM to be held on 17 May 2012 and any adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual. 
CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting 
service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate 
action on their behalf.
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In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a 
“CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited’s specifications 
and must contain the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless 
of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or is an amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy 
must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer’s agent (ID RA19) by the latest time(s) for receipt 
of proxy appointments specified in the notice of meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as 
determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s agent is able 
to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any change of instructions to 
proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland 
Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal system timings and limitations 
will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to 
take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), 
to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a 
message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where 
applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual 
concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timings. The CREST Manual is available at www.euroclear.com/CREST.

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated 
Securities Regulations 2001.

Documents available for inspection
The following documents will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during usual business hours and 
will be available for fifteen minutes prior to and for the duration of the AGM:

■■ Copies of the terms of appointment of the non-executive directors

■■ Copies of each of the Programme Agreements pursuant to resolution 17

Copies of each of the Programme Agreements pursuant to resolution 17 will be available for inspection at the offices of Allen & 
Overy LLP, One Bishops Square, London, E1 6AD during normal working hours until the close of the Annual General Meeting. 

You may not use any electronic address provided in this notice of meeting to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated.
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Company website
A full copy of this Annual Report, together with that for prior years, and other information required by Section 311A of the 
Companies Act 2006 can be found on the NEXT plc website at www.nextplc.co.uk

Under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 members meeting the threshold requirements set out in that section have the 
right to require the Company to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter relating to: (i) the audit of the Company’s 
accounts (including the auditor’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the Annual General Meeting; or (ii) 
any circumstance connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual 
accounts and reports were laid in accordance with Section 437 Companies Act 2006. The Company may not require the members 
requesting such website publication to pay its expenses in complying with Sections 527 or 528 Companies Act 2006, and it must 
forward the statement to the Company’s auditors not later than the time when it makes the statement available on the website. 
The business which may be dealt with at the Annual General Meeting includes any statement that the Company has been required 
under Section 527 Companies Act 2006 to publish on its website.

Payment of dividend
The recommended final ordinary dividend, if approved, will be paid on 1 August 2012 to holders of ordinary shares registered at 
close of business on 29 June 2012. The ordinary shares will trade ex-dividend from 27 June 2012.

annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held at 9.30 a.m. on Thursday 17 May 2012 at the Leicester Marriott Hotel, Smith Way, Grove 
Park, Leicester LE19 1SW. The notice of the meeting on pages 93 to 98 sets out business to be transacted. Full access is available 
to the venue for those with special requirements.

Proxy card
Completed proxy cards should be sent to our registrars, Equiniti and must be received by 9.30 a.m. on 15 May 2012 (or 48 
hours before any adjourned meeting). As an alternative to completing and returning this form of proxy, you may submit your proxy 
electronically by accessing the Registrar’s website www.sharevote.co.uk. You will be asked to enter your unique Voting ID, Task ID 
and Shareholder Reference Number as printed on your form of proxy. The use by members of the electronic proxy appointment 
service will be governed by the terms and conditions of use which appear on the website. Electronic proxies must be completed 
and lodged in accordance with the instructions on the website by no later than 48 hours before the Annual General Meeting. A 
member must inform the Registrar in writing of any termination of the authority of a proxy.

Share price data 
(Stock Exchange Code: NXT.L)

2012 2011
Share price at financial year end 2639p 1994p
Market capitalisation £4,453m £3,614m

Share price movement during year:
High mid-market quotation 2810p 2344p
Low mid-market quotation 1868p 1817p

Registrars and transfer office
Equiniti
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing
West Sussex
BN99 6DA

Telephone 0871 384 2164. Calls to this number are charged at 8p per minute from a BT landline. Other telephony provider costs 
may vary. Overseas Shareholder Helpline Number +44 (0)121 415 7047. Lines are open 8.30am to 5.30pm Monday to Friday.

Shareholder information
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Shareholder information

Discount voucher
The Company offers a discount voucher to any first named, registered shareholder holding 500 or more ordinary shares as at 
1 April each year. The voucher entitles the recipient or their immediate family to a 25% discount against most purchases at any 
one time of full price merchandise in NEXT Retail stores. It cannot be used in conjunction with any other discount voucher or offer, 
nor can it be used for the purchase of gift cards, Sale merchandise, electrical goods, non-NEXT branded goods or at any branch 
of NEXT Clearance or purchases from NEXT Directory. The voucher has no monetary purchase limit and expires on 31 October 
of the same year. Shareholders holding shares in nominee or PEP/ISA accounts are also eligible, but must request the voucher 
through their nominee or PEP/ISA account manager who should email alyson_wenlock@next.co.uk.

Shareholder enquiries
The Company’s share register is maintained by Equiniti. Please contact them if you have any enquiries about your NEXT plc 
shareholding including the following matters:

■■ change of name and address

■■ loss of share certificate, dividend warrant or tax voucher

■■ if you receive duplicate sets of company mailings as a result of an inconsistency in name or address and wish, if appropriate, 
to combine accounts.

The Shareview Portfolio service from our registrar, Equiniti, gives you more online information about your NEXT plc shares and 
other investments. For direct access to information held for you on the share register including recent balance movements and a 
daily valuation of investments held in your portfolio visit www.shareview.co.uk.

For shareholders with disabilities Equiniti provides the following:

■■ if requested future communications produced by them will be sent in the appropriate format.

■■ textphone number 0871 384 2255 for shareholders with hearing difficulties.

■■ hearing loop facilities in their buildings for use by visiting shareholders.

CREST
The Company’s ordinary shares are available for electronic settlement.

Payments of dividends to mandated accounts
Shareholders who do not at present have their dividends paid directly into a bank or building society may wish to do so. A 
mandate form is attached to your dividend warrant and tax voucher or is available to download from the NEXT plc website on 
www.nextplc.co.uk or from Equiniti, telephone 0871 384 2164.

This report has been printed on recycled paper.
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NEXT is a UK based retailer offering exciting, beautifully 
designed, excellent quality clothing, footwear, accessories and 
home products. NEXT distributes through three main channels: 
NEXT Retail, a chain of more than 500 stores in the UK and Eire; 
NEXT Directory, a home shopping catalogue and website with 
around 3 million active customers and international websites 
serving approximately 50 countries; and NEXT International, with 
almost 200 mainly franchised stores around the world.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report and Accounts contains “forward looking statements” which are all matters that are not historical facts, including anticipated financial and operational 
performance, business prospects and similar matters. These forward looking statements are identifiable by words such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “budget”, 
“estimate”, “expect”, “forecast”, “intend”, “plan”, “project” and similar expressions. These forward looking statements reflect NEXT’s current expectations concerning 
future events and actual results may differ materially from current expectations or historical results. Any such forward looking statements are subject to risks and 
uncertainties, including but not limited to those risks described in “Risks & Uncertainties” on pages 14 to 15; failure by NEXT to predict accurately customer fashion 
preferences; decline in the demand for merchandise offered by NEXT; competitive influences; changes in level of store traffic or consumer spending habits; effectiveness 
of NEXT’s brand awareness and marketing programmes; general economic conditions or a downturn in the retail industry; the inability of NEXT to successfully implement 
relocation or expansion of existing stores; insufficient consumer interest in NEXT Directory; acts of war or terrorism worldwide; work stoppages, slowdowns or strikes; 
and changes in financial or equity markets. These forward looking statements do not amount to any representation that they will be achieved as they involve risks and 
uncertainties and relate to events and depend upon circumstances which may or may not occur in the future and there can be no guarantee of future performance. 
Undue reliance should not be placed on forward looking statements which speak only as of the date of this document. NEXT does not undertake any obligation to 
update publicly or revise forward looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except to the extent legally required.
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